
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
AUGUST 1, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

August 1, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Dan Lewis from Troy Christian 
Chapel 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Rezoning Application – 600 Stephenson Highway, East Side of Stephenson 
Highway, North of Fourteen Mile Road, Section 35 – R-C to O-1 (Z-703) 1 

C-2 Rezoning Application – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care Center, Northwest 
Corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 (Z 180-B) 1 

C-3 Rezoning Application – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of Vanderpool, West 
of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to B-2 (Z-704) 2 



POSTPONED ITEMS:  No Postponed Items 2 

CONSENT AGENDA: 2 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 3 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 3 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 3 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: No Proclamations Proposed 3 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 3 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Two-Year Renewal Option – 
Janitorial Services ................................................................................................ 3 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Major Street 
Pavement Marking................................................................................................ 4 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 05-7 – 
Section 10 Bituminous Overlay............................................................................. 4 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Portable Radio 
Maintenance and Repair ...................................................................................... 4 

E-5 Request for Acceptance – Permanent Storm Sewer Easement – Permanent 
Sanitary Sewer Easement – Permanent Non-Access Greenbelt Easement – 
Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-24-201-002, 003 5 

E-6 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain, Tepel Land, 
L.L.C. – Sidwell #88-20-26-479-040, 039 & 038 5 

E-7 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel, Sidwell #20-22-426-057, Section 22 – 
Part of Lots 42, 43 and 45 of Supervisors Plat #17 5 

E-8 Private Agreement for Kilmer Property Splits – Project No. 03.949.3 6 

E-9 Private Agreement for Morton’s Restaurant – Project No. 05.908.3 6 

E-10 Payment for Installation of a Portion of McCulloch Drain as Part of the Hidden 
Forest Site Condominium Development – Project No. 04.908.3 6 

E-11 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain, 888 West Big 
Beaver, L.L.C. – Sidwell #88-20-21-351-013 7 



E-12 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Thirteen Treadmills for the Troy Community Center 7 

E-13 Request for Approval to Pay Closing Costs – Saoud Jamo and Nidhal Jamo, 2907 
Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-229-001 – Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre Road 
Project #01.105.5 7 

E-14 Adoption of the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan 8 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 9 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 9 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Cable Advisory 
Committee; Ethnic Community Issues Advisory Committee; Historic District 
Commission; Historical Commission; Library Advisory Board; Liquor Committee; 
Parks and Recreation Board; and Traffic Committee 9 

F-2 Approval of Radio System Agreement with Oakland County 16 

F-3 Final Payment for Gibson Lake Cleanout – Cost Participation Agreement with 
Sterling Heights 16 

F-4 DOCVIEW, L.L.C. Service Agreement 16 

F-5 Sole Source – Self-Contained Riding Greens Aerator 17 

F-6 Proposed Revisions to Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service Elimination of 
Connection Requirement 17 

F-7 Charter Revision Committee Recommendations 17 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 19 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 19 

a) Parking Variance – 701-705 Minnesota – August 15, 2005................................ 19 
b) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 212) – Articles IV, XXV, XXVI and 

XXVII, Freestanding Restaurants, Banks and Daycare Facilities in the R-C, 
O-M and O-S-C Districts – August 15, 2005....................................................... 19 



c) Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, North of Creston, 
Between Long Lake and Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 705) – 
August 15, 2005 ................................................................................................. 19 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 19 

a) Bid Waiver – Authorization to Purchase an Enterprise Content Management 
System ............................................................................................................... 19 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 19 

H-1  No Council Referrals 19 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 19 

I-1  No Council Comments 19 

REPORTS: 19 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 19 

a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – June 8, 2005........... 19 
b) Planning Commission/Final – June 14, 2005...................................................... 19 
c) Charter Revision Committee/Final – June 20, 2005 ........................................... 19 
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 21, 2005................................................. 19 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 28, 2005............................... 19 
f) Charter Revision Committee/Draft – July 25, 2005............................................. 19 

J-2 Department Reports: 20 

a) City Attorney’s Office – Hunciag v. City of Troy.................................................. 20 
b) City Attorney’s Office – Williams et. al v. City of Troy ......................................... 20 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 20 

a) Letter to Chief Craft from Darlene Gist, Manager of Skate World of Troy, 
Thanking the Troy Police Department for Assistance......................................... 20 

b) Letter to Chief Craft from Keith Pretty, J.D., President of Walsh College, 
Thanking Lt. Pappas and the Troy Police Department for Their Assistance 
During Commencement Ceremonies ................................................................. 20 

c) Letter to Chief Craft from Wayne Wright, Thanking Officer Lenczewski for His 
Assistance .......................................................................................................... 20 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 20 

a) Resolution from the City of Ferndale – Metro Council Declaration of Metro 
Interdependence................................................................................................. 20 



b) State of Michigan Notice of Hearing for Natural Gas Customers of Consumers 
Energy Company – Case No. U-14547 .............................................................. 20 

J-5  Calendar 20 

STUDY ITEMS: 20 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 20 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 20 

CLOSED SESSION: 20 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 20 

RECESSED 20 

RECONVENED 21 

ADJOURNMENT 21 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 21 

Monday, August 15, 2005 Regular City Council.................................................... 21 
Monday, September 12, 2005 Regular City Council ............................................. 21 
Monday, September 19, 2005 Regular City Council ............................................. 21 
Monday, September 26, 2005 Regular City Council ............................................. 21 
Monday, October 3, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................... 21 
Monday, October 17, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 21 
Monday, October 24, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 21 
Monday, November 14, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 21 
Monday, November 21, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 21 
Monday, November 28, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 21 
Monday, December 5, 2005 Regular City Council ................................................ 21 
Monday, December 19, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 21 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Dan Lewis from Troy Christian 
Chapel 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application – 600 Stephenson Highway, East Side of Stephenson 
Highway, North of Fourteen Mile Road, Section 35 – R-C to O-1 (Z-703)  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That the R-C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the east side of Stephenson 
Highway, north of Fourteen Mile Road, Section 35, being 1.74 acres in size, is hereby 
GRANTED, as recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Rezoning Application – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care Center, Northwest 

Corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 (Z 180-B)  
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That the R-C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, section 3, being 39,000 square feet in size, is hereby DENIED for the 
following reasons, as recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission: 
 

1. The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. Making a recommendation that is contrary to the Future Land Use Plan would 

weaken the validity of the Plan and make it more difficult to defend future zoning 
decisions.   

3. Rezoning this parcel to B-1 would result in the enlargement of an undesirable 
commercial “spot zone” along an area along the Rochester Road corridor that is 
planned for medium density use.   

4. Approval of the rezoning request could open the door for further commercial 
rezoning applications along the Rochester Road corridor. 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-3 Rezoning Application – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of Vanderpool, West 

of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to B-2 (Z-704)  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1E to B-2 rezoning request, located on the south side of Vanderpool, 
west of Rochester Road and east of Ellenboro, Section 22, being 0.5 acres in size, is hereby 
GRANTED, as recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  No Postponed Items 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of July 18, 2005 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: No Proclamations Proposed 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Two-Year Renewal Option – Janitorial 

Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
WHEREAS, A two-year contract to provide Janitorial Services with an option to renew for two 
additional years was awarded to the low bidders for each Group on October 20, 2003 
(Resolution 2003-10-533); and 
 
WHEREAS, All awarded contractors have agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract 
under the same terms and conditions as the 2003 contract that included a provision to increase 
contract prices in relation to lowest Consumer Price Index; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED under the same contract terms and conditions for two additional years expiring 
October 30, 2007 to the following vendors: 
 

Estimated Total 
Annual Cost  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

 
Group 1: Road Runr Maintenance Inc.  $498,889.39 
Group 2:  Elite Maintenance      $17,984.78 
Group 4: Elite Maintenance     $26,936.66 
Group 3: American Cleaning     $30,479.51 
Group 5: This is It!       $10,117.34 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Major Street Pavement 

Marking 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That a two-year contract with an option to renew for one additional year to provide 
Major Street Pavement Marking is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, P.K.  Contracting, Inc., 
at an estimated total cost of $63,179.00 for the first year and $66,435.00 for the second year at 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened July 8, 2005, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and if changes in the quantity of work are required either additive 
or deductive, such changes are authorized in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project 
cost each year. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 05-7 – Section 

10 Bituminous Overlay 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 05-7, Section 10 Bituminous Overlay, be AWARDED to 
Cadillac Asphalt, 4751 White Lake Road, Clarkston, MI 48346 at an estimated total cost of 
$174,680.25. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon submission of proper contract 
and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified requirements, and 
if additional work is required such additional work is authorized in an amount not to exceed 10% 
of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Portable Radio 

Maintenance and Repair 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That a (3) three-year contract to maintain and repair portable radio transceivers, 
with an option to renew for one additional year, is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, 
Cynergy Wireless of Troy, MI, for an estimated total three-year cost of $26,550.00, or $8,850.00 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

annually plus parts with discounts of 10%, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
July 11, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with 
a contract expiration date of July 31, 2008. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and bid documents including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.  
 
E-5 Request for Acceptance – Permanent Storm Sewer Easement – Permanent 

Sanitary Sewer Easement – Permanent Non-Access Greenbelt Easement – 
Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-24-201-002, 003 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Storm Sewer Easement, Permanent Sanitary Sewer 
Easement, and the Permanent Non-Access Greenbelt Easement, all being part of the 
Timbercrest Estates Condominium project, are hereby ACCEPTED.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain, Tepel Land, L.L.C. 

– Sidwell #88-20-26-479-040, 039 & 038 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for watermain from Tepel Land, L.L.C., owner of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-26-479-040, 039 & 038 is hereby ACCEPTED for the operation, 
maintenance and repair or replacement of watermain; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel, Sidwell #20-22-426-057, Section 22 – Part 

of Lots 42, 43 and 45 of Supervisors Plat #17 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council finds that the public interest 
will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 85-254 Policy 
Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City owned property and approve the sale of the remnant 
parcel, described in Attachment “A” attached hereto, to Cueter Investment Company for 
$200,000.00, the appraised value as outlined in the Offer to Purchase, with conditions, plus 
closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That closing will take place when all conditions have been met; 
and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Agreement to Purchase and the Warranty Deed, on behalf of the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents, including all attachments, at the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to and made a part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Private Agreement for Kilmer Property Splits – Project No. 03.949.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and GFA Development, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of sanitary sewer, detention and soil erosion controls on the site and in the adjacent 
right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Private Agreement for Morton’s Restaurant – Project No. 05.908.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Redico, is hereby APPROVED for the installation of 
water main, sanitary sewer, sidewalks, paving and soil erosion controls on the site and in the 
adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-10 Payment for Installation of a Portion of McCulloch Drain as Part of the Hidden 

Forest Site Condominium Development – Project No. 04.908.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That reimbursement to GFA Development / Michigan Home Builders for the 
installation of approximately 900 feet of 36” storm sewer and related work as part of the 
McCulloch Drain within the Hidden Forest Site Condominium development in the amount of 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

$120,720.00 is hereby APPROVED upon completion of construction and final approval by the 
Engineering Department.    
 
E-11 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain, 888 West Big 

Beaver, L.L.C. – Sidwell #88-20-21-351-013 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for watermain from 888 West Big Beaver, L.L.C., 
owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-21-351-013 is hereby ACCEPTED for the operation, 
maintenance and repair or replacement of watermain; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-12 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Thirteen Treadmills for the Troy Community Center 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
WHEREAS, On January 10, 2005, a contract to purchase and install new physical fitness 
equipment at the Community Center was awarded to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, 
All Pro Exercise, Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI (Resolution #2005-01-023-E4); 
 
WHEREAS, All Pro Exercise, Inc. has agreed to extend the pricing for thirteen (13) additional 
Precor treadmills at original bid prices of $4,495.00 with three-year service agreements of 
$225.00 each, and allow $800.00 for each trade-in;  
 
WHEREAS, All Pro Exercise, Inc. is the only authorized Precor dealer in the State of Michigan. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and a contract to purchase thirteen (13) Precor treadmills less thirteen (13) trade-ins are hereby 
AWARDED to All Pro Exercise, Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI for an estimated net cost of 
$50,960.00. 
 
E-13 Request for Approval to Pay Closing Costs – Saoud Jamo and Nidhal Jamo, 2907 

Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-229-001 – Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre Road 
Project #01.105.5 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the reasonable 
closing costs not to exceed the amount of $6,647.50 are hereby APPROVED to be paid to 
Saoud Jamo and Nidhal Jamo as part of the relocation payments for relocating from 2907 
Thames, having Sidwell # 88-20-25-229-001, which is being acquired by the City of Troy for the 
Big Beaver to Dequindre Road improvement project. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

 
E-14 Adoption of the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
WHEREAS, The mission of the City of Troy includes the charge to protect the health, safety, 
and general welfare of the people of Troy; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy, Michigan is subject to flooding, tornadoes, winter storms, and 
other natural, technological, and human hazards; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Local Emergency Planning Committee, comprised of 
representatives from the County, municipalities, and stakeholder organizations, has prepared a 
recommended Hazard Mitigation Plan that reviews the options to protect people and reduce 
damage from these hazards; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has participated in the planning process for the development of 
this Plan, providing information specific to local hazard priorities, encouraging public 
participation, identifying desired hazard mitigation strategies, and reviewing the draft Plan; and   
 
WHEREAS, On February 17, 2005, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners passed 
resolution No.05-022 adopting the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan as an official 
document of the County and established the County Hazard Mitigation Coordinating 
Committee, pursuant to the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (PL-106-390) and associated 
regulation (44 CFR 210.6); and  
 
WHEREAS, The Plan has been widely circulated for review by the County’s residents, 
municipal officials, and state, federal and local review agencies and has been revised to reflect 
their concerns; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That:  
 

1. The Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan and sections of the Plan specific to the 
affected community is hereby ADOPTED as an official plan of the City of Troy.  

2. The City Manager is CHARGED with supervising the implementation of the Plan’s 
recommendations, as they pertain to the City of Troy City and within the funding 
limitations as provided by the City of Troy City Council or other sources.   

3. The City Manager shall give special attention to the following action items recommended 
in portions of the plan specific to the City of Troy:  

a) 5.2.56 City of Troy 
Tornadoes, winter weather hazards, fires in one of the many high rises in Troy, 
and a chemical spill or release from one of many commercial trucks that carry 
hazardous materials are just a few concerns for the citizens of Troy. Secondarily, 
with the many corporate headquarters and high profile business, the threat of 
terrorism is always a concern.  

 
b) 6.3.1.56 Mitigation Strategies 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

1. Visit other municipalities who have had critical incidents and have 
activated their Emergency Operations Centers to learn and update our 
current EOC.  

2. Continue educational and planning programs in the area of severe 
weather, terrorism planning and fire education to the citizens and 
businesses of Troy ensure safety amongst all.      

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Cable Advisory 
Committee; Ethnic Community Issues Advisory Committee; Historic District 
Commission; Historical Commission; Library Advisory Board; Liquor Committee; Parks 
and Recreation Board; and Traffic Committee 
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

(b) City Council Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
 Unexpired Term 11/01/05 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Leonard G. Bertin - Resigned 11/01/05 
Cynthia Buchanan 11/01/07 
Susan Burt 11/01/06 
Angela J. Done 11/01/05 
Adam Fuhrman (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Kul B. Gauri 11/01/05 
Theodora House 11/01/06 
Nancy Johnson (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Pauline Manetta 11/01/06 
Dorothy Ann Pietron 11/01/07 
Mark Pritzlaff (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Susan Werpetinski 11/01/07 
Anbereen Wigar (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05 01/24/05 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
M.K. Laudicina 07/20/04-07/2006 08/09/04 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
James Berar 04/30/07 
Burdette L. Black, Jr. (Bud) 04/30/07 
Merrill W. Dixon (Sr Rep for Parks & Rec Board) 04/30/06 
Marie Hoag 04/30/06 
Pauline Y. Noce 04/30/07 
David S. Ogg 04/30/08 
Josephine Rhoads 04/30/08 
JoAnn Thompson 04/30/06 
William Weisgerber (Does not seek reappointment) 04/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Cynthia Buchanan 06/07/00 06/07/00 
Susan Burt 09/24/01 10/01/01 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E. Freliga 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Victor P. Freliga 04/19/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Victoria Lang 06/16/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Dorothy A. Pietron 12/21/98-07/10/01 07/23/01 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shiva Shakara K. Sastry 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Donald E. Schafer 06/08/04-06/2006 06/21/04 
Remedios Solarte 09/15/04 09/20/04 
Nancy Wheeler 03/10/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Cable Advisory Committee (CAC)  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Jerry L. Bixby 02/28/06 
Shazad Butt 11/30/05 
Richard Hughes 02/28/06 
Penny Marinos 02/28/07 
Alan Manzon 09/30/06 
Fan Lin (Student) 07/01/05 
W. Kent Voigt 02/28/07 
Bryan H. Wehrung 02/28/08 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

None on file.   
 
Ethnic Community Issues Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Anju C. Brodbine 09/30/05 
Amin Hashmi 09/30/05 
Kara Huang (Student) 07/01/05 
Yul Woong (Jeff) Hyun 09/30/05 
Tom Kaszubski 09/30/05 
Padma Kuppa 09/30/05 
Oniell Shah 09/30/05 
Flora M. Tan 09/30/05 
Charles Yuan 09/30/05 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
  
Historic District Commission One member must be an architect. 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years Two members-Historical Society recommendations. 
 One member – Historical Commission recommendation. 
 
  Term expires 03/01/08 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Wilson Deane Blythe (Does not request reappointment) 03/01/05 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/08 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 
Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/08 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
Vilin Zhang (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kerry S. Krivoshein 08/12/99-06/14/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Historical Commission  
Appointed by Council – (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/08 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Edward J. Bortner (Does not request reappointment) 07/31/05 
Rayma Gopal (Student) 07/01/06 
Roger Kaniarz (Requests reappointment) 07/31/05 
Rosemary Kornacki  07/31/08 
Kevin Lindsey 07/31/06 
Terry Navratil 07/31/06 
Vera Milz 07/31/07 
Brian Wattles 07/31/07 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05 01/24/05 
Wilson Deane Blythe 03/06/02-03/2004 03/18/02 
Barbara Chambers 02/24/03 03/03/03 
Robert A. Hudson 01/17/05 01/24/05 
Kerry S. Krivoshein 08/12/99-06/14/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Remedios Solarte 09/15/04 09/20/04 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Library Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council - (5) – 3 years 
 
 Unexpired Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Joanne C. Allen   (Resigned 06.20.05) 04/30/08 
Brian Griffen 04/30/06 
Lynne R. Gregory 04/30/07 
Nancy D. Wheeler 04/30/07 
Audre Zembrzuski 04/30/08 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

Lauren Andreoff 07/01/06 
Cheng Chen 07/01/06 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Wilson Deane Blythe 03/06/02 03/18/02 
Michael Brady 04/30/03  
Mary E. Freliga 11/25/02-12/2004 12/02/02 
Kul B. Gauri 08/26/99-07/03/03-07/2005  
Amin Hashmi 08/22/02-08/2004  
Dick Mellen 05/02/03-05/2005 05/05/03 
Albert T. Nelson, Jr. 03/16/99  
Michael O’Brien 07/28/03-07/2005 08/04/03 
Brian M. Powers 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shiva Shankara K. Sastry 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Jayshree Shah 08/28/01-01/12/04-01/2006 09/17/01-02/02/04 
Oniell Shah 08/07/02 09/23/02 
Patricia A. Shepich 07/22/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Mary E. Shiner 11/28/01 12/09/01 
Beatrice G. Smits 12/02/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
Remedios A. Solarte 12/19/04 09/20/04 
Mark R. Solomon 02/05/99-06/16/03-05/2005 07/07/03 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
Liquor Committee  
Appointed by Council - (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Henry W. Allemon 01/31/06 
Alex Bennett 01/31/06 
Max K. Ehlert 01/31/06 
W.S. Godlewski 01/31/08 
Patrick C. Hall 01/31/06 
James R. Peard 01/31/06 
Bohdan L. Ukrainec 01/31/08 
Emily Polet (Student) 07/01/05 
Capt. Gary Mayer (Ex-officio) 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Parks and Recreation Board  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

Appointed by Council  (10) (1-Troy School District Rep.; 1-Senior Adv. Board; 1-Troy Daze; 
Parks & Recreation Director) – 3 years 
 
Gary Hauff (Troy School District Recommendation) Term Expires 07/31/06 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Merrill W. Dixon (Sr. Advisory Board Rep) 09/30/06 
Ida Edmunds (School Board Rep) - RESIGNED 07/31/06 
Kathleen M. Fejes 09/30/07 
Tod Gazetti 09/30/07 
Brad Henson (Student)   07/01/06 
Orestes (Rusty) Kaltsounis 09/30/06 
Meaghan Kovacs 09/30/05 
Tom Krent 09/30/07 
Stuart Redpath 09/30/06 
Jeffrey Stewart (Troy Daze Rep) 09/30/06 
Janice C. Zikakis 09/30/05 
Carol Anderson (Parks & Rec Director) (Ex-officio) 
 
 
 
Traffic Committee  
Appointed by Council  (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
John Diefenbaker 01/31/06 
Lawrence Halsey 01/31/06 
Jan L. Hubbell 01/31/08 
Richard D. Kilmer 01/31/08 
Richard D. Minnick II 01/31/06 
Charles Solis 01/31/06 
Grace Yau (Student) 07/01/05 
Peter F. Ziegenfelder 01/31/08 
John Abraham (Ex-officio) 
Charles Craft (Ex-officio) 
William Nelson (Ex-officio) 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file   
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

 
F-2 Approval of Radio System Agreement with Oakland County 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Oakland County Radio System Agreement is APPROVED.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Final Payment for Gibson Lake Cleanout – Cost Participation Agreement with 

Sterling Heights 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Final Payment in the amount of $140,893.74 for the Gibson Lake Cleanout 
work performed under a cost participation agreement with the City of Sterling Heights is hereby 
APPROVED.    
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 DOCVIEW, L.L.C. Service Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, DOCVIEW, LLC of Lansing Michigan, makes traffic crash reports available on 
TRACView, their secure website, to police departments, other government agencies, insurance 
companies and authorized individuals; and 
 
WHEREAS, The agreement details the responsibilities and compensation for each party and 
will improve customer service by providing customers with another way to obtain copies of 
traffic crash reports;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to enter into a 
one-year service agreement with DOCVIEW, LLC, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting, renewing each successive year, unless either party notifies the 
other in writing 30 days prior to cancellation. 
 
Yes: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

No: 
 
F-5 Sole Source – Self-Contained Riding Greens Aerator 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, WF Miller Company of Novi, Michigan is the sole provider of Jacobson/Ryan 
equipment in Michigan; and  
 
WHEREAS, With the addition of Sanctuary Lake Golf Course to the City of Troy’s Golf Division, 
It is necessary to purchase an additional Ryan GA-30 self-contained riding aerator; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Parks and Recreation 
Department is AUTHORIZED to purchase a self-contained riding Ryan GA-30 greens aerator 
including attachments from WF Miller Company of Novi, Michigan at an estimated total cost of 
$17,094.00. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Proposed Revisions to Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service Elimination of 

Connection Requirement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Sections 19.02 and 19.05 of Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service, of the 
Troy City Code be REVISED in accordance with the proposal prepared by City Management, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Charter Revision Committee Recommendations 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION A  
APPROVAL OF THE PLACEMENT OF BALLOT QUESTION PROPOSALS: 
 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES as to form the following proposed Charter 
Amendments for the November 8, 2005 City General Election: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #10 (86 words) 

Shall Section 4.2.5,Study Meetings, be created to provide for Study meetings of 
Council with the meetings to be called by the Clerk on the written request of the 
Mayor, or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written 
notice to each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place 
of residence; but a study meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of 
the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing? 

 
Yes: 
No: 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #11 (27 words) 

Shall Section 4.3.5, Business at Study Meetings, be created to limit the business 
transacted at any Study meeting of the Council to no action taken? 

 
Yes: 
No: 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #12 (70 words) 

Shall Section 5.13, Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinance to 
Electors, be amended to implement election consolidation revisions to Michigan 
Election Law, by providing for the scheduling of the election in accordance with 
State Election Law and striking “within sixty days from such date of presentation 
for the submission of the initiative proposal” with the submittal to be made by an 
affirmative vote of the Council members elect? 

 
Yes: 
No: 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #13 (35 words) 

Shall Section 5.13.5, Submission of Council Initiated non-binding, legislative 
Advisory Ballot Questions to Electors, be created to provide a mechanism for the 
City Council to place advisory ballot questions on the Regular City Election Ballot, 
by an affirmative majority vote of members elect? 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #14 (41 words) 
Shall Section 12.3, Restriction on Powers to Lease Property, be amended to include 
long-term use agreements as an additional type of ownership that is subject to the City’s 
same restriction on powers to lease property procedure for renting or leasing of public 
property? 

 
Yes: 
No: 

 
AND 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION B  
APPROVAL OF THE BALLOT QUESTION ORDER: 
 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES the following ballot question order of the 
proposed Charter Amendment proposals on the November 8, 2005 City General Election: 
____________________________________________________________________________. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Parking Variance – 701-705 Minnesota – August 15, 2005  
b) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 212) – Articles IV, XXV, XXVI and XXVII, 

Freestanding Restaurants, Banks and Daycare Facilities in the R-C, O-M and O-S-C 
Districts – August 15, 2005 

c) Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, North of Creston, Between Long 
Lake and Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 705) – August 15, 2005 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Bid Waiver – Authorization to Purchase an Enterprise Content Management System 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – June 8, 2005 
b) Planning Commission/Final – June 14, 2005  
c) Charter Revision Committee/Final – June 20, 2005 
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 21, 2005 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 28, 2005 
f) Charter Revision Committee/Draft – July 25, 2005 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 20 - 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) City Attorney’s Office – Hunciag v. City of Troy  
b) City Attorney’s Office – Williams et. al v. City of Troy 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:   
a) Letter to Chief Craft from Darlene Gist, Manager of Skate World of Troy, Thanking the 

Troy Police Department for Assistance  
b) Letter to Chief Craft from Keith Pretty, J.D., President of Walsh College, Thanking Lt. 

Pappas and the Troy Police Department for Their Assistance During Commencement 
Ceremonies  

c) Letter to Chief Craft from Wayne Wright, Thanking Officer Lenczewski for His Assistance 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) Resolution from the City of Ferndale – Metro Council Declaration of Metro 

Interdependence  
b) State of Michigan Notice of Hearing for Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy 

Company – Case No. U-14547 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 
 
RECESSED 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 1, 2005 
 

- 21 - 

RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, August 15, 2005 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 12, 2005 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 19, 2005 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 26, 2005 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 3, 2005.......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 17, 2005........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, October 24, 2005........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, November 14, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 21, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 28, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 5, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 19, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



 1

DATE:  July 20, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION – 600 

Stephenson Highway, East side of Stephenson Highway, North of 
Fourteen Mile Road, Section 35 – R-C to O-1 (Z-703) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan and the proposed zoning 
district is compatible with adjacent zoning districts and uses.  The Planning Commission 
recommended approval of the rezoning request at the June 14, 2005 Regular Meeting.  
City Management recommends approval of the rezoning application. 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is JB Davies of Allison Associates. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located at 600 Stephenson Highway, on the east side of Stephenson 
Highway, north of Fourteen Mile Road, in Section 35. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 1.74 acres in area.  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject parcel is currently used as an office. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-C Research Center. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
O-1 Office Building. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to use the existing office building for a medical tenant.  No 
physical improvements are proposed for the site. 

bittnera
Text Box
C-01



 2

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Office/Research. 
South: Office/Research. 
East: I-75 Expressway  
West: Office/Research. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-C Research Center  
South: R-C Research Center 
East: N/A (I-75 Expressway). 
West: R-C Research Center 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed O-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
Office Buildings for any of the following occupations: executive, administrative; 
professional; accounting; writing; clerical stenographic; drafting; and sales. 
 
Medical office, including clinics. 
 
Banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, and similar uses. Such uses 
may include drive-in facilities only as an accessory use. 
 
Publicly owned buildings, exchanges, and public utility offices. 
 
Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Uses customarily supporting or serving the Principal Uses permitted in this District, 
such as pharmacies or drug stores, optical services, copy services, office supplies, 
book stores, art galleries, or restaurants; provided that these uses are within the 
building housing the Principal Uses which they support, and provided that there is 
no direct outside entrance for these uses separate from the entrance serving the 
Principal Uses. 
 
Data processing and computer centers, including sales support, service and 
maintenance of electronic data processing equipment.  The sales support, service 
and maintenance functions shall be accessory or secondary to the Principal Uses 
permitted in this District, and thus shall not be operated as independent businesses. 



 3

Technical training uses, when such are accessory or secondary to the Principal 
Uses permitted in this District, and thus not operated as independent businesses. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
Mortuary establishments. 
 
Private service clubs fraternal organizations and lodge halls, including accessory 
structures and uses customarily incidental to such uses, racquet and athletic clubs.  
 
Private ambulance facilities.  
 
Utility sub-stations, transformer stations or gas regulator stations (without storage 
yards). 
 
Mechanical or laboratory research involving testing and evaluation of products, or 
prototype or experimental product or process development. 
 
Child care centers, nursery schools, or day nurseries (not including dormitories). 
 

Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel has vehicular access on Stephenson Highway.  
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant is proposing to utilize an existing office building.  
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Office/Research.  Research has 
a primary correlation with the R-C Zoning District and a secondary correlation with the 
O-1 Zoning District.  The rezoning application complies with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards 
 
The Location Standards in Article 24.40.10 state that the O-1 (Office Building) District may 
be applied when the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the 
Master Land Use Planning and policies related thereto, and therefore involves the following 
types of areas: 



 4

24.40.11 Areas indicated as low-rise office. 
 
24.40.12 Portions of areas designated as community service centers or neighborhood 

service centers. 
 
24.40.13 Areas designated for commercial or other non-residential development, or 

higher intensity office development, when one or more of the following 
determinations are made: 

 
A. When the adjacent area and/or the total community would be more 

effectively served by the application of O-1 zoning than by the 
application of a commercial or other non-residential zoning District of 
a more intense office District. 

 
B. When development in accordance with O-1 zoning would serve as a 

transitional element and would thus be more compatible with adjacent 
properties than would development under commercial or other office 
classifications. 

 
Since the application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan, it is therefore consistent 
with the Location Standards of the O-1 Office Building District. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Applicant Statement of Request. 
3. Minutes from the June 14, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z-703 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-703 600 STEPHENSON HWY SEC 35\CC Public Hearing Z-703 08 01 05.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-C TO O-1



S
 I75

N
 I75

ELLIO
TT

R
E

D
W

O
O

D

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

N
 I75 O

N
R

P

S
 I7

5 
O

FR
P

C
H

IC
A

G
O

WACON

KEY WEST

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

±0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-C TO O-1
600 STEPHENSON HWY.
E SIDE OF STEPHENSON HWY, N OF FOURTEEN MILE
SEC.  35  (Z-703)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-C TO O-1











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 703) – 600 Stephenson Hwy, 

North of Fourteen Mile Road, East side of Stephenson Hwy, Section 35 – From 
R-C to O-1 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
There was a brief discussion with respect to parking requirements.  Mr. Savidant 
said there appears to be enough parking available for the medical use.  He 
explained that a submission of a site plan through the Planning Commission 
would not be required because it is simply an office use replacing another office 
use.  Mr. Savidant said that at the time of application to the Building Department, 
the Building Department, with input from the Planning Department, would make a 
determination on the required amount of parking spaces.  Mr. Savidant said the 
Planning Commission would be the authoritative body should there be a request 
to reduce the number of parking spaces.   
 
The petitioner, J. B. Davies of Allison Associates of 180 High Oak Road, 
Bloomfield Hills, was present.  Mr. Davies said the family business of 30 years 
would make an application to Special Tree, a company who provides 
rehabilitation for those with closed head injuries.  He said the majority of space 
would be for its headquarters and administration office; a minority of the space 
would be for medical.  Mr. Davies believes the use would conform to the parking 
requirements.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-100 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the east side of 
Stephenson Highway, north of Fourteen Mile Road, within Section 35, being 
approximately 1.74 acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



 1

DATE:  July 20, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION – 

Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care Center, Northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 (Z 180-B) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.  Making a 
recommendation that is contrary to the Future Land Use Plan would weaken the validity 
of the Plan and make it more difficult to defend future zoning decisions.  While the 
proposed zoning district may appear to be compatible with the retail development to the 
south, this development is also non-compliant with the Future Land Use Plan.  This 
rezoning application would result in the enlargement of an undesirable commercial spot 
zone on the Rochester Road corridor that is planned for medium density residential use.  
Furthermore, it could open the door for further commercial rezoning applications along 
the Rochester Road corridor. 
 
The Planning Commission recommended denial of the rezoning request at the June 14, 
2005 Regular Meeting.  City Management recommends denial of the rezoning 
application.   
 
If the City Council makes a finding that the subject rezoning request is appropriate, City 
Management recommends an amendment to the Future Land Use Plan be initiated.  A 
rezoning recommendation that is obviously contrary to the intent of the Future Land Use 
Plan is not strategy based upon accepted land use planning principles.  The more 
appropriate strategy is to amend the Future Land Use Plan designation along the 
Rochester Road frontage based upon professional community planning advice and land 
use planning principals. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Fred Flaim.  The applicant is James Gerback.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, in Section 3. 

bittnera
Text Box
C-02



 2

Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 39,000 square feet in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property is currently vacant. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1B One Family Residential District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-1 Local Business District. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to construct a one-story, 8,600 square foot retail development 
on the property. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Retail. 
East: Woodside Bible Church and Northwyck PUD (PUD-1). 
West: Single family residential. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1B One Family Residential. 
South: B-1 Local Business. 
East: CR-1 One Family Residential Cluster and PUD-1. 
West: R-1B One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed B-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
Local retail businesses which supply commodities on the premises, for persons 
residing in adjacent residential areas, such as but not limited to: Groceries, 
meats, dairy products, baked goods or other foods dispensed for consumption off 
the site, hardware, drugs and pharmaceuticals. 
 
Specialty shops such as, but not limited to:  Antique shops, craft shops, and 
shops for the sale of gifts and notions. 



 3

Personal service establishments which perform services on the premises, such 
as, but not limited to: repair shops (watches, radio, television, shoe, etc.) beauty 
parlors and barber shops, and self-service laundries. 
 
Dry cleaning establishments, or pick-up stations, dealing directly with the 
consumer.   
 
Business establishments which perform services on the premises such as but not 
limited to: banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, 
insurance companies, and real estate offices.  
 
Professional services including the following:  medical clinics, (out-patient only) 
and offices of doctors, dentists, osteopaths and similar or allied professions. 
 
Post office and similar governmental office buildings, serving persons living in the 
adjacent residential area.  Other uses similar to the above uses. 
  
Accessory structures and uses customarily incident  to the above permitted uses. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
City and School District buildings, public utility buildings, telephone exchange 
buildings, electric transformer stations and substations, gas regulator stations, and 
water and sewage pumping stations, without storage yards. 
 
Nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers (not including dormitories). 
 
Incidental Customer Seating as an accessory to food sales establishments, 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on both Rochester and Marengo. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site storm water detention.  
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property.   
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the Rochester Road frontage in this area as 
Medium Density Residential.  The Medium Density Residential classification correlates 
with the R-1T Zoning District in the Plan.  The application does not comply with the 
Future Land Use Plan.   



 4

Compliance with Location Standards: 
The B-1 Local Business Zoning District does not have Location Standards to apply to 
rezoning requests.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Conceptual Site Plan. 
3. Applicant Statement of Request 
4. Minutes from the May 10, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
5. Minutes from the May 24, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
6. Minutes from the June 14, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
7. Resident Communication. 
8. Preliminary Opinion, prepared by John Gaber, dated May 9, 2005. 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z- 180 B 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-180 B BINSONS\CC Public Hearing Z-180 B 08 01 05.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE

CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1B TO B-1



MARENGO

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

DEETTA

HANNAH

WOODSIDE

VILLA PARKQUILL CREEK

PEA
C

O
C

K ±0 200 400 600100
Feet

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1B TO B-1

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED BINSON'S HOME HEALTH CARE CENTER
FROM R-1B TO B-1
NW CORNER ROCHESTER RD. & MARENGO
SEC.  3  (Z-180 B) 

WOODSIDE BIBLE CHURCH - UNDER CONSTRUCTION

O
FF

IC
E

 
U

N
D

E
R

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N













PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 10, 2005 
 

15. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s 
Home Health Care, Northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – 
From R-1B to B-1 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning request.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation 
of the Planning Department to deny the rezoning application.   
 
A brief discussion followed with respect to the spot zoning of the property located 
south of the subject rezoning.  It was understood that it was a commercial site 
that was approved for rezoning by City Council approximately 25 years ago.   
 
Chair Strat asked what would be the highest and best use of the property. 
 
Mr. Miller said an appraiser or assessor might appropriately determine the 
highest and best use of the property.  Planners provide information with respect 
to what is consistent or conforming with the Future Land Use Plan and 
compatible land uses.   
 
John Gaber of 380 N. Old Woodward, Birmingham, attorney, was present to 
represent the applicant and owner.  Mr. Gaber provided a brief review of the 
proposed use and site dimensions.  He said Binson’s has been in Troy since 
1992 and would like to stay in Troy.  Mr. Gaber clarified that the use immediately 
to the north is a residence that is currently being used as a law office.  He said 
the property on the corner immediately to the north of the residence/law office is 
currently being used as a rental house.  Mr. Gaber said the owner made several 
unsuccessful attempts to rezone the property to commercial.  He noted the 
owner receives interest calls on the property only for commercial and office uses, 
not residential.  Mr. Gaber cited reasons that merit the proposed rezoning to 
commercial:  (1) The heavy traffic volume on Rochester Road is not conducive to 
residential; (2) The shallow lot does not allow much for buffering; (3) It appears 
residential is not feasible given the history of the site and the owner’s experience 
in marketing the site.  Mr. Gaber noted that the Rochester Road corridor has 
experienced many zoning and land use changes.  He referenced and read the 
Judge’s opinion given on a court action for the rezoning of property on Rochester 
Road, north of DeEtta, from residential to medical/office use.  Mr. Gaber 
indicated that it has been some time since the City revisited its Master Land Use 
Plan.  Mr. Gaber asked the members for their support of the rezoning request 
and a recommendation of approval to the City Council.   
 
Amy Neary of McKenna Associates, Inc., Land Use Consultant for the project, 
was present and distributed material related to the presentation.  Ms. Neary 
pointed out the existing land use in the area, indicated that the subject location is 
not desirable for residential use, and noted that the B-1 zoning is a reasonable 
use for the area.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 10, 2005 
 

Mr. Schultz said it is interesting that two condominium projects (Sandalwood and 
Northwyck) located within the subject area were not included in the report of 
McKenna Associates.  He said it appears that both condominium projects have 
been successful.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Eileen Carty of 990 DeEtta, Troy, was present.  Ms. Carty said she would 
welcome condominiums, site or otherwise, near her home; she would welcome 
anything but business.  Ms. Carty said there are residential homes all around her 
and never thought commercial would come to the area.  She referenced the site 
directly north of her home that was rezoned commercial as a result of a consent 
judgment.  Ms. Carty understood that the use was to be medical/office, and 
questioned the existing use of the building.  Ms. Carty addressed her concern 
that should the subject property be rezoned to commercial, there would be no 
guarantee in the future as to what might go in.  Ms. Carty said her front picture 
window view is of a waste receptacle.  She said that should the proposed 
rezoning be approved, she would have a view of another waste receptacle.  Ms. 
Carty said it would be economically disastrous for her should any commercial go 
in that location.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
A brief discussion followed with respect to potential residential development on 
the site.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-05-084 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to B-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, within Section 3, being approximately 39,000 square 
feet in size, be tabled to a future study session meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 24, 2005 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s 
Home Health Care, Northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – 
From R-1B to B-1 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning that was tabled at the May 10, 2005 Regular Meeting for 
further study.  Mr. Miller said the property is designated on the Future Land Use 
Plan as Medium Density Residential (corresponds with the R-1T, R-M and R-2 
zoning districts).  He briefly reviewed aerials and photographs of the subject 
location, the site plan drawing submitted by the petitioner, and three drawings 
prepared by the Planning Department with respect to R-1T and B-1 zoning 
districts.  Mr. Miller stated that there are a variety of uses along Rochester Road, 
as well as the occurrence of very strong trends.  Mr. Miller reported that should 
the members determine that the B-1 zoning classification is appropriate for the 
subject property, the correct action would be consideration of an amendment to 
the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Gaber of 380 N. Old Woodward, Birmingham, attorney, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Gaber identified key issues for consideration of the 
proposed rezoning: (1) Proposed use is consistent with the character of the 
neighborhood; (2) Whether or not the current zoning of single family is 
appropriate or inappropriate due to the Rochester Road corridor, the depth of the 
property and the site characteristics; (3) The Consent Judgment on the Rabanni 
property located one block north wherein the judgment of the Court was that O-1 
zoning is consistent with the commercial character of the area and single family 
residential zoning is inappropriate due to the traffic and proximity to Rochester 
Road.   
 
Mr. Gaber said it is believed that residential is not feasible for the site.  He 
indicated that the property owner has received no offers to purchase for 
residential use.  Mr. Gaber noted that placing 4 or 5 residential units on the 
subject site would result in a bunker-type of layout for backyards that would face 
Rochester Road and home fronts that would face an alley.  Mr. Gaber referenced 
the home of Eileen Carty, 990 DeEtta, who spoke at the May 10, 2005 Regular 
Meeting.  He said the home would be kiddy-korner, not directly behind, from the 
proposed site.  Mr. Gaber noted that Ms. Carty has a privacy fence along her 
back property line.  Mr. Gaber said the petitioner would be required to put up a 
screening wall of some type at the time of site plan approval that would address 
any concerns of the neighbors.  Mr. Gaber asked the members’ consideration to 
forward a favorable recommendation to the City Council for the proposed 
rezoning.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 24, 2005 
 

Mr. Gaber confirmed the existing Binson’s on Rochester and Square Lake Roads 
would move its operation to the proposed location.  He indicated that the 
petitioner intends to use the entire building with consideration given to any site 
constraints.  Mr. Gaber noted that the specifics of the site plan have not been 
determined at this time.   
 
Chair Strat stated that the proposed site plan should not be a consideration in the 
approval process of the rezoning request.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the residential home located at 990 DeEtta.  It 
was determined that the home does abut the property of the proposed rezoning 
along the western edge, and one of the concerns of the homeowner was the 
location of the dumpster on the business site in relation to her home.   
 
Jim Lawrence of 3553 Lakewood Shores, Howell, project architect, was present.  
Mr. Lawrence addressed the schematic drawing that was originally provided and 
distributed to the members a more detailed drawing.  He indicated that they are 
comfortable with the open space requirements being met, and noted that the 
square footage of the building would most likely be reduced to accommodate 
Zoning Ordinance requirements.   
 
Mr. Lawrence indicated a typical house at this location would sell for $250,000, 
and the land itself would be worth $150,000 ($30,000 per unit) should a 
developer build it for residential use.  Mr. Lawrence said the current sale price is 
almost 3 times that amount, and there is a concern about the cost of the property 
and the actual ability to use it.  Mr. Lawrence addressed the design factors of the 
site should it be built for residential use and said a residential development would 
not be economically viable. 
 
Mr. Wright said the building size would be reduced by over 15% to meet the 
requirements of the City’s building department.  He asked if the site would be big 
enough for the proposed Binson’s facility, and if the petitioner would be 
requesting variances from the Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
Mr. Lawrence said the sketch is not drawn to scale and detail, and a more 
detailed analysis would determine the square footage of the building.  He 
indicated that it is not the petitioner’s intent to request variances.   
 
The petitioner, James Gerback of 300 Park Street, Birmingham, CFO of 
Binson’s, was present.  Mr. Gerback said the building size of the existing location 
on Rochester and Square Lake Roads is approximately 4,800 square feet.  He 
indicated a building size of 1,000 additional square feet would be sufficient for 
another 20 years.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 24, 2005 
 

There was discussion on the following: 
• Vacation of the alley. 
• Allowable uses in the B-1 zoning district. 
• Desired and appropriate uses for the subject location. 
• Conditional approval based upon specific use and design conditions, as 

provided by State law.  
 
The item is scheduled for a Public Hearing at the Regular Meeting of June 14, 
2005. 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 14, 2005 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s 
Home Health Care, Northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – 
From R-1B to B-1 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Miller said appropriate planning and zoning uses in the 
location should be determined and an amendment to the Future Land Use Plan 
would be recommended, should the rezoning request go forward.  Mr. Miller 
reported that it is the recommendation of City Management to deny the rezoning 
application because it does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked for information on nearby properties with respect to Consent 
Judgments.   
 
Mr. Miller said a Consent Judgment on the property one block north (commonly 
known as the Rabbani property) allows office use on the subject property.  He 
reported that, in general, the area has had a number of land uses, and noted more 
recently residential development; i.e., PUD 1 Northwyck Condominiums, 
Sandalwood North and South condominiums, and a proposed PUD for a mixed-use 
development on the northeast corner of Rochester Road and South Boulevard.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said the Rabbani Consent Judgment is the only one in the area of 
which she is aware.  She said both zoning plans and future land use plans are 
important factors in litigation cases.  Ms. Lancaster said the Judge in the Rabbani 
case was concerned about the number of non-conforming uses in the area at that 
time.   
 
John Gaber of 380 N. Old Woodward, Birmingham, attorney, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Gaber said the proposed use is consistent with the 
character of the neighborhood.  He reviewed the site characteristics with respect 
to residential development.  Mr. Gaber said the lease for the existing Binson’s 
located on Rochester and Square Lake Roads expires in a few months and they 
would like to relocate in the near future.  He asked that the rezoning request not 
be held up in the process should the Planning Commission opt to amend the 
Future Land Use Plan.  Mr. Gaber said there was an opinion and a judgment by 
the Court, prior to the Rabbani Consent Judgment, finding that the uses and 
zoning in the area had changed significantly, and that the site would not be 
compatible for what it was zoned and master planned.  Mr. Gaber said the 
McKenna report provided to the members support the changing uses and zoning.  
Mr. Gaber requested a favorable recommendation to the City Council.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 14, 2005 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck believes the requested B-1 zoning classification is appropriate for the 
location, and a revision in the zoning classification would be considered in the 
future when the City undertakes its study of the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Khan said a main road is not suitable for residential use.  He agreed with Mr. 
Vleck’s comments.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-097 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to B-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, within Section 3, being approximately 0.89 acres in 
size, be granted, for the following reasons:  
 

1. That the property is too narrow to put residential use. 
2. B-1 is the best use for this property.   

 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Vleck, Waller 
No: Chamberlain, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION DENIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-098 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to B-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, within Section 3, being approximately 0.89 acres in 
size, be denied, for the following reasons:  
 
1. The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. Making a recommendation that is contrary to the Future Land Use Plan 

would weaken the validity of the Plan and make it more difficult to defend 
future zoning decisions.   

3. Rezoning this parcel to B-1 would result in the enlargement of an 
undesirable commercial “spot zone” along an area along the Rochester 
Road corridor that is planned for medium density use.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 14, 2005 
 

4. Approval of the rezoning request could open the door for further 
commercial rezoning applications along the Rochester Road corridor. 

 
Yes: Chamberlain, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Khan, Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts believes the zoning should be commercial.  She said denial of 
the request would result in a court matter.   
 
Mr. Khan said residential zoning is improper on a main road.  He agreed the 
matter would end up in court.   
 
Messrs. Waller and Vleck agreed with the comments of Ms. Drake-Batts and Mr. 
Khan.   
 

 





 1

DATE:  July 20, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION – 

Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South side of Vanderpool, West of Rochester 
Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to B-2 (Z-704) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The subject property is designated as Non-Center Commercial on the Future Land Use 
Plan.  Both the B-3 and H-S zoning districts correlate with this Non-Center Commercial 
future land use designation. Most of the uses permitted in the proposed B-2 district are 
permitted in the B-3 district, however the B-3 district includes a wider range of uses.  
Within the B-3 district the front yard setback is 40 feet and the rear yard setback is 30 
feet, while the proposed B-2 district are greater, and the front yard setback is 75 feet 
and the rear yard setback is 30 feet.  Therefore, the potential land uses are less 
intensive within the proposed B-2 district and the building setbacks are greater, when 
compared to the future planned B-3 district.  
 
The proposed rezoning would extend the existing western boundary of B-2 property to 
line up precisely with the abutting property to the south, which is also with the B-2 
zoning district.  This proposed B-2 boundary extends slightly further to the west than the 
B-3 district to the north and across Vanderpool.  However, the proposed B-2 zoning and 
its depth towards the west, is consistent with properties along the western side of the 
Rochester Road corridor, between Big Beaver and Wattles.   
 
The petitioner proposes to combine the subject property with a City owned remnant 
parcel that fronts Rochester Road and is within the B-2 zoning district.  Rezoning and 
combining these parcels creates a desirable commercial site.  The rezoning application 
is compatible with surrounding land uses and zoning districts.  Further, the request is 
consistent with the existing B-2 zoning located south of Vanderpool.  On June 14, 2005 
the Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request.  City 
Management concurs and recommends approval of the B-2 rezoning request. 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owners of the property are Glen and Barbara Carter.  The applicant is John 
Glasnak. 

bittnera
Text Box
C-03



 2

Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of Vanderpool, west of Rochester Road and 
east of Ellenboro, in Section 22. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 0.5 acres in area.  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject parcel is currently used as a single family residence. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1E One Family Residential. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-2 Community Business. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
In addition to the subject parcel, the applicant is proposing to acquire the abutting 
remnant parcel to the east from the City of Troy and develop both parcels as a Dunkin 
Donuts restaurant.  The site plan indicates that all traffic will enter the site from 
Vanderpool.  Note that the entry drive on Vanderpool was moved to the east away from 
the residential neighborhood.   
 
In this section of Rochester Road there are examples of automobile-oriented retail uses 
with entry drives onto residential streets on Torpey, Trombley, Charrington and Bishop.  
None of these examples are on dead-end streets.  Since Vanderpool is a dead-end 
street, the impact of traffic exiting the Dunkin Donuts restaurant will primarily be 
additional waiting times for traffic making turns onto Rochester Road.  There will be no 
cut-through traffic associated with the proposed restaurant.   
 
On-site circulation forces drive-thru traffic to exit onto Rochester while other traffic will 
primarily exit onto Vanderpool.  This will help to reduce the volume of traffic exiting onto 
Vanderpool.  It must be noted that since this is a rezoning application, the site plan 
could be altered following approval of the rezoning request.  
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single-family residential. 
South: Troy Point Plaza (retail strip mall). 
East: Vacant. 
West: Single-family residential. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1E One Family Residential and B-3 General Business. 
South: B-2 Community Business. 
East: B-2 Community Business. 
West: R-1E One Family Residential. 
 
 



 3

 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed B-2 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-1 Districts as Principal 
Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions,  
 
Any retail business whose principal activity is the sale of merchandise in an 
enclosed building, except for those limited to or first permitted in the B-3 General 
Business District. 
Any service establishment of a showroom or workshop nature, of an electrician, 
decorator, dressmaker, tailor, baker, painter, upholsterer; or an establishment doing 
radio or home appliance repair, photographic studios and reproduction and similar 
service establishments that require a retail adjunct. 
 
Business establishments which perform services on the premises, such as but not 
limited to:  banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, 
insurance offices, travel services, and real estate offices. 
 
Private clubs, fraternal organization, and lodge halls. 
 
Restaurants, or other places serving food or beverage, except those having the 
character of a drive-in or open front store. 
 
Theaters, assembly halls, concert halls or similar places of assembly, when 
conducted completely within enclosed buildings. 
 
Business schools and colleges or private schools operated for profit, not including 
nursery schools. 
 
Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Drive-up Windows or Service Facilities, as Accessory to Principal Uses Within B-2 
Districts, Apart from Restaurants 
 
Outside seating areas, of twenty (20) seats or less, for restaurants or other food 
service establishments 
 
 



 4

USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 
Drive-Up Windows or Service Facilities, as an Accessory to Restaurants Permitted 
Within this District 
 
Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating, rinks, indoor tennis 
courts, athletic or health clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation, 
when the subject uses are located at least 100 feet from any Residential District. 
 
Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-2 District as follows: 
 
A. Retail sales of plant material not grown on the site, and sales of lawn 

furniture, playground equipment and garden supplies. 
B. Recreational space providing shuffleboard, miniature golf, tennis, or similar 

outdoor recreation, when part of a planned development. 
C. Outdoor driver training and testing areas on or abutting the site of a driving 

school. 
 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments 
 
Facilities within a retail establishment for installation, in vehicles, of items sold at 
retail at that location. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Vanderpool. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  The 
Non-Center Commercial designation has a Primary Correlation with the B-3 General 
Business Zoning District and a Secondary Correlation with the H-S Highway Service 
Zoning District.  The Non-Center Commercial designation does not correlate with the B-
2 Zoning District.  The B-2 district does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.  
However, the B-2 district is a commercial zone as is B-3, and the B-2 district is less 
intense in terms of potential uses than the B-3 district.  Further, the request is an 
expansion of an existing B-2 zoning district 
 
Compliance with Location Standards 
The B-2 Local Business Zoning District does not have Location Standards to apply to 
rezoning requests. 



 5

 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Conceptual Site Plan. 
3. Applicant Statement of Request. 
4. Minutes from the June 14, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
5. Letter of opposition dated July 7, 2005. 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z- 704 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-704 DUNKIN DONUTS SEC 22\CC Public Hearing Z-704 08 01 05.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1E TO B-2



HARRIS

R
O

C
H

E
STERVANDERPOOL

TORPEY

CHARRINGTON

W
IN

TH
R

O
P

±

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED DUNKIN DONUTS
FROM R-1E TO B-2
S SIDE VANDERPOOL, W OF ROCHESTER RD.
SEC.  22  (Z-704)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1E TO B-2

0 200100
Feet













PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin 
Donuts, South side of Vanderpool, West of Rochester, Section 22 – From R-1E 
to B-2 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the 
City Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
Mr. Miller explained that both actions, the Offer to Purchase the remnant parcel 
and the rezoning request, would be considered at the same City Council 
meeting.  Should one action not be approved, the other action would not take 
place.   
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed that the Planning Commission could make their 
recommendation approval contingent upon the applicant’s acquisition of the 
remnant parcel from the City. 
 
Burt Kassab of 7125 Orchard Lake, West Bloomfield, was present to represent 
the petitioner.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Laura Balyeat of 965 Vanderpool, Troy, was present.  Ms. Balyeat said the 
proposed rezoning is an intrusion and an encroachment of commercial use into 
the residential area.  She said the property values of the residential homes would 
decrease.  Ms. Balyeat questioned the need for another breakfast/coffee use at 
this location when there are vacant buildings throughout the City.  Ms. Balyeat 
said that should the City go forward with the proposed rezoning, she would like 
the City’s consideration to provide a tasteful brick wall as a transitional buffer and 
appropriate shielding of the parking lot lights.   
 
John Billinger of 943 Vanderpool, Troy, was present.  Mr. Billinger voiced 
opposition to the proposed rezoning.  He said the City is literally taking down a 
house and moving commercial further into the subdivision.  Mr. Billinger 
expressed concern with respect to noise, trash and dumpster locations.  Mr. 
Billinger said his front yard view would be a brick wall should the proposed 
rezoning go forward.  Mr. Billinger addressed current vacancies along Rochester 
Road that could accommodate the commercial use.  
 
Richard Wiles of 975 Vanderpool, Troy, was present.  Mr. Wiles said he is not 
opposed to the proposed rezoning.  His concerns are the uneven property lines 
for commercial use in the area, and the potential of being enclosed by walls 
should the future commercial use construct a brick wall.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
 

Chair Strat encouraged the residents to address their concerns at the time of City 
Council review and approval of the proposed rezoning, and again at the time of 
site plan approval by the Planning Commission should the rezoning go forward.   
 
Ms. Lancaster clarified her earlier statement that the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation could be contingent upon the remnant parcel sale.  She pointed 
out that a rezoning request does not require conditions and putting a condition on 
the approval would put a condition on the City to sell the property.  Ms. Lancaster 
suggested consideration of a recommendation that the property not be rezoned 
without the City remnant parcel sale, should the members make a 
recommendation of approval.   
 
Mr. Miller clarified that property owners would not be notified at the time of site 
plan review and approval should the rezoning go forward.  He said interested 
residents could contact the Planning Department for status of the site plan 
application.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-101 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1E to B-2 rezoning request, located on the south side of 
Vanderpool, west of Rochester Road, within Section 22, being approximately 0.5 
acres in size, be granted, with the condition that this recommendation will cease 
if the City is not able to work out a purchase agreement between the applicant for 
the Dunkin Donut property and the City and that the only way to move forward is 
if the applicant owns both parcels.  
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts is not in favor of commercial use going into a residential 
neighborhood because of the affect it would have on the value of the residential 
homes.  Ms. Drake-Batts encouraged the residents to send their concerns in 
writing to the City Council members.  
 
Mr. Vleck agreed with the comments of Ms. Drake-Batts.   

 



1

Paula P Bratto

From: Mark F Miller
Sent: Monday, July 11, 2005 3:52 PM
To: Brent Savidant; Kathy Czarnecki; Paula P Bratto; Ronald Figlan
Subject: FW:  Case Z-704

 -----Original Message-----
From: Mark S Stimac  
Sent: Monday, July 11, 2005 3:50 PM
To: Mark F Miller
Subject: FW:  Case Z-704

You were not included with the original distribution.

-----Original Message-----
From: Cynthia A Stewart 
Sent: Monday, July 11, 2005 3:34 PM
To: John Szerlag; Brian P Murphy; Douglas J Smith; Mark S Stimac
Subject: FW: Case Z-704

-----Original Message-----
From: kjmertz@wowway.com [mailto:kjmertz@wowway.com] 
Sent: Thursday, July 07, 2005 9:33 PM
To: Louise Schilling; dave@lambert.net; rbeltram@wideopenwest.com; 
talk2cristina@aol.com; david@eisenbacher.org; Mfhowryl@umich.edu; stinejm@wwnet.net
Cc: Cynthia A Stewart
Subject: Case Z-704

Dear City Council Members,
I am writing you to express my concerns with the subject case and protest the rezoning 
that has been proposed.  As I am sure that you are aware this case proposes rezoning 
residential property from R1-E to B2.
It is my opinion that re-zoning this property and allowing commercial businesses to 
encroach residential areas will reduce the value of the surrounding properties.
In addition to the impact on the property values this will also likely increase traffic at
an already busy intersection.  It is already quite a task to turn left onto Rochester 
Road, if 2 or 3 cars are added due to the commercial traffic it will be a nightmare.
There are several vacant buildings, and more becoming vacant (Expo & Organized Living), in
the proximity that should be occupied prior to re-zoning residential property.
I hope that you will reconsider this proposal and deny the re-zoning request.
Sincerely,
Karl Mertz
883 Vanderpool
248-457-0832



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, July 18, 2005, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

Mr. Joel Arnold – First Baptist Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Howrylak 
 
Resolution #2005-07-353 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Howrylak’s absence at the Regular City Council and Closed 
Session meetings of July 18, 2005 is EXCUSED due to being out of the county. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) – Tacoma and Olympia Streets 
 
Resolution #2005-07-354 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Stine    
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy authorizes Tacoma and Olympia Streets 
be added to the activity list of CDBG projects for 2005; and 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That $27,000.00 of Year 2005 CDBG Funds BE RE-
PROGRAMMED from Section 36/Flood Drain Improvements to the Special Assessment activity 
description. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
C-2 Parking Variance – Maple Research Center – 1650 Research Drive 
  
Resolution #2005-07-355 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 
2. The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 

within a zoning district. 
 
3. The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 

zoning district. 
 

4. The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that the 
practical difficulties justifying the variances are: 
 
A. That absent a variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property; or 
 
B. That absent a variance, a significant natural feature would be negatively affected or 

destroyed; or 
 
C. That absent a variance, public health, safety and welfare would be negatively affected; or 
 
D. That literal enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the 

permitted use and makes conforming unnecessarily burdensome. In this regard, the City 
Council shall find that a lesser variance does not give substantial relief, and that the relief 
requested can be granted within the spirit of the Ordinance, and within the interests of 
public safety and welfare; 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds the above-stated general conditions to be present and finds 
the practical difficulty stated above to be operative in the appeal. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Joe Trinkle, representing 
Liberty Properties for waiver of 318 additional parking spaces at the development at 1650 
Research Drive be APPROVED. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 82 Miracle Drive 
 
Resolution #2005-07-356 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Dzubur Emir, 82 Miracle 
Drive, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit 
outdoor parking of a Ford cube van in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:30 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:37 PM. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

The meeting RECESSED at 10:32 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 10:44 PM. 
 
C-4 Preliminary Planned Unit Development Review – PUD-004 (The Monarch Private 

Residences) – North Side of Big Beaver Road – East of Alpine and West of 
McClure – Section 20 

 
Resolution #2005-07-357 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Stine   
 
WHEREAS, City Management, Planning Commission and City Planning Consultant have 
reviewed a Preliminary Plan for a Planned Unit Development and recommended approval 
thereof, pursuant to article 35.60.01, as requested by Big Beaver Alpine LLC for the Monarch 
Planned Unit Development (PUD-4), located on the north side of Big Beaver Road east of 
Alpine and west of McClure, located in Section 20, within the O-1, P-1 and R-1B Zoning 
Districts, being 5.85 acres in size. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The proposed PUD meets the location requirements 
set forth in Article 35.30.00, A and B.2; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Pursuant to Article 35.30.00.C, the applicant demonstrated 
quality objectives such as those referred to in Section 35.30.00-B-2. This includes a high quality 
of architectural design and materials, the provision of a higher quality of landscape materials, 
the provision of extensive pedestrian facilities and amenities; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Pursuant to Article 35.30.00.C.2, the applicant provides a 
mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted, including retail, high rise residential, 
town home residential and live-work units; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Pursuant to Article 35.30.00.C.3, the applicant provides a public 
improvement, or other facility used by the public, which could not otherwise be required, that 
would further the public health, safety, and welfare, or protect existing or future uses from the 
impacts of the proposed uses. The applicant will be making a number of improvements within 
the Big Beaver, Alpine, and McClure rights-of-way. Furthermore, the applicant is in the process 
of determining the feasibility of which of the following contributions will be made to the City: the 
purchase and donation of the two residential parcels north of the project and a financial 
commitment to implement the results of the Big Beaver Corridor Study, or some combination of 
these two; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Pursuant to Article 35.30.00.C.6, the applicant provides a 
complementary variety of housing types that is in harmony with the adjacent uses. This variety 
includes three housing types: high-rise residential, including luxury condominiums, with some 
penthouses, town homes and live-work units; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Pursuant to Article 35.30.00.C. 7, the PUD promotes the intent 
of the Future Land Use Plan, which generally calls for more intense uses on major 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

thoroughfares with less intense uses serving as transition areas between the more intense uses 
and single-family residential development; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Planned Unit Development consist of the a 
project manual, dated May 23, 2005, supplemental letter dated June 10, 2005, and Application 
Highlights and Amendments dated July 1, 2005 which contain narratives, reduced plans, and 
full size plans, including the following: 
 
Reduced plans and illustrations: 
Sheet L-1.1 Conceptual Landscape Plan (color) 
Sheet L-1.3  The Villas Landscape Elevations (color) 
Sheet C1.1  Topographic Survey 
Sheet C2.1  Tree Survey 
Sheet C3.1 Site Plan 
Sheet C4.1 Utility Plan 
Sheet C5.1  Grading Plan 
Sheet C6.1  Snow Removal Plan 
Sheet L-1.1 Conceptual Landscape Plan 
Sheet L-2 Tree Demolition Plan 
Sheet A2.0 Ground Level Floor Plan 
Sheet A-2.1  Building Plans Level 2 
Sheet A-2.2  Building Plans Level 3 
Sheet A-2.3 Building Plans Level 4 
Sheet A-2.4 Building Plans Level 5 
Sheet A-2.5  Building Plans Level 5.5 
Sheet A-2.6 Building Plans Level 6 
Sheet A-2.7  Building Plans Level 8 
Sheet A-2.8 Building Plans Level 19 
Sheet A-2.9  Building Plans Level 20 
Sheet A-3.0 Exterior Elevations 
Sheet A-3.1 Elevations 
Sheet A4.0 Unit Plans Levels 3-5, Levels 8-18 
Sheet A10.1  Somerset Bridge Conceptual 3D Study 
Sheet A10.1a Big Beaver Road Conceptual 3D Study 
Sheet A10.1b Alpine Street Conceptual 3D Study 
Sheet A10.2  Height Studies 
Sheet A-1 First Floor (Townhouse Units) 
Sheet A-2  Second Floor (Townhouse Units) 
Sheet A-3  Elevations 
Sheet A10.4 Sales Center & Signage Plan 
Sheet A10.5  Signage Site Plan 
Sheet A10.6  Signage Elevation 
(No number)  Exterior Materials (Tower Building) (color) 
(No number)  (No title - Villa Unit Exterior Materials) (color) 
Sheet L-1.2  Conceptual Lighting Plan 
(No number)  View From Somerset Bridge (color) 
(No number)  View From Big Beaver (color) 
(No number)  View From Alpine Street (color) 
(No number)  Big Beaver (South) Elevation (color) 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

(No number) North Elevation (color) 
(No number) Alpine Street (West) Elevation (color) 
(No number) Photo Montage Views from McClure Street (color) 
(No number) Photo Montage Views from Alpine Street (color) 
(No number)  Shadow Studies June 21st (color) 
(No number) Shadow Studies December 21st (color) 
  
Full Size Plans: 
Sheet C1.1 Topographic and boundary Survey 
Sheet C2.1 Tree Survey 
Sheet C3.1 Site Plan 
Sheet C4.1 Utility Plan 
Sheet C5.1 Grading Plan 
Sheet C6.1 Snow Removal Plan 
Sheet L-1.1 Conceptual Landscape Plan 
Sheet L-2 Tree Demolition Plan 
Sheet A-1 First Floor (Townhouse Units) 
Sheet A-2 Second Floor (Townhouse Units) 
Sheet A-3 Elevations, and 
  
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Council GRANTS PRELIMINARY APPROVAL to 
The Monarch Private Residences Planned Unit Development SUBJECT to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. That there is an appropriate public benefit; purchase of the two properties to the north or 

a donation to the City to implement the results of the Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
2. The auto courts and the circulation drive north of the auto courts shall be designated as 

fire lanes. No parking shall be permitted within the fire lanes at any time. 
3. Provide a connecting sidewalk from McClure to the northern tower entrance, on the 

south side of the drive that is north of the DADA parcel. 
4. Traffic for the parking garage will be accessed from Big Beaver. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution #3 and Bid Waiver: Option to Renew (1 Year) and 
Bid Waiver (2 Years) to Extend – Tree Removal Services Contract 

 
Resolution #2005-07-358 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Stine  
 
 WHEREAS, On August 9, 2004, a one-year contract with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year to provide Tree/Stump Removal Services on City-owned property, including ash 
trees was awarded to the low total bidder meeting specifications, J.H. Hart Urban Forestry of 
Sterling Heights, for an estimated annual cost of $1,500,000.00, at unit prices contained in the 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

bid tabulation opened July 30, 2004, and supplemental schedule of values (Resolution #2004-
08-400); 
 
WHEREAS, J.H. Hart Urban Forestry has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew and 
extend the contract from one to three years under the same pricing structure, terms, and 
conditions with rates increasing in year two by 2%. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and the option to renew and extend the contract is hereby EXERCISED with J.H. Hart Urban 
Forestry to provide Tree/Stump Removal Services on City-owned property at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened July 30, 2004 for three additional years, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with rates increasing at the 
beginning of year two by 2%; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the rates contained in the attached supplemental schedule of 
values as listed in Appendix I will be the same for year one of the option and limited to a 2% 
increase per man hour for year two, with equipment rates remaining the same. The entire 
contract shall expire December 31, 2008. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-07-359 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-5 which shall be considered after Consent Agenda (E) 
items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-07-359-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of July 11, 2005 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

E-3 City of Troy Proclamation 
 
Resolution #2005-07-359-E-3 

a) Proclamation Celebrating 50 Years – Woodside Bible Church 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolution 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution #4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreements – Truck Mounted Attenuator 
 
Resolution #2005-07-359-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide one truck mounted crash attenuator with arrow board 
vertical lift from Traffix Devices, Inc., is hereby APPROVED through Oakland County 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreements at an estimated total cost of  $16,524.00. 
 
E-6  Private Agreement for Crooks Retail II – Project No. 04.945.3 
 
Resolution #2005-07-359-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Crooks\Wilshire Associates, LLC is hereby 
APPROVED for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, water main, soil 
erosion, sidewalks and paving on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Consulting Services Agreement with the Troy School District – Baker Middle 

School 
 
Resolution #2005-07-359-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement between the City of Troy and the Troy School District for 
engineering services provided by our consultant, Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc. as part of 
the Baker Middle School project for a not-to-exceed lump sum fee of $10,000.00 and an 
additional $1,500.00 administrative fee with all costs to be paid for by the Troy School District is 
hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

E-5 Amend Resolution #2004-02-089 – Local Law Enforcement Block Grant (LLEBG) – 
Purchase of Iview-60 Digital Video and Audio Interoperability Server from Miri 
Microsystems for the Technology Support Team Satellite System 

 
Resolution #2005-07-360 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, On February 23, 2004, the Troy City Council accepted a grant and approved the 
purchase of Web-EOC software from ESI Acquisition Inc. (Resolution #2004-02-089); 
 
WHEREAS, The County gave the City EOC (E-team) software, since the City is an alternate 
emergency operations center for the County; and the State, County and City would be 
compatible which is considered a public safety enhancement;  
 
WHEREAS, Staff notified Council on December 20, 2004, in a Department Report that the grant 
funds would be redirected to a satellite communications system and the Bureau of Justice 
Assistance (BJA) who controls the grant funds approved the redirection;  
 
WHEREAS, The Fire Department bought a satellite system from Miri Microsystems in January 
2005 in the amount of $9,930.16 and the purchase of the Iview-60 Digital Video and Audio 
Interoperability Server by the Police Department at an estimated cost of $6,050.00 would put 
the total project cost over $10,000.00, which requires Council approval. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the use of LLEBG grant funds for the purchase 
of the Iview-60 Digital Video and Audio Interoperability Server from Miri Microsystems at an 
estimated cost of $6,050.00 is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Local Law Enforcement Block Grant is APPROVED 
and the expenditure of matching City funds in the amount of $2,109.00 is hereby 
AUTHORIZED. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26 – 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM 
 
Resolution #2005-07-361 
Moved by Broomfield    
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26  - 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM and AUTHORIZE City Council to 
EXTEND the adjournment time to 12:30 AM. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Historical Commission  

 
(a) Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled 

 
 
(b) City Council Appointments   

 
Resolution #2005-07-362 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Historical Commission  
Appointed by Council – (7) – 3 years 
 
Rosemary Kornacki Term Expires 07/31/08 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-2 Amendments to Chapter 26 – Parks – General Regulations 
 
Resolution #2005-07-363 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 26 - Parks-General Regulations is 
hereby ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration.  A copy of this ordinance shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

F-3 Bid Waiver – Purchase of One (1) 64,000 GVW Tandem Axle Dump Truck 
 
Resolution #2005-07-364 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, On April 4, 2005, a contract to purchase four (4) tandem axle dump trucks were 
awarded to the low total bidders, Bi-State Sterling Truck Center of Toledo, OH and Monroe 
Truck Equipment of Flint, MI, at an estimated total cost of $327,588.00 and $190,748.00 
respectively (Resolution #2005-04-149-E18); 
 
WHEREAS, Bi-State Sterling Truck Center of Toledo, OH and Monroe Truck Equipment of Flint, 
MI have agreed to extend the pricing for one additional tandem axle dump truck (model year 
2006), even though they have experienced a 4% increase since the time of the original bid.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and a contract to provide one (1) tandem axle dump truck is hereby AWARDED to Bi-State 
Sterling Truck Center of Toledo, OH and Monroe Truck Equipment of Flint, MI for an estimated 
cost of $81,897.00 and $47,687.00 respectively, for an estimated total cost of $129,584.00. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-4 Traffic Committee Recommendations – June 15, 2005 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  

 
a) Creation of a T-Intersection at Glyndebourne/Chalgrove and a 4-Way Intersection 

at Glyndebourne/Dalesford, and Make Glyndebourne/Dalesford an All-Way STOP-
Controlled Intersection 

 
RESOLVED, That a Traffic Control Order BE ISSUED to modify the Glyndebourne/Chalgrove/ 
Dalesford intersection to create a T-intersection at Glyndebourne/Chalgrove and a 4-way 
intersection at Glyndebourne/Dalesford, and make Glyndebourne/Dalesford an all-way STOP-
controlled intersection. 
 
b) Make Northbound Right Through Lane of Rochester at Big Beaver into a Through 

and Right-Turn Lane, and NO “No Turn on Red” Sign for Northbound Rochester at 
Big Beaver 

 
RESOLVED, That a Traffic Control Order BE ISSUED to make the northbound right through 
lane of Rochester at Big Beaver into a through and right-turn lane, providing one exclusive and 
one shared right-turn lane onto Big Beaver at this intersection, with painted solid white lines and 
signage to direct traffic, and NO “No turn on Red” sign for northbound Rochester at Big Beaver. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

c) No Changes be Made to the Intersection at Coolidge and Maple 
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made to the intersection at Coolidge and Maple. 

d) No Changes be Made at Pine Hill at Bronson and Rouge Circle 
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made at Pine Hill at Bronson and Rouge Circle. 

e) Replacement of YIELD Signs with STOP Signs on Scone at Fredmoor 
 
RESOLVED, That a Traffic Control Order BE ISSUED for replacement of YIELD signs with 
STOP signs on Scone at Fredmoor. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-07-365 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That a) Creation of a T-Intersection at Glyndebourne/Chalgrove and a 4-Way 
Intersection at Glyndebourne/Dalesford, and Make Glyndebourne/Dalesford an All-Way STOP-
Controlled Intersection be REFERRED back to the Traffic Committee for further review. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
a) Creation of a T-Intersection at Glyndebourne/Chalgrove and a 4-Way Intersection 

at Glyndebourne/Dalesford, and Make Glyndebourne/Dalesford an All-Way STOP-
Controlled Intersection 

 
Resolution #2005-07-366a 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  

 
RESOLVED, That Creation of a T-Intersection at Glyndebourne/Chalgrove and a 4-Way 
Intersection at Glyndebourne/Dalesford, and Make Glyndebourne/Dalesford an All-Way STOP-
Controlled Intersection be REFERRED back to the Traffic Committee for further review. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

b) Make Northbound Right Through Lane of Rochester at Big Beaver into a Through 
and Right-Turn Lane, and NO “No Turn on Red” Sign for Northbound Rochester at 
Big Beaver 

 
Resolution #2005-07-366b 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
  
RESOLVED, That  Traffic Control Order #05-02-MR BE ISSUED to make the northbound 
right through lane of Rochester at Big Beaver into a through and right-turn lane, providing one 
exclusive and one shared right-turn lane onto Big Beaver at this intersection, with painted solid 
white lines and signage to direct traffic, and NO “No Turn on Red” sign for northbound 
Rochester at Big Beaver. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
c) No Changes be Made to the Intersection at Coolidge and Maple 
 
Resolution #2005-07-366c 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made to the intersection at Coolidge and Maple. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
d) No Changes be Made at Pine Hill at Bronson and Rouge Circle 
 
Resolution #2005-07-366d 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made at Pine Hill at Bronson and Rouge Circle. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
e) Replacement of YIELD Signs with STOP Signs on Scone at Fredmoor 
 
Resolution #2005-07-366e 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #05-06-SS BE ISSUED for replacement of YIELD 
signs with STOP signs on Scone at Fredmoor. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-5 Revision to Chapter 19 - Sanitary Sewer Service to Eliminate Connection 

Requirement 
 
Resolution #2005-07-367 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That City Administration is DIRECTED TO DEVELOP amendment language to 
Ordinance Chapter 19 that would eliminate the 18-month sanitary sewer connection 
requirement, as outlined in the memorandum from City Staff; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Administration is DIRECTED TO PREPARE cost 
estimates for installing sanitary sewers, utilizing the Benefit Fee approach, throughout the City 
where properties are currently not serviced by sanitary sewers. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Stine  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26 – 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM 
 
Resolution #2005-07-368 
Moved by Stine     
Seconded by Schilling    
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26  - 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM and AUTHORIZE City Council to 
EXTEND the adjournment time to 12:45 AM. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Rezoning Application – 600 Stephenson Highway, East Side of Stephenson Highway, 

North of Fourteen Mile Road, Section 35 – R-C to O-1 (Z-703) – August 1, 2005  
b) Rezoning Application – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care Center, Northwest Corner 

of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 (Z 180-B) – August 1, 2005 
c) Rezoning Application – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of Vanderpool, West of 

Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to B-2 (Z-704) – August 1, 
2005 

Noted and Filed 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Green Memorandums Submitted 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – June 1, 2005  
b) Planning Commission/Draft – June 14, 2005  
c) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 28, 2005  
d) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Draft – June 29, 2005 
e) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – July 6, 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Building Permits Issued During the Month of June, 2005  
b) Building Permits Issued January through June, 2005  
c) Building Permits Issued July 2004 through June 2005 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:   
a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Patrick M. Cleary Thanking Public Service Aide 

Jackie Sherwin for Her Helpfulness and Courteousness 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Update on the Transit Center at Midtown Square 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 18, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

J-7  Depletion of RCOC (Road Commission for Oakland County) Road Maintenance 
Funds 

 
J-8  Public Management Article 
 
J-9  Example of Allowable Accessory Structures Based upon Final Action on ZOTA 

215A 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session  
 
Resolution #2005-07-369 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (d), Boulan Park Property. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 12:45 AM on Tuesday, July 19, 2005. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 12:54 AM on Tuesday, July 19, 2005. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 12:55 AM on Tuesday, July 19, 2005. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



July 19, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager / Finance and Administration 

Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager / Services 
Stephen Pallotta, Building Operations Director 
Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 

RE:  Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Two-Year Renewal Option – 
Janitorial Services 

 
RECOMMENDATION   
On October 20, 2003, City management recommended a split award to the low bidders for janitorial 
services for each group of similar type buildings at an estimated annual cost of $564,645.08 and was 
approved by City Council Resolution #2003-10-533.  The contracts expiring October 30, 2005, contain an 
option to renew for two additional years under the same terms and conditions.  The contract included a 
provision for a price increase of the lower of the CPI Inflation Calculator or the Urban CPI for the Detroit/ 
Ann Arbor Area between the base year and the renewal year (6% and 3.5% respectively – copy of CPI’s 
attached).  All awarded bidders have agreed to renew the contract with a 3.5% increase.  The pricing for 
the optional contract period follows: 
 
Group Vendor Current –  

2 Year Contract 
Annual Cost 

Contract Option - 
2 Years @ 3.5% CPI 
Annual Cost 

Group 1: 
Main Campus 

Road Runr  
Maintenance, Inc. 

$ 482,018.73 $498,889.39 

Group 2: 
Garage Facilities 

Elite Maintenance $   17,376.60 $  17,984.78 

Group 3: 
Enrichment Facilities 

American Cleaning $   29,448.80 $  30,479.51 

Group 4: 
Fire Sites 

Elite Maintenance $   26,025.75 $  26,936.66 

Group 5: 
Golf Courses and 
Engineering Field Office 

This Is It! Quality  
Cleaning Service Inc. 

$     9,775.20 $  10,117.34 

 Total Cost: $564,645.08 $584,407.68 
 
BACKGROUND 
The split award allowed not only a lower overall contract cost over awarding to a low total bidder 
($571,976.49), but smaller companies were able to participate in the process who have less overhead 
costs, and allowed the individual building managers to form a partnership with the companies to achieve 
a better final product.  In the past, smaller buildings often had a problem with employee turnover since 
good employees were sometimes re-assigned to the main campus area or to cover absenteeism and it 
was difficult to default the main contractor for a deficiency at a small off-campus site. 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
Companies responding to the market survey indicated various market conditions affecting their business 
including increases in supply, supervision, training, and fuel costs.  Although the companies indicated that 
the market is still competitive, the prices the City obtained in the bid process were very competitive and 
even with the CPI allowable increase are still in the City’s best interest. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for janitorial services for all locations are available in the facility’s operating account #7802.110 for 
custodial contractors.    

bittnera
Text Box
E-04a



 
DATE:       July 15, 2005 

 
TO: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:      Linda N. Bockstanz, Associate Buyer 
 
RE: MARKET SURVEY – Janitorial Services 
Company  Contact Phone Number  Response 
OMNI Facility 
 

Ron Zacharias 248-483-3170 
 

Supplies will be going up about 10%.  The average square foot price for the City 
of Troy would be about $.07 to $.125.  If prices per square were lower – then 
service would be limited on duties.  Wages are about the same ($7.50 to $8.00 
per hour).  Cost of fuel will impact later, but for right now – fuel cost are not 
considered. 
 

Giant Janitorial 
Service Inc. 

Peter Huthwaite 313-886-7797 Wages are lower, but training and supervision wage costs are higher. Supplies 
have gone up about 20%. Cost of fuel – if stays high - will impact prices.  
Average janitorial costs are about 8 to 9 cents per square foot. Need Bid Bonds 
and Performance Bonds on our Bids. The City also needs to limit causal labor 
costs – instead of 8 hr days, maybe 5 hr days – (3 hrs in the morning and 2 hrs 
in the afternoon.) 
 

Saber Commercial 
Cleaning & Supply 

Mr. J. Saber 248-650-4930 Market is average to slow for Janitorial Services.  Average cost per square foot 
is 8 to 10 cents.  Fuel cost will soon impact their Company and costs will go up.  
They have invested in new equipment for the Company, quieter vacuums and 
cleaning machines. 
 

Clean Care, Inc and 24/ 
7/ 365, Inc 
 

Garfield Goulais 248-414-3880 Hiring wages are lower.  Competition is high and there is need for work and jobs.  
Current Janitorial Services costs per square foot range from $.075 to $.20.   
The City needs to limit our Casual Labor – that would save us money. (Called 
back on 7/13/05) 
 

At Your Service 
Cleaning Contractors 
Inc. 

Kim Graham 810-715-1100 New equipment and prices may go up due to fuel cost for their staff to travel from 
company to company.  Hiring wages were lowered to keep competition going 
between Companies. 



Janitorial Renewal Option 
Market Survey 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Kristel Cleaning Inc. Ms.Arben Pllumaj 586-286-1202 Have lowered their costs, because their Company needs the work.  Hiring 

wages were lowered. 
 

Hi-Tech Building  
Services, Inc. 

Brian Hogan 616-662-1623 x 321 Costs are staying the same for some companies.  Others will lower their costs 
to get work.  Need the work and jobs - competition high. 
 

Corporate Cleaning 
Services LLC 
 

Abraham Benson 248-569-8165 Left Messages 7/12, 7/13, 7/14, & 7/15  - no response. 

 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offer to renew the contracts for Janitorial Services with various 
vendors based on the following: 

 
• Overhead Costs 

More than one company indicated that supply costs have increased 10% to 20%.  Many cleaning products (such as detergents) including the 
plastic packaging are derivatives of crude oil as well as product transportation.  Costs for some companies are increasing due to staff 
transportation and fuel costs to travel between cleaning sites.  Overhead costs such as fuel and supplies affect final contract pricing for all 
bidders.    
 

• Even when hiring wages were lowered, costs have increased for Training and Supervision, and new equipment. 
 
• Cost per Square Foot 

Three companies indicated that current square foot costs for Janitorial Services range on the low side from $.07, $.075, $.08 to a high of $.10. 
$.125, and $.20 respectively.  Road Runr Maintenance holds the bulk of the contract (Group 1) with prices currently ranging from $.055 to 
$.0825 per square foot (.05665 to .085 with the contract allowable 3.5% CPI increase).  Road Runr’s awarded estimated annual total is 
$482,018.73; $498,889.39 with the allowable CPI increase of 3.5%.  The next low bidder in the process was at $510,953.88 or 6% higher. 
 

Group Site Square Footage Current  
Square Foot Cost 

Revised Pricing – 
Allowable –  
CPI Increase  

1 City Hall and Police Dept. 86,388 $.055 $.0569 
1 District Court 29,000 $.07 $.072 
1 Community Center 97,835 $.0825 $.085 
1 Library 44,500 $.055 $.0569 



Janitorial Renewal Option 
Market Survey 
Page 3 of 3 

Group Site Square Footage Current  
Square Foot Cost 

Revised Pricing – 
Allowable –  
CPI Increase  

2 DPW Facility   9,500 $.1166 $.1207 
2 P&R Garage   1,781 $.1911 $.1978 
3 Museum  10,846 $.08 $.0828 
3 Nature Center   8,184 $.08 $.0828 
4 Fire Stations 1-6 14,329 $.1051 to $.1169 $.1088 
4 Training Center   6,915 $.0835 $.0864 
5 Golf Courses Maintenance Bldgs. 

And Engineering Field Office 
  3,826 $.10 $.1035 

5 Golf Courses Pro Shops   2,700  $.16 $.1656 
 Note:  Cleaning frequency changes 

by site for the smaller buildings 
   

 
 

• The two companies (Kristel Cleaning and High Tech) that reported increased competition were considerably higher in price during the bid 
process.  Road Runr’s price (lowest total bidder) is lower by 15% and 19% respectively than these two companies.  The City experienced 
even greater savings by splitting the award to the lowest bidder for each individual Group.  These two companies would have to lower 
their prices a minimum of 11.5% just to be competitive with the renewal pricing. 

 
• Two Companies reported a savings potential if Casual Labor hours are reduced.  Building Operations staff is reviewing the potential for 

savings.   
 

SUMMARY: 
 
As OMNI Facility noted in their comments, “If prices per square foot were lower – then service would be limited on duties”, our experience 
indicates that if contract prices are under bid the cleanliness and appearance of the buildings suffers.  Currently, all buildings are looking clean 
and presentable.  The individual City building representatives report a good working relationship with their individual cleaning company and 
are happy with service levels.  The original bid was awarded on a split award basis to achieve the greatest savings.  Costs for fuel, supplies, 
and labor have increased as indicated by the Consumer Price Index.  No benefit would be gained by re-bidding at this time since the adjusted 
price will then be firm for the next two years.  Prices for such things as crude oil that affect this contract are expected to continue to increase. 
 

 
 











































  July 13, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
   
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item -Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low 

Bidder – Major Street Pavement Marking 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On July 8, 2005, two (2) bids were received for Major Street Pavement Marking. 
City management recommends awarding a two-year contract with an option to 
renew for one additional year to the low total bidder, P.K. Contracting, Inc., 1965 
Barrett Rd Troy, MI 48084, for an estimated cost of $63,179.00 for the first year 
and $66,435.00 for the second year.  Unit prices for the contract are contained in 
the attached bid tabulation.  The award is contingent upon the recommended 
vendor’s submission of proper contract and bid documents, including bonds, 
insurance certificates and all specified requirements. 
 
In addition, the Public Works Department requests authorization to change the 
quantity of work, as needed, within budgetary constraints not to exceed 25% of 
the estimated contract amount each year. 
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are available in the 2005-2006 operating budget for “Major Markings-
Contractual Services,” Account # 477.7802.070.  
 
 
24 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
  2 Bid Responses Received 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Marina Basta/Farouk, Project Construction Manager  
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-04b



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-29
Opening Date -- 7/8/05 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 7/13/05 STREET PAVEMENT MARKINGS

VENDOR NAME: *
Check Number 967255825-5 101864744
Check Amount 2,500.00 2,500.00

ITEM EST QTY Year 1 Year 2 Year 1 Year 2
# Lineal Feet      DESCRIPTION Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price

PROPOSAL A
1) 174,232 Sprayable Thermo Plastic  4"Solid white 0.076$          0.08$              0.12$            0.12$            
2) 56,650 Sparyable Thermo Plastic 4" Skip white 0.076$          0.08$              0.12$            0.12$            
3) 295,922 Sprayable Thermo Plastic 4" Solid Yellow 0.076$          0.08$              0.12$            0.12$            
4) 34,014 Sprayable Thermo Plastic  4"Skip Yellow 0.076$          0.08$              0.12$            0.12$            
5) 1,000 Removal/Pavement Marking 4"Yellow/White 0.35$            0.35$              1.00$            1.00$            

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF PROPOSAL A: 42,972.17$  45,215.44$    68,298.16$   68,298.16$  
PROPOSAL A -GRAND TOTAL- 2 YEARS Estimated 88,187.61$     Estimated 136,596.32$ 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 1 Year 2
PROPOSAL B Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price

1) 500 4" Solid White 0.20$            0.20$              0.12$            0.12$            
2) 500 4" Skip White 0.20$            0.20$              0.12$            0.12$            
3) 500 4" Solid Yellow 0.20$            0.20$              0.12$            0.12$            
4) 500 4" Skip Yellow 0.20$            0.20$              0.12$            0.12$            

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF PROPOSAL B: $400.00 $400.00 $240.00 $240.00
PROPOSAL B -GRAND TOTAL- 2 YEARS Estimated $800.00 Estimated $480.00

Year 1 Year 2 Year 1 Year 2
PROPOSAL C Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price

1) 2 ea School Legend 43.75$          45.95$            60.00$          60.00$          
2) 35 ea Only Legend 28.75$          30.25$            50.00$          50.00$          
3) 35 ea Right Arrow & Left Arrow 28.75$          30.25$            50.00$          50.00$          
4) 2 ea Straight Left Turn or Right Turn 46.25$          48.50$            75.00$          75.00$          
5) 200 L.F. Stop bars (Local Rd.) - 12" 1.25$            1.30$              2.00$            2.00$            
6) 330 L.F. Stop bars (Major Rd.) - 24" 2.50$            2.65$              4.00$            4.00$            
7) 450 L.F. Cross walk (Major Rd.) -24" 2.50$            2.65$              4.00$            4.00$            

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF PROPOSAL C: $4,392.50 $4,633.40 $7,290.00 $7,290.00
PROPOSAL C -GRAND TOTAL- 2 YEARS Estimated $9,025.90 Estimated $14,580.00

Year 1 Year 2 Year 1 Year 2
PROPOSAL D Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price

1) 2 ea School Legend 88.75$          93.15 75.00$          75.00$          
2) 48 ea Only Legend 57.50$          60.35 60.00$          60.00$          
3) 48 ea Right Arrow & Left Arrow 51.50$          54 55.00$          55.00$          
4) 2 ea Straight left turn or right turn 98.25$          103 75.00$          75.00$          
5) 200 L.F. Stop bars (Local Rd.) - 12" 2.50$            2.65 2.20$            2.20$            
6) 330 L.F. Stop bars (Major Rd.) - 24" 5.00$            5.25 4.40$            4.40$            
7) 450 L.F. Cross walk (Major Rd.) -24" 5.00$            5.25 4.40$            4.40$            

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF PROPOSAL D: $10,006.00 $10,506.10 $9,692.00 $9,692.00
PROPOSAL D -GRAND TOTAL- 2 YEARS Estimated $20,512.10 Estimated $19,384.00

Year 1 Year 2 Year 1 Year 2
PROPOSAL E Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price

1) 2 ea School Legend 292.00$        306.00$          250.00$        250.00$        
2) 6 ea Only Legend 165.00$        175.00$          130.00$        130.00$        
3) 3 ea Right Arrow & Left Arrow 149.00$        156.00$          122.00$        122.00$        
4) 2 ea Straight left turn or right turn 262.50$        275.00$          225.00$        225.00$        
5) 100 L.F. Stop bars (Local Rd.) - 12" 5.72$            6.00$              7.00$            7.00$            
6) 100 L.F. Stop bars (Major Rd.) - 24" 11.45$          12.00$            12.00$          12.00$          
7) 100 L.F. Cross walk (Major Rd.) -24" 11.45$          12.00$            12.00$          12.00$          

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF PROPOSAL E: $5,408.00 $5,680.00 $5,196.00 $5,196.00
PROPOSAL E -GRAND TOTAL- 2 YEARS Estimated $11,088.00 Estimated $10,392.00

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTALS   A  - E 63,178.67$  66,434.94$    90,716.16$   90,716.16$  

PK CONTRACTING R&S CONTRACTING



PROPOSAL A TO E -GRAND TOTAL- 2 YEARS * 129,613.61$  181,432.32$

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-29
Opening Date -- 7/8/05 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 7/13/05 STREET PAVEMENT MARKINGS

VENDOR NAME: *
 

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:
Cannot Meet - but offers BLANK
Can Meet XX

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE: 25 YEARS 23 YEARS

INSURANCE:
Cannot Meet
Can Meet XX XX

LIST OF EQUIPMENT Yes or No YES YES

PREQUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS:
MDOT Classification: N-3 N-3
Company Numerical Rating: 68283 $7,800,000

TERMS: NET 30 N/30

WARRANTY: PER BID BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No YES YES

PROPOSAL - TWO(2) YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF MAJOR STREET PAVEMENT MARKING WITH AN OPTION
TO RENEW FOR ONE ADDITIONAL YEAR

ATTEST: * DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
 Marina Basta-Farouk
 Tom Rosewarne
 Debra Painter
 Susan Leirstein _______________________________

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G: ITB-COT 05-29 Street Pavement Marking

PK CONTRACTING R&S CONTRACTING







bittnera
Text Box
E-04c





July 22, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   
FROM: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Charles Craft, Chief of Police 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Director of Public Works 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low 

Bidder – Portable Radio Maintenance and Repair 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On July 11, 2005, bids were opened for a three-year contract, with an option to 
renew for one additional year, for portable radio maintenance and repair.  City 
management recommends an award be made to the low bidder, Cynergy 
Wireless of Troy, MI, for an estimated total three-year cost of $26,550.00, or 
$8,850.00 annually plus parts with discounts of 10%, at unit prices contained in 
the attached bid tabulation.  The contract will expire July 31, 2008. 
 
The award is contingent upon contractor submission of proper contract and bid 
documents including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Police Department, Fire Department and Department of Public Works 
require maintenance and repair of their inventories of portable transceivers.  The 
radios are used in the field for both routine and critical communications.  A single 
local vendor with qualified technicians guarantees prompt radio repair and return 
to service.     
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are available for this service contract from various departmental operating 
budgets for Communications (7850).  
 
 
77 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
  3 Bid Responses Rec’d 
  3 No Bids:  (3) Companies were not interested at this time. 
 
 
Prepared by:  Cathy Brandimore, Police Communications Manager  
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-04d



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-19
Opening Date -- 7/11/05 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 7/19/2005 PORTABLE RADIO SERVICE MAINT & REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: *

HOURLY LABOR COST: "TIERED PRICING"

ESTIMATED:   150 Hours Annually 59.00$         75.00$        128.00$               
ESTIMATED TOTAL: * 8,850.00$    11,250.00$ 19,200.00$          

PARTS: (DISCOUNT)
MOTOROLA 10% 15% 0%
RADIUS 10% 15% 0%

PRICE LIST: MOTOROLA CATALOG 7/11/05

PICKUP SERVICE: -$             -$            N/A

DELIVERY SERVICE: -$             -$            UPS

Service Location TROY, MICHIGAN FARMINGTON HILLS, MI ROCHESTER HILLS, MI
Hours of Operations 8-5pm Mon-Fri 8-5pm Mon-Fri 8:30am-5pm
24 Hr Phone Number Attached to Bid (248)476-0403 (248)853-5430

PARTS INVENTORY:
  MOTOROLA 20,000$        2,500$        N/A

RADIUS 20,000$        1,500$        N/A

DELIVERY REQUIREMENT: CYNERGY REP ADVANCED WIRELESS

EQUIPMENT INSPECTION:
Y - YES  N - NO NO NO NO
DATE INSPECTED

LOANER PROGRAM:
Y - YES  N - NO NO YES, Limited
COST $ Motorola Rental Program

TEST EQUIPMENT:
Y - YES  N - NO Attached to Bid YES YES

FACILITY REQUIREMENTS:
Y - YES  N - NO YES YES UPON SITE VISIT

INSURANCE: CAN MEET XX XX XX
CANNOT MEET

BAILEE'S COVERAGE:
CAN PROVIDE XX XX ATTACHED TO BID
CANNOT PROVIDE

COMPANY YEARS OF EXPERIENCE: 50 YEARS 15 YEARS 10 YEARS

PERSONNEL: List Marked as: APPENDIX K ATTACHMENT A SUPPLIED UPON REQUEST

TERMS:

WARRANTY: 90 DAYS 30 DAYS

DELIVERY TURNAROUND: BLANK BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK ATTACHED TO BID

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y-Yes  N-No YES YES YES

ATTEST: * DENOTES LOW BIDDER NO BIDS:
 Charlene McComb Bearcom Wireless
 Russell Wiepert Priority One Emergency
 Linda Bockstanz Tele-Rad, Inc

__________________________
Jeanette Bennett

G:\ITB-COT 05-19 PORTABLE RADIO MAINT & REPAIR Purchasing Director

$10/Day or $30/Wk

NET 30 NET 30

NO

NET 30 DAYS

ONE YEAR PARTS

PER BID

UPS DELIVERY ONLY

CYNERGY WIRELESS

MOTOROLA July 3, 2004

ADVANCED WIRELESS
TELECOM

SUPPLIED UPON AWARD

COMSOURCE INC









bittnera
Text Box
E-05





















July 20, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement 

for Watermain, Tepel Land, L.L.C. – Sidwell #88-20-26-479-040, 
039 & 038 

 
As part of the expansion of a building located in Section 26 on the northwest 
corner of John R and Birchwood (1725 John R), and including two vacant parcels 
to the west along Birchwood, the Real Estate & Development Department has 
received an easement for watermain from the property owners Tepel Land, LLC.  
The consideration on this document is $1.00 
  
Management recommends that City Council accept the attached easement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 

bittnera
Text Box
E-06



 
 
 

Sidwell #88-20-26-479-040, 039 & 038 
1725 John R 

 

 

 88-20-26-479-038 & 039

88-20-479-040 









bittnera
Text Box
E-07























bittnera
Text Box
E-08













bittnera
Text Box
E-09













bittnera
Text Box
E-10





bittnera
Text Box
E-11









  July 20, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration  

Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager /Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

 Carol K. Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation 
   
Subject: Agenda Item - Bid Waiver –  

Purchase of Thirteen Treadmills for the Troy Community Center  
 
RECOMMENDATION  
On January 10, 2005, Troy City Council approved a contract to purchase and 
install new physical fitness equipment at the Community Center from the lowest 
bidder meeting specifications, All Pro Exercise, Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI. 
(Resolution #2005-01-023-E4) All Pro Exercise, Inc. has agreed to provide the 
Community Center with thirteen (13) additional Precor treadmills at the original 
bid price of $4,495.00 for each treadmill and $225.00 each for the three-year 
maintenance agreement, less (13) trade-ins at $800.00 each for an estimated 
net cost of $50,960.00.  City management recommends the purchase of fitness 
equipment from All-Pro Exercise, Inc., the only authorized Precor dealer in 
Michigan.   
 
BACKGROUND 
In March 2002, the Community Center opened a fitness room, which included 
thirteen (13) Life Fitness treadmills.  Based on the maintenance we have done on 
the initial purchase of treadmills, the normal cycle to replace this type of 
equipment is three years.  The Life Fitness equipment is encountering more 
needed repairs, which results in more equipment downtime due to waiting for 
parts.  This also includes additional costly repairs.    
 
The City recently purchased eight (8) Precor treadmills from All-Pro Exercise, 
Inc. in March 2005, which are currently in use at the Community Center.  Other 
facilities that use Precor treadmills are in the Township of Canton, more than ten 
YMCA’s, the Jewish Community Center and others.  All Pro has provided 
excellent service with a 24-hour response time. 
 
WHY PURCHASE THIS EQUIPMENT 
 Touch Sensitive control board has greater reliability & functionality  
 Patented design integrated “foot plant technology” much less joint stress 
 Strongly recommended by users 
 Ease of use and familiarity to users 
 Used more, repaired less 
 Wider population range of users, then other cardio equipment.  

 
1 of 2 

bittnera
Text Box
E-12



July 20, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Waiver – Purchase and Trade-In of Treadmills 
 
 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
Several fitness equipment vendors were contacted to see if they would accept a 
trade-in if new equipment was purchased.  The response received indicated 
willingness to trade-in, but at a reduced rate ranging from $175 - $300 per unit 
verses the $800 All Pro Exercise will allow.   
  
BUDGET    
Funds are available in the Community Center Capital Account for Annex 
Equipment #401755.7978.045.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: John Hug Gym/Fitness Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 



Quotation

Quantity Item Description Unit Price Extension
13.00Precor C956i Treadmill-List $7195.00 4,495.00 58,435.00
13.00Precor W899303 3/3TreadExtndWrnty - List $525 225.00 2,925.00
13.00 Life Fitness TR9500 Next 800.00 -10,400.00

Generation Treadmills-Ser#'s
HTL351356,HTL351359

All-Pro Exercise, Inc.
24166 Haggerty Road
Farmington Hills, MI  48335
248-442-7777

Quote Number:
m134

Quote Date:
Jul 11, 2005

Sales Rep

Quoted to:
Troy Community Center
3179 Livernois
Troy, MI  48098
248 524-3484

Good Thru

8/10/05

Customer ID Payment Terms

Page:

TroyCC Net 30 Days D.Smith

1

Total 50,960.00
Sales Tax

Subtotal 50,960.00





CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-41
Opening Date -- 11-18-04 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 12/13/04 PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT

VENDOR NAME: * ALL PRO *     ALL PRO FITNESS
EXERCISE     EXERCISE THINGS INC

"A" "B"
PROPOSAL: PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT FOR TROY COMMUNITY CENTER AND POLICE DEPARTMENT

DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
PROPOSAL A:

COMMUNITY CENTER
Eight (8) Treadmills, Precor 956i 4,495.00$                (3,795.00)$               4,676.40$                
or approved alternate * 35,960.00$              DMS DMS

Ouoting on: 956i L9 CARDIO 530T PROT
Manufactured by: PRECOR LANDICE CYBEX
Dimensions: EXACT SPECS 32"X82" 32wX79L

MAINTENANCE:
Year 1: N/C N/C N/C
Year 2: * 900.00$                   900.00$                   N/C
Year 3: * 900.00$                   900.00$                   N/C

Total for Proposal A: 37,760.00$              DMS DMS
(32,160.00)$             (37,411.20)$             

PROPOSAL B:
POLICE WEIGHT ROOM
Furnish and install Fitness Equipment 
in accordance with specifications

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 29,066.00$              $    *      26,700.00 28,738.45$              

LESS:         Equipment Trade-in (1,500.00)$               $    *     (1,500.00) (1,500.00)$               

     NET TOTAL for Proposal B: 27,566.00$              $    *      25,200.00 27,238.45$              

OPTIONAL EQUIPMENT
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 8,168.00$                $    *        8,178.00 11,484.92$              

GRAND TOTAL OF A, B, & OPTIONAL EQUIPMT. 73,494.00$              N/A N/A

SCHEDULE OF VALUES:           Y or N YES YES YES

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE:      Y or N YES YES YES

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX
Cannot meet

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:
No later than 80 days 80 days 60 days

SITE INSPECTION: Police DATE 9/9/04 9/9/04 11/5/04
Comm. Ctr DATE 9/2/04 9/2/04 11/5/04

TERMS: NET 30 NET 30 NET 30 DAYS

WARRANTY: Police Equipment ATTACHED TO BID ATTACHED TO BID 3 YEARS



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-41
Opening Date -- 11-18-04 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 12/13/04 PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT

VENDOR NAME: * ALL PRO *   ALL PRO FITNESS
EXERCISE    EXERCISE THINGS INC

"A" "B"

2 WEEKS - CARDO 2 WEEKS
DELIVERY: 4-10 WKS-STRENGTH 4-10 WEEKS 60 DAYS

EXCEPTIONS: LISTED IN BID LISTED IN BID BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed Y / N YES YES YES

ADDENDUM 1 Y or N YES YES YES

NO BID:
  Cannon Sports Inc
  Rainbow Sports & Trophies * DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER

ATTEST:
  Donald Ostrowski _______________________
  John Hug Jeanette Bennett
  Cheryl Morrell Purchasing Director
  Linda Bockstanz

G: ITB-COT 04-41 Physical Fitness Equipment



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-41
Opening Date -- 11-18-04 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 12/13/04 PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT

VENDOR NAME: SOURCELINQ EXERCISE WATE-MAN
WAREHOUSE FITNESS EQUIP

DMS DMS DMS
PROPOSAL: PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT FOR TROY COMMUNITY CENTER AND POLICE DEPARTMENT

DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
PROPOSAL A:

COMMUNITY CENTER
Eight (8) Treadmills, Precor 956i (3,794.00)$              (3,999.00)$               (3,995.00)$               
or approved alternate DMS DMS DMS

SUPER TREAD
Ouoting on: 6310 L9 ST-4600HRT
Manufactured by: SPORTS ART LANDICE NORAMCO
Dimensions: BLANK BLANK 34"X90"

MAINTENANCE:
Year 1: -$                        0 -$                         
Year 2: -$                        0 350.00$                   
Year 3: 1,000.00$               0 550.00$                   

Total for Proposal A: DMS DMS DMS
(31,352.00)$            (31,992.00)$             (32,860.00)$             

PROPOSAL B:
POLICE WEIGHT ROOM
Furnish and install Fitness Equipment 
in accordance with specifications (23,488.00)$            

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: DMS NO BID NO BID

LESS:         Equipment Trade-in (500.00)$                 

     NET TOTAL for Proposal B: DMS NO BID NO BID
(22,988.00)$            

OPTIONAL EQUIPMENT
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: (7,624.00)$              NO BID NO BID

GRAND TOTAL OF A, B, & OPTIONAL EQUIPMT. DMS N/A N/A

(61,964.00)$            
SCHEDULE OF VALUES:           Y or N YES NO NO

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE:      Y or N YES YES YES

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX
Cannot meet

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:
No later than BLANK 14 days 30 days

SITE INSPECTION: Police DATE NO NO NO
Comm. Ctr DATE NO 10/25/04 NO

2% 10 Days
TERMS: BLANK NET 30 Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: Police Equipment BLANK N/A N/A



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-41
Opening Date -- 11-18-04 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 12/13/04 PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT

VENDOR NAME: SOURCELINQ EXERCISE WATE-MAN
WAREHOUSE FITNESS EQUIP

DMS DMS DMS

DELIVERY: 20 DAYS BLANK BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: ATTACHED TO BID BLANK ATTACHED TO BID

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed Y / N YES YES YES

ADDENDUM 1 Y or N NO NO NO

G: ITB-COT 04-41 Physical Fitness Equipment







 
 
 
 
 
 
 

July 25, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  
RE: AGENDA ITEM - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO PAY CLOSING COST,  
SAOUD JAMO AND NIDHAL JAMO, 2907 THAMES, SIDWELL #88-20-25-229-
001, BIG BEAVER, ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE ROAD PROJECT #01.105.5 
 
 
As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to 
Dequindre, the Real Estate & Development Department has reached an agreement 
with Saoud Jamo and Nidhal Jamo, to purchase property at 2907 Thames, having 
Sidwell #88-20-25-229-001. Unfortunately, due to some mortgage complications, the 
property owners were not in a position to provide clear title to the City. So City 
Council authorized a condemnation action to resolve the title problems. A lawsuit 
was filed and through condemnation court action we have cleared the title and have 
possession of this parcel. The Jamo’s have moved and are now purchasing a home. 
 
In accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the property owners 
are eligible for payment of their reasonable closing cost.  The amount of $6,647.50 
has been determined to be the amount of the city covered closing cost. 
 
To be in compliance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, staff requests 
that City Council, approve payment of eligible closing cost not to exceed $6,647.50   
 
Funds will come from the Big Beaver Road– Rochester to Dequindre project. 
 
 
Prepared by: Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-13



RELOCATION CLAIM 
RESIDENTIAL 

 Information required by Act 31, P.A. 1970 as amended, and Act 277 
City of Troy P.A. of 1972, to process payment. 
MDOT A679 (11/01) 

 
CLAIMANT’S NAME:   

 
Saoud Jamo & Nidhal Jamo 

 
MAILING ADDRESS: 

 
2907 Thames, Troy MI 48083 

 
ACQUIRED PROPERTY 
  ADDRESS AND 
  PHONE: 

 
2907 Thames, Troy MI 48083 
248-524-1446 

REPLACEMENT PROPERTY     
 ADDRESS 6342 W. Saint John 
Ave., Glendale, AZ 85308  
PHONE:            

 
            7602 W Mcrae Way                          
              Glendale, Arizona, 85308 

 
CONTROLLING DATES 

 
Date occupied state acquired property:  

 
01/24/05 

 
Date of first written offer: 

 
08/19/04 

 
 

 
Date of move: 

 
01/24/05 

 
Date of final payment: 

 
 

 
Date of estimated just compensation deposit: 

 
01-24-2005 

 
 

 
MUST OCCUPY REPLACEMENT PROPERTY BY ----  
            If Tenant, 12 months after date of move. 

 
Date: 

 
 

 
            If Secured Owner, 12 months after date of final payment. 

 
Date: 

 
 

 
            If Unsecured Owner, 12 months after date of estimated just compensation deposit.  

 
Date: 

 
 

 
MUST FILE CLAIM FOR PAYMENT BY ----  
            If Tenant, 18 months after date of move. 

 
Date: 

 
 

 
            If Owner, 18 months after date of move or final payment, whichever is later. 

 
Date: 

 
 

 
Listed below are relocation payments claimed in accordance with Act 31, PA 1970 as amended. For further information, please refer to the booklet "Your Rights 
and Benefits When Displaced by a City of Troy Project". 
 

Replacement Housing Supplement 
 
$ previously paid 

 
Incidental Closing Costs 

 
  6,647.50 

 
Increased Interest Differential 

 
 

 
Replacement Rental Supplement (Installment # ____________ ) 

 
 

 
Purchase Down Payment 

 
 

 
Moving - Fixed or Actual ( Actual)   ( Moving Payment only) 

 
   Previously paid 

 
AMOUNT DUE: 

 
$ 6,647.50  

 
I/We agree payment will be sent to: 

 
 

 
I/We Certify that: 
  1. All information submitted is true and correct. 
  2. I/We have purchased and occupied, or will purchase and occupy, a replacement dwelling which is decent, safe, and sanitary within the standards 

prescribed by the City of Troy. 
  3. I/We have vacated or will vacate the state acquired property. 
  4. I/We have not submitted any other claim, or received reimbursement from any other source, for expenses itemized on this claim. 
  5. I/We agree if the amount of compensation deposited is increased in an administrative settlement or condemnation action, the replacement housing 

supplement shall be recalculated based upon the increased compensation award, and any overpayment in the housing supplement shall be deducted by  the 
Department from the final payment. 

   6, I/We am/are a legal resident of the United States 
 
___________________________________________________________ _______________________________________________________ 
Claimant’s Signature                     Date  Claimant’s Signature                                                           Date 
 
I Certify that I have examined this claim and the substantiating documentation and have found it to conform to the applicable State and Federal Laws and the 
operating procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Dennis C. Stephens 
 

 
DATE: 07/19/05 

 
APPROVED BY: Pat Pititto 
 

 
DATE: 07/26/05 

 
Remarks: 
 

 
 
 
 
CONTROL SECTION 

 
PARCEL 10 

 
NAME  Jamo  

STU 63459      
 
20-25-229-001 

 
 

 
JOB NUMBER 

 
FED ITEM NUMBER 

 
FED PROJ NUMBER 
STP 0163 (039)     01.105.5  

49878 
 
HH 2855 

 
   



 
REPLACEMENT HOUSING SUPPLEMENT 

 
a) Price of comparable dwelling: 

 
  

 
d) Lower of "a" or "b"  minus "c":   

 
b) Price of replacement dwelling: 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
c) Price of state acquired dwelling: 

 
  

 
 AMOUNT DUE: 

 
  

 
INCIDENTAL CLOSING COSTS 

 
If there is no existing mortgage on the state acquired property, most of these costs are ineligible. Closing costs for 

tenants must be deducted from their total Purchase Down Payment amount. 

 
 
 

 
Appraisal 

 
$300.00 

 
Mobile Home Title Transfer 

 
 

 
Assumption Fee 

 
 

 
Mobile Home Sales Tax 

 
 

 
Commencement Notice 

 
 

 
Mortgage Application Fee 

 
 

 
Closing and/or Escrow 

 
$760.00 

 
Mortgage Insurance (limited to balance 
of  existing mortgage) 

 
 
$1,000.00 

 
Credit Report 

 
$23.00 

 
Mortgage Title Insurance (limited to 
value of comparable) 

 
 

 
Discount Points (limited to balance of existing mortgage if not paid 
in Increased Interest Differential) 

 
 

 
Notary Fee 

 
 

 
Document Preparation Fee 

 
$580.00 

 
Recording 

 
$45.00 

 
Inspections 

 
 

 
Survey 

 
 

 
Legal 

 
 

 
Tax Service Fee 

 
 

 
Loan Origination Fee (limited to balance of existing mortgage if not 
paid in Increased Interest Differential)  

 
$3,239.50 

 
Other - First Finance Fee 

 
$700.00 

 
AMOUNT DUE: 

 
$6,647.50 

 
INCREASED INTEREST DIFFERENTIAL 

 
Current Mortgage Balance 

 
 

 
New Mortgage Balance 

 
 

 
Current Mortgage Interest Rate 

 
 

 
New Mortgage Interest Rate 

 
 

 
Current Mortgage Payment 

 
 

 
New Mortgage Term 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
New Mortgage Points 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
AMOUNT DUE: 

 
$ 

 
REPLACEMENT RENTAL SUPPLEMENT/PURCHASE DOWN PAYMENT 

 
 

 
RENT 

 
UTILITIES 

 
TOTAL 

 
X 42 MONTHS 

 
(e) Lower of "a" or "b": 

 
 

 
(a) Comparable 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
(f) Lower of "c" or "d": 

 
 

 
(b) Replacement 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
(g) Rental Supplement ("e" minus "f"): 

 
 

 
(c) Displacement 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
(h) Installments:       (1)$___________
 (2)$___________   (3)$___________ 

 
 

 
Yearly 

 
   Monthly 

 
X 30% 

 
X 42 MONTHS  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
(i) Purchase Down Payment 
    (larger of "g" or $5250.00): 

 
 

 
(d) Income 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
(j) Payment previously claimed: 

 
 

 
 AMOUNT DUE: 

 
$ 

 
FIXED MOVING PAYMENT 

 
NO. OF ROOMS 
OF FURNITURE 

 
 

PAYMENT 

 
CLAIMANT OWNS NO FURNITURE 

BUT MOVES PERSONAL PROPERTY: 
 

 
NO. OF ROOMS IN DWELLING 

PLEASE CHECK ALL THAT APPLY 

 
1 

 
$425.00 

 
____ Living Room 

 
____ Den or Office 

 
2 

 
625.00 

 
____ Dining Room 

 
____ Laundry 

 
3 

 
825.00 

 
____ Family Room 

 
____ Attic 

 
4 

 
900.00 

 
    NO. OF ROOMS                PAYMENT
 
              1  $375.00 
EACH ADDITIONAL ROOM $100.00 

 
____ Kitchen 

 
____ Basement 

 
5 

 
1,025.00 

 
____ Bedroom 

 
____ Porch 

 
6 

 
1,150.00 

 
____ Bedroom 

 
____ Garage 

 
7 

 
1,300.00 

 
____ Bedroom 

 
____ Other __________________ 

 
8 

 
1,400.00 

 
 

OCCUPANT OF DORMITORY-STYLE 
ROOM: 

 
PAYMENT   $50.00  

____ Bedroom 
 
____ TOTAL ROOMS 

 
Each Additional 

Room 

 
200.00 

 
DATE MOVE VERIFIED 
_______________ 

 
AMOUNT DUE: 

 
$ 

 
ACTUAL MOVING PAYMENT 

 
Actual Moving Cost (per moving company bill or estimate) Lowest of 3 estimates 

 
  

 
Monthly storage rate $_______________ X number of months (limit 12) ________________  

 
 

 
AMOUNT DUE: 

 
  





July 26, 2005 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
Subject:   Agenda Item – Adoption of the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation 

Plan  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the City of Troy City Council, by resolution, adopt the Oakland County 
Hazard Mitigation Plan.     
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In order to be eligible for Federal Hazard Mitigation Grants as authorized under 
Section 404 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, FEMA has mandated that governmental units 
have in place a comprehensive disaster and hazard mitigation plan.  Locally, 
eligibility for these grants requires adoption of and participation in the Oakland 
County Hazard Mitigation Plan.   
 
The City of Troy’s Emergency Response and Preparedness Team, a joint police 
and fire department operation, assisted in the development of the county plan. 
On February 17, 2005, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted the 
Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Sgt. Donald Ostrowski 

bittnera
Text Box
E-14



DATE:    July 20, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM- Approval of Radio System Agreement with 

Oakland County 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

In 1999, Oakland County, in partnership with most of the local units of 
government in the county, initiated a project to plan, fund, and construct an 800 
Megahertz digital trunked radio system to provide communications for the public 
safety agencies in the county.  Over the past four years frequencies were 
obtained, an RFP was issued, a vendor was selected, and the system 
construction began.  The system is nearing completion and agencies are 
preparing to transition to the new system.  As part of the process, the CLEMIS 
Radio Oversight Committee has requested participating agencies to enter into an 
agreement. The purpose of the agreement is to provide Oakland County with a 
commitment by the local governments prior to the ordering and distribution of 
radios.  The agreement has been reviewed by the Law Department for form and 
legality.  
 

It is unknown at this time if any recurring costs will be associated with 
participation in the system.  The system is funded by a surcharge on wire line 
telephone service, which is scheduled to terminate at the end of 2006.   If some 
level of surcharge is not continued past 2006 there will be some form of user 
charges to fund system maintenance.   
 
 The current police and fire radio communications infrastructure is from 15 
to 25 years old and nearing the end of its useful life.  In addition to enhancing 
interoperability with other police and fire departments, this system eliminates the 
need to replace the existing infrastructure in Troy with its associated costs. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the city enter into the attached Oakland County Radio 
System Agreement.  
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
F-02



 

Radio System Agreement Final.doc                                                05-280 
Page1 

 
RADIO SYSTEM AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
OAKLAND COUNTY 

AND 
[NAME OF MUNICIPALITY] 

 
 
 
 
This Agreement ("the Agreement") is made between Oakland County, a Constitutional 
and Municipal Corporation, 1200 North Telegraph, Pontiac, Michigan 48341 ("County"), 
and the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd. Troy, MI 48084 ("Municipality"), on behalf 
of the City of Troy police and fire departments (“Departments"). In this Agreement the 
County and the Municipality may also be referred to individually as "Party" or jointly as 
"Parties." 
 
PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT.  Pursuant to the Urban Cooperation Act of 1967, 1967 
PA7, MCL 124.501, et seq., the County and the Municipality enter into this Agreement 
for the purpose of delineating the relationship and responsibilities between the County 
and the Municipality regarding the new interoperable 800 MHZ Radio System in 
Oakland County.  The creation of the new Radio System stemmed from major 
interoperability deficiencies of the current patchwork radio systems operated on 150 
MHZ, 420 MHZ, and 800 MHZ frequencies by public safety agencies throughout 
Oakland County.  The major interoperability deficiencies were illustrated in November 
1996, by the inability of thirteen public safety agencies to effectively communicate at the 
scene of the Wixom Ford Plant shooting.  This event and the need for homeland security 
underscores the need to unify public safety communications in Oakland County.  
Through this Agreement and with the operation of the new Radio System, each Party will 
be better prepared to serve its citizens.  
 
In consideration of the mutual promises, obligations, representations, and assurances in 
this Agreement, the Parties agree to the following: 
 

1. ENTITIES PERFORMING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.  All County 
responsibilities set forth in this Agreement shall be provided through the CLEMIS 
Division of the County Department of Information Technology.  All Municipal 
services and obligations set forth in this Agreement shall be performed by the City of 
Troy.  The Radio Oversight Committee of the CLEMIS Advisory Board shall provide 
direction, counsel, and recommendations concerning the operation and use of the 
Radio System. 

2. DEFINITIONS.  The following words and expressions used throughout this 
Agreement, whether used in the singular or plural, within or without quotation marks, 
or possessive or nonpossessive, shall be defined, read, and interpreted as follows. 



 

Draft 2 - Radio System Agreement 
Page 2 

 

2.1. Agreement means the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Exhibits 
attached hereto, and any other mutually agreed to written and executed 
modification, amendment, or addendum.   

2.2. Municipality means the City of Troy, a Municipal and Constitutional 
Corporation including, but not limited to, its Council, Board, any and all of its 
departments, its divisions, elected and appointed officials, directors, board 
members, council members, commissioners, authorities, committees, 
employees, agents, subcontractors, volunteers, and/or any such persons’ 
successors. 

2.3. Claim means any alleged loss, claim, complaint, demand for relief or 
damages, cause of action, proceeding, judgment, deficiency, liability, penalty, 
fine, litigation, costs, and/or expenses, including, but not limited to, 
reimbursement for reasonable attorney fees, witness fees, court costs, 
investigation expenses, litigation expenses, and amounts paid in settlement, 
which are imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against the County, its 
employees or agents, whether such Claim is brought in law or equity, tort, 
contract, or otherwise. 

2.4. CLEMIS means the Courts and Law Enforcement Management Information 
System, a regional consortium of public safety departments, and the 
associated voice and data networks operated by the County to enhance public 
safety and criminal justice operations in Southeastern Michigan.  

2.5. CLEMIS Advisory Board means the Board that provides direction, counsel, 
and recommendations to the County concerning the operation of CLEMIS. 

2.6. CLEMIS Division means the CLEMIS and Public Safety Division of the 
Oakland County Department of Information Technology. 

2.7. County means Oakland County, a Municipal and Constitutional Corporation 
including, but not limited to, all of its departments, divisions, the County 
Board of Commissioners, elected and appointed officials, directors, board 
members, council members, commissioners, authorities, committees, 
employees, agents, volunteers, and/or any such persons’ successors. 

2.8. Day means any calendar day beginning at 12:00 a.m. and ending at 11:59 p.m. 

2.9. FCC means the Federal Communications Commission. 

2.10. Infrastructure Equipment means all base stations, transmitters, combiners, 
antennae, amplifiers, coaxial cable, generators, shelters, network switches and 
all associated servers and routers (Network Switching center), network 
connectivity, consoles at public safety answering points, and gateways. 

2.11. Radio Oversight Committee means the standing committee of the CLEMIS 
Advisory Board, which provides direction, counsel, and recommendations to 



 

Draft 2 - Radio System Agreement 
Page 3 

 

the CLEMIS Advisory Board regarding radio communication and the 
operation of the 9-1-1 Service Plan for Oakland County.  

2.12. Radio System  ("the System") means the County wide interoperable 800 
MHZ voice radio system. 

2.13. Radio System Policies and Procedures means the policies and procedures 
created by the Radio Oversight Committee and approved and adopted by the 
CLEMIS Advisory Board which shall govern the management, operation, and 
use of the Radio System. 

2.14. User Equipment means mobile and portable radios and all accessories 
thereto, control stations, and V-Tacs. 

3. AGREEMENT EXHIBITS.  The Exhibits listed below and their properly 
promulgated amendments are incorporated and are part of this Agreement.  

3.1. Exhibit A.  The Radio System Policies and Procedures 

4. OPERATION AND USE OF RADIO SYSTEM .   

4.1. The County is the owner of the Radio System and the Infrastructure 
Equipment.  The County shall maintain and provide insurance for the Radio 
System and the Infrastructure Equipment. 

4.2. The County is the license holder for all FCC licenses for the 800 MHZ 
frequencies used in the Radio System.  The County shall maintain these 
licenses and/or modify the licenses as required to operate the Radio System. 

4.3. The Department or Municipality shall be the FCC license holder and maintain 
any legacy conventional frequencies used by the Department or Municipality, 
including those interfaced through the Radio System consoles and/or 
gateways. 

4.4. The County may monitor and audit the Municipality's and/or Department's 
compliance with the Radio System Policies and Procedures.  The monitoring 
and auditing of the Radio System may be performed periodically at the 
discretion of the County and at the sole expense of the County.  

5. OPERATION AND USE OF USER EQUIPMENT. 

5.1. The policies and procedures for the purchase, programming, repair, 
replacement, and maintenance of User Equipment will be set forth in the 
Radio System Policies and Procedures. 

5.2. The County shall not provide insurance for the User Equipment. 



 

Draft 2 - Radio System Agreement 
Page 4 

 

5.3. User Equipment purchased by the County shall remain the property of the 
County.  User Equipment purchased by the Municipality shall remain the 
property of the Municipality.  

6. CLEMIS ADVISORY BOARD/RADIO OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
RESPONSIBILITIES. 

6.1. The Radio Oversight Committee shall provide direction, counsel, and 
recommendations to the CLEMIS Advisory Board concerning the operation of 
Radio System.  The CLEMIS Advisory Board shall relay such direction, 
counsel, and recommendations to the County. 

6.2. The Radio Oversight Committee shall create policies and procedures that 
govern the management, operation, and use of the Radio System.  The Radio 
Oversight Committee shall present the policies and procedures to the CLEMIS 
Advisory Board for approval and adoption. 

6.3. The Radio Oversight Committee shall review the Radio System Policies and 
Procedures at least once a year to determine if changes or amendments are 
necessary.  All changes and amendments to the Radio System Policies and 
Procedures shall be presented to the CLEMIS Advisory Board for approval 
and adoption.  

6.4. The County shall compile and send to the Municipality the Radio System 
Policies and Procedures and any changes or amendments to the Radio System 
Policies and Procedures after their approval and adoption by the CLEMIS 
Advisory Board. 

7. FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES. The costs and fees associated with the use, 
operation, and maintenance of the Radio System, the maintenance of the User 
Equipment, and the repair, replacement, or purchase of the new User Equipment shall 
be set forth in the Radio System Policies and Procedures.  In the event there are any 
costs or fees imposed and due to the County in connection with this Agreement 
and/or for the use, operation, or maintenance of the Radio System or User Equipment, 
the County has the right to set off any amount past due and retain any amount of 
money due to the Municipality from the County equal to the past due amount, 
including, but not limited to, distributions from the Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund 
(DTRF). 

8. DURATION OF INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT. 

8.1. The Agreement and any amendments hereto shall be effective when executed 
by both Parties with concurrent resolutions passed by the governing bodies of 
each Party.  The approval and terms of this Agreement and any amendments 
hereto shall be entered in the official minutes of the governing bodies of each 
Party. 



 

Draft 2 - Radio System Agreement 
Page 5 

 

8.2. This Agreement shall remain in effect until cancelled or terminated by either 
Party pursuant to Section 10. 

9. ASSURANCES. 

9.1. Each Party shall be responsible for its own acts and the acts of its employees, 
and agents, the costs associated with those acts, and the defense of those acts. 

9.2. The County is not responsible for any Claims arising directly or indirectly 
from misuse of the Radio System by the Municipality, its employees, or its 
agents. 

9.3. Neither the County nor Municipality shall be liable for any consequential, 
incidental, indirect, or special damages in connection with this Agreement. 

9.4. The Parties have taken all actions and secured all approvals necessary to 
authorize and complete this Agreement.  The persons signing this Agreement 
on behalf of each Party have legal authority to sign this Agreement and bind 
the Parties to the terms and conditions contained herein.  

9.5. Each Party shall follow the Radio System Policies and Procedures and its 
changes or amendments. 

9.6. Each Party shall comply with all federal, state, and local ordinances, 
regulations, administrative rules, and requirements applicable to its activities 
performed under this Agreement, including but not limited to, all FCC rules 
and regulations.  

9.7. Violation of the Radio System Policies and Procedures shall first be addressed 
by the Municipality.  If the violation is not addressed by the Municipality, the 
Radio Oversight Committee shall take the appropriate action to correct the 
violation or recommend to the County action the County should take to 
correct the violation, which could include termination of this Agreement.   

9.8. Any costs, fees, or fines which result from violation of the Radio System 
Policies and Procedures and/or any federal, state, or local laws, administrative 
rules, regulations, or ordinances shall be the responsibility of the entity or 
entities committing the violation. 

10. TERMINATION OR CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT. 

10.1. The Municipality may terminate or cancel this Agreement for any reason upon 
thirty (30) Days written notice to the County.  Within Sixty (60) Days of 
termination or cancellation of this Agreement, the Municipality must return all 
User Equipment (not purchased by the Municipality), all consoles, and all 
control stations to the County 



 

Draft 2 - Radio System Agreement 
Page 6 

 

10.2. Upon thirty (30) Days written notice to the Municipality, the County may 
terminate or cancel this Agreement upon recommendation of the Radio 
Oversight Committee, as adopted by the CLEMIS Advisory Board, or if the 
Radio System ceases to exist. 

11. TRAINING.  The policies and procedures concerning initial and continual training 
regarding the use of the Radio System by the Municipality and/or Department will be 
set forth in the Radio System Policies and Procedures. 

12. LOCAL RADIO SYSTEM ADMINISTRATOR. The Municipality and/or 
Department shall designate at least one person and an alternate to act as the Local 
Radio System Administrator.  This individual(s) will act as a liaison between the 
Department and the County regarding the operation and use of the Radio System for 
that specific jurisdiction.  The names of the Local Radio System Administrators shall 
be conveyed to the individual listed in Section 22.1. 

13. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  Except as provided for the benefit of the 
Parties, this Agreement does not and is not intended to create any obligation, duty, 
promise, contractual right or benefit, right to indemnification, right to subrogation, 
and/or any other right, in favor of any other person or entity. 

14. DISCRIMINATION.  The Parties shall not discriminate against their employees, 
agents, applicants for employment, or another persons or entities with respect to hire, 
tenure, terms, conditions, and privileges of employment, or any matter directly or 
indirectly related to employment in violation of any federal, state or local law. 

15. PERMITS AND LICENSES.  Each Party shall be responsible for obtaining and 
maintaining, throughout the term of this Agreement, all licenses, permits, certificates, 
and governmental authorizations necessary to perform all its responsibilities under 
this Agreement.  Upon request, a Party shall furnish copies of any permit, license, 
certificate or governmental authorization to the requesting Party. 

16. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS.  This Agreement does not, and is not intended to 
impair, divest, delegate, or contravene any constitutional, statutory, and/or other legal 
right, privilege, power, obligation, duty, or immunity of the Parties. 

17. FORCE MAJEURE.  Each Party shall be excused from any obligations under this 
Agreement during the time and to the extent that a Party is prevented from 
performing due to causes beyond such Party’s control, including, but not limited to, 
an act of God, war, acts of government (other than the Parties'), fire, strike, labor 
disputes, civil disturbances, reduction of power source, or any other circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of the affected Party.  Reasonable notice shall be given 
to the affected Party of any such event. 

18. DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACT/ASSIGNMENT.  The Municipality shall not 
delegate, subcontract, and/or assign any obligations or rights under this Agreement 
without the prior written consent of the County. 



 

Draft 2 - Radio System Agreement 
Page 7 

 

19. NO IMPLIED WAIVER.  Absent a written waiver, no act, failure, or delay by a 
Party to pursue or enforce any rights or remedies under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of those rights with regard to any existing or subsequent breach of 
this Agreement.  No waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement, 
whether by conduct or otherwise, in one or more instances, shall be deemed or 
construed as a continuing waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this 
Agreement.  No waiver by either Party shall subsequently effect its right to require 
strict performance of this Agreement. 

20. SEVERABILITY.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds a term, or condition, of 
this Agreement to be illegal or invalid, then the term, or condition, shall be deemed 
severed from this Agreement.  All other terms, conditions, and provisions of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force. 

21. CAPTIONS.  The section and subsection numbers, captions, and any index to such 
sections and subsections contained in this Agreement are intended for the 
convenience of the reader and are not intended to have any substantive meaning.  The 
numbers, captions, and indexes shall not be interpreted or be considered as part of this 
Agreement.  Any use of the singular or plural number, any reference to the male, 
female, or neuter genders, and any possessive or nonpossessive use in this Agreement 
shall be deemed the appropriate plurality, gender or possession as the context 
requires. 

22. NOTICES.  Notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
personally delivered, sent by express delivery service, certified mail, or first class 
U.S. mail postage prepaid, and addressed to the person listed below.  Notice will be 
deemed given on the date when one of the following first occur: (1) the date of actual 
receipt; (2) the next business day when notice is sent express delivery service or 
personal delivery; or (3) three days after mailing first class or certified U.S. mail. 

22.1. If Notice is sent to the County, it shall be addressed and sent to: Oakland 
County Department of Information Technology, Manager of CLEMIS 
Division, 1200 North Telegraph Road, Building #49 West, Pontiac, Michigan, 
48341 and Chairperson of the Oakland County Board of Commissioners, 1200 
North Telegraph, Pontiac, Michigan 48341. 

22.2. If Notice is sent to the Municipality, it shall be addressed to: John Szerlag, 
City Manager, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48084 

22.3. Either Party may change the address and/or individual to which Notice is sent 
by notifying the other Party in writing of the change. 

23. GOVERNING LAW/CONSENT TO JURISDICTION AND VENUE.  This 
Agreement shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced by the laws of the State of 
Michigan.  Except as otherwise required by law or court rule, any action brought to 
enforce, interpret, or decide any Claim arising under or related to this Agreement 
shall be brought in the 6th Judicial Circuit Court of the State of Michigan, the 50th 



 

Draft 2 - Radio System Agreement 
Page 8 

 

District Court of the State of Michigan, or the United States District Court for the 
Eastern District of Michigan, Southern Division, as dictated by the applicable 
jurisdiction of the court.  Except as otherwise required by law or court rule, venue is 
proper in the courts set forth above. 

24. AGREEMENT MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS.  Any modifications, 
amendments, recessions, waivers, or releases to this Agreement must be in writing 
and agreed to by both Parties.  Unless otherwise agreed, the modification, 
amendment, recession, waiver, or release shall be signed by the same persons who 
signed the Agreement or other persons as authorized by the Parties' governing body. 

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement represents the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the Parties.  This Agreement supercedes all other oral or 
written Agreements between the Parties. The language of this Agreement shall be 
construed as a whole according to its fair meaning, and not construed strictly for or 
against any Party. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, _____________  hereby acknowledges that he/she has been 
authorized by a resolution of the__________________, a certified copy of which is 
attached, to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Municipality and hereby accepts and 
binds the Municipality to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
EXECUTED: ______________________________ DATE:______________ 
   
 
WITNESSED:______________________________ DATE:______________ 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Bill Bullard, Jr., Chairperson, Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners, hereby acknowledges that he has been authorized by a resolution of the 
Oakland County Board of Commissioners, a certified copy of which is attached, to 
execute this Agreement on behalf of the Oakland County, and hereby accepts and binds 
the Oakland County to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 
EXECUTED: _____________________________ DATE: ______________  
 Bill Bullard, Jr., Chairperson 
 Oakland County Board of Commissioners 
 
WITNESSED:_____________________________ DATE:_______________ 
 Ruth Johnson, Clerk, Register of Deeds 
 County of Oakland  



bittnera
Text Box
F-03







 1

July 19, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
     
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - DOCVIEW, LLC Service Agreement 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Police Department recommends that the City enter into a Service Agreement 
with DOCVIEW, LLC, of Lansing, MI, whereby the company will make 
Department traffic crash reports available on their secure website to police 
departments, other government agencies, insurance companies and authorized 
individuals. DOCVIEW will charge $13.00 for each report.  The City will receive 
$5.00 for each report sold by the company.  The Police Department currently 
processes approximately 3400 requests for copies of traffic crash reports per 
year.    
 
The agreement will improve customer service.  It will provide customers with 
another way to obtain copies of traffic crash reports.  It will allow Police Records 
Clerks more time to perform other job functions.  Online access to traffic crash 
reports will allow Police Department supervisors to respond promptly to most 
concerns or questions from citizens involved in traffic crashes.     
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) makes traffic crash data available to 
the City of Troy Traffic Engineer and Police Department.  TIA has proposed 
making traffic crash reports available to authorized entities through an agreement 
it has with DOCVIEW, LLC.  DOCVIEW uses an Internet based application to 
facilitate the distribution of the reports.  TIA will scan traffic crash reports and 
submit them to DOCVIEW electronically.  DOCVIEW will place the reports on 
TRACView, their secure website, in that way making them available to authorized 
entities.   
 
Fifty-four Michigan law enforcement agencies use TRACView to manage their 
traffic crash reports.  At least, seventeen insurance companies use TRACView to 
access the reports.  Authorized entities purchase approximately 1500 - 2000 
traffic crash reports per month.  
 
Reviewed as to form and legality:  ______________________________  ______ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney             Date  
 
 
Prepared by:  Michael P. Lyczkowski, Services Section Lieutenant           

bittnera
Text Box
F-04



Service Agreement 
 
This Service Agreement is dated  ________________________. 
 
BETWEEN: 
 
DOCVIEW, LLC of 4940 Contec Drive, Lansing, Michigan 48910 

 
- AND – 

 
Troy Police Department, C/O Chief Charles T. Craft,  500 West Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084  
herein (“Police Department”) 
 
IN CONSIDERATION OF THE COVENANTS and agreements contained in this Service 
Agreement, the parties to this Agreement agree as follows: 
  
Responsibilities and Compensation for each Party 
   

1. The Police Department will accept a Maximum Compensation Rate of  $5.00 for each 
report downloaded by an Insurance Company.  A $5.00 compensation will also be 
provided to the Police Department for any report that is downloaded by a citizen or 
other entity (including Insurance Adjusters, Road Commissions, or other government 
agencies where fees are assessed, etc.)  Compensation checks will be sent monthly or 
on a quarterly basis dated January 15th, April 15th, July 15th, and October 15th.  This 
compensation will be provided to the Police Department from DOCVIEW, LLC via 
check or direct deposit.  All participating Police agencies have free access to the 
reports that are scanned to the TRACView system. 

 
2. With the exception of requests made through the Freedom of Information Act, the 

Police Department will direct all Insurance Companies and other entity requests 
(including Insurance Adjusters, Road Commissions, or other government agencies, 
etc.) for traffic crash reports to the TRACView system.  The Police Department will 
continue to comply with the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act, and will 
continue to provide traffic crash reports to walk-in customers.  

 
3. The Police Department understands that any legally documented Insurance Agency, 

Law Enforcement Agency or other entity deemed appropriate by the Police 
Department and DOCVIEW, LLC may access the traffic crash images.   

 
Excuse for Delay or Failure to Perform 

4. DOCVIEW, LLC will not be liable in any way for a delay, non-delivery or default 
due to labor disputes, transportation shortage, delays in receipt of material, priorities, 
fires, accidents and other causes beyond the control of the DOCVIEW, LLC or its 
partners and suppliers.  However, in the event of such delay or failure to perform, the 
Police Department may reserve the right, in its discretion, to not comply with the 
requirement to direct requests to DOCVIEW.     

 
Cancellation 

5. DOCVIEW, LLC and the Police Department reserve the right to cancel this 
Agreement.  DOCVIEW, LLC and the Police Department will provide notice of 



cancellation to each other 30 days prior to the cancellation.  If equipment is provided 
by DOCVIEW, LLC and cancellation occurs within the first year, all equipment must 
be returned.  If the Police Department does not notify the DOCVIEW, LLC prior to 
the end of the first year, this agreement will be extended for succeeding one year 
periods unless either party notifies the other in writing at least 30 days prior to 
cancellation. 
 
Notices

6. Any notice to be given or document to be delivered to either the DOCVIEW, LLC  
or Police Department pursuant to this Agreement will be sufficient if delivered 
personally or sent by prepaid registered mail to the address specified above.   
 
Governed 

7. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws  
of the State of Michigan. 
 
Arbitration 

8. If any clause of the Agreement is held unconscionable or unenforceable by any court 
of competent jurisdiction, arbitration panel or other official finder of fact, the clause 
will be deleted from this Agreement and the balance of the Agreement will remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Scope 

9. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and there are no 
further items or provisions, either oral or otherwise. 

 
Risk of Loss 

10.  The Police Department will not be releasing original traffic crash reports to 
DOCVIEW, LLC.  The Police Department agrees to hold DOCVIEW, LLC harmless 
for any loss of information from the TRACView system.  The Police Department may 
at its expense, request backups of the data.  DOCVIEW, LLC will send a DVD of the 
data upon receipt, in writing, of any such request from the Police Department.   

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Service Agreement on this 
date: _________________________. 
 
 

DOCVIEW, LLC 
 

Per: ____________________________ 
 
______________________ 
Witness 
           _____________________________ 
 Troy Police Department 



July 22, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Sole Source – Self Contained Riding Greens Aerator 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Parks and Recreation Department requests approval to purchase a Ryan 
GA-30 Riding Greens Aerator with attachments from the sole authorized dealer 
in Michigan, W.F. Miller Co. of Novi, for an estimated total cost of $17,094.00.  
Included with the purchase of the aerator are three additional attachments:  1) a 
quint coring tines and turf guard and holders, 2) a quint solid tines and turf guard 
and holders, and 3) a windrow.  The additional attachments gives us the ability to 
impact more surface area, saving us time and manpower; as well as eases and 
reduces the cleanup time after aerating has been completed, in order to get 
golfers back on the course sooner.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The Ryan GA-30 Greens Aerator is the only self-contained riding greens aerator 
available on the market.  This riding aerator will allow the Golf Division staff to 
aerate the turf on the course to relieve compaction and get water penetration and 
oxygen into the soil.  With a riding greens aerator, as apposed to a conventional 
aerator which requires the operator to run the machine while walking in front of 
the unit, the Golf Division staff will be able to aerify the turf quicker, require only 
one operator, allow travel time from area to area to be cut down significantly, and 
carry more fuel than a conventional aerator.  With a Ryan GA-30 already in use 
by the Golf Division staff, the purchase of another aerator will allow for easy 
stocking of repair parts, and easy service of a machine already familiar to the 
staff.  This aerator has the capability of aeration productivity of up to twice the 
area per hour as compared to a conventional aerator.  The Ryan GA-30 is 
manufactured by Jacobson/Ryan and is only available in the state of Michigan 
through W.F. Miller.   
 
BUDGET 
Funds to purchase the Ryan 6A-30 Riding Greens Aerator is available in the 
Sylvan Glen Capital equipment account 788.7978.010 
 
Prepared By: Danny T. McDonald- Greens Superintendent 

bittnera
Text Box
F-05





DATE:  July 25, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Steven Vandette, City Engineer 

 Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 

   
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Proposed Revisions to  
                      Chapter 19 - Sanitary Sewer Service 
 Elimination of Connection Requirement 
  
 
Introduction: 
 
At the City Council meeting of July 18, 2005, city staff was asked to prepare revisions to 
Chapter 19, of the Troy City Code.  The revisions requested were to eliminate the 
mandatory connection to sanitary sewer within 18 months of availability.  In response, 
staff has prepared the proposed amendments to Section 19.02 00 and 19.05.00 of the 
City Code for your consideration.  
 
Revisions to Chapter 19 of Troy’s Ordinance – To Eliminate Required 
Connection: 
 
Portions of Section 19.02 should be deleted from the Ordinance.  The remaining 
portions of the Ordinance should be renumbered to account for the deletions. 
 
Sections 19.02.01, 19.02.02 and 19.02.03 should be moved and renumbered to 
become Sections 19.05.03, 19.05.04, and 19.05.05 respectively (based upon the 
new numbering). 
 
USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS REQUIRED 
 
19.02 Public sanitary sewer systems are essential to the health, safety and welfare 
of the people of the State and the City of Troy. Septic tank disposal systems are 
subject to failure due to soil conditions or other reasons. Failure or potential failure of 
septic tank disposal systems poses a threat to the public health, safety and welfare; 
presents a potential for ill health, transmission of disease, mortality and potential 
economic blight and constitutes a threat to the quality of surface and subsurface 
waters of the State and the City of Troy. 
The connection to available public sanitary sewer systems at the earliest, 
reasonable date is a matter for the protection of the public health, safety and welfare 
and necessary in the public interest which is declared as a matter of legislative 
determination. 

bittnera
Text Box
F-06



19.02.01 19.05.03 Waste Deposits. It shall be unlawful for any person to place or 
deposit or permit to be deposited in an unsanitary manner upon any public or private 
property within the City of Troy, or in any area under the jurisdiction of the said City 
of Troy, any human or animal excrement, garbage, or other objectionable waste. 
 
19.02.02 19.05.04 Water Pollution. It shall be unlawful to discharge into any natural 
watercourse or any storm sewer, within the City of Troy or in any area under the 
jurisdiction of the said City, any sanitary sewage, industrial waste, or other polluted 
waters, except where suitable treatment has been provided in accordance with the 
standards established by the MDEQ and the provisions of the Federal Clean Water 
Act. 
 
19.02.03 19.05.05 Privies and Septic Tanks. Except as hereinafter provided it shall 
be unlawful to construct or maintain any privy, privy vault, septic tank, cesspool or 
other facility intended or based for the disposal of sewage. 
 
19.02.04 Structures in which sanitary sewage originates located in the City of Troy in 
the area served by the system for which there is an available public sanitary sewer 
of the system shall not be used or occupied, after the effective date hereof, unless 
said structures are connected to the sewage disposal system: Provided, that 
structures within the City of Troy in which sanitary sewage is originating on the 
effective date hereof or in which sanitary sewage originates before availability of the 
system or any part thereof to service said structures shall be connected to said 
system within eighteen (18) months after publication of a notice by the City of Troy in 
a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Troy of the availability of the 
system. 
 
19.02.05 
A. When the structure in which sanitary sewage originates has not been connected 
to an available sanitary sewer system before use and occupancy or within the 
eighteen (18) month period provided in this Chapter, the City of Troy shall require 
the connection to be made forthwith after notice, which may be by first class mail or 
posting on the property, to the owner of the property on which the structure is 
located. The notice shall give the approximate location of the public sanitary sewer 
of the system, which is available for connection of the structure involved and shall 
advise the owner of the requirements and of the enforcement provisions of this 
Chapter. 
 
B. Any property from which sanitary sewage emanates which is not connected to an 
available public sewer within 90 days after the date of mailing of the written demand 
is hereby declared to be a threat to the health, safety, and welfare of the people and 
a public nuisance and the City may forthwith enter upon or in the property and 
install, construct and make such connections to abate the nuisance and to serve the 
property as are necessary or desirable, in the sole discretion of the City. The owner 
or occupant of any property who fails or refuses to connect the property to an 
available public sewer upon written demand shall forfeit a sum not exceeding 
$100.00 and shall be liable to the City for the costs incurred in making the 

 2



 connection to the sewer, which sum, including contingencies, shall be recoverable, 
jointly and severally from the owner or occupant, in an action at law or may be 
assessed against such property and shall be collected and treated in the same 
manner as taxes. 
 
C. If the City attempts to enter onto property for the purpose of ascertaining if it is the 
property from which sanitary sewage emanates, or to install, construct, and make 
connection of the property to the sewer, and is refused such entry, the City shall 
make complaint in writing to the Judge stating the facts of the case so far as may be 
known to the complainant. The Judge may issue a warrant directed to the Police 
Chief commanding him to take sufficient aid, and being accompanied by the Building 
Inspector of the City, between the hours of sunrise and sunset, to enter upon or in 
the property to the extent and for the duration required to enforce and carry out the 
provisions of this act. 
 
19.02.06 Where any structure in which sanitary sewage originates is not connected 
to an available public sanitary sewer system within 90 days after the date of mailing 
or posting of the written notice, the provisions of this Chapter shall be enforceable 
through the bringing of appropriate action for injunction, mandamus, or otherwise, in 
any court having jurisdiction. Any violation of this Chapter is deemed to be a 
nuisance per se. 
Properties upon which the structure is more than 200 feet distance from the public 
sewer will be exempt from the provisions of this section unless deemed to be a 
serious threat to the health, safety and welfare of the people by the Building 
Department Inspector. Single family homes existing in areas zoned other than 
residential may be temporarily exempt from the provisions of this section provided 
that on-site sewage systems meet the approval of the Building Department Inspector 
and continue to function in a manner which does not threaten the health, welfare, 
and safety of the community as determined through periodic inspections by the 
Building Department Inspector. 
 
 
Reviewed as to form and Legality         

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 3



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 

CHAPTER 19 - SANITARY SEWER SERVICE 
 
19.01 Definitions.  In the interpretation of this chapter the following definitions shall 

apply unless the content clearly indicates otherwise: 
 

19.01.01 Available public sanitary sewer shall be construed to mean a 
public sanitary sewer system located in a right of way, easement, 
highway, street or public way which crosses, adjoins or abuts upon the 
property and passing not more than 200 feet at the nearest point from a 
structure in which sanitary sewage originates. 

 
(Rev. 01-13-03)  

 
19.01.02 Biochemical Oxygen Demand or B.O.D. shall mean the quantity 

of oxygen utilized in the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under 
standard laboratory procedure in five (5) days at twenty (20) degrees 
centigrade, expressed in parts per million by weight. 

 
(Rev. 01-13-03) 

 
19.01.03 Building Department Inspector shall mean the employee or 

employees of the City of Troy’s Building Department, who is responsible 
for the inspection of the privately owned and maintained On-site Sewage 
Disposal Systems within the City of Troy. 

 
(Rev. 01-13-03) 

 
 19.01.04 Building drain shall mean that part of the lowest horizontal piping 

of a building drainage system which receives and conveys the discharge 
from soil, waste and drainage pipes other than storm drains from within 
the walls or footings of any building to the building sewer. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 

 
19.01.05 Building sewer shall mean the extension from the building drain to 

the public sewer or other place of disposal. 
 

 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
  
 19.01.06 Combination sewer or combined sewer shall mean a sewer 

receiving both surface run-off and sewage. 
 
(Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.01.07 DWSD shall mean the Detroit Water and Sewerage Department. 
 
(Rev. 01-13-03) 

 1



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 

 
19.01.08 Failure shall be defined as follows: 1) the backup of sewage into a 

structure; 2) the discharge of effluent onto the ground surface; 3) the 
connection of an OSDS to a storm drain; 4) the liquid level in the septic 
tank is above the outlet invert; 5) the structural failure of a septic tank; 6) 
the discharge of sewage into any watercourse; 7) the liquid level in the 
disposal field is above the pipe of such field; or 8) the OSDS which failed 
to meet operational, effluent or discharge guidelines as set forth by the 
MDEQ, Oakland County Health Division Services, or the City of Troy. 

  
(Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.01.09 Fixed interval inspection shall mean the process of inspecting 

and evaluating the condition and state of the septic tank and septic system 
to cover a period of four years of operation for the On-site Sewage 
Disposal System.  This process includes observations, information 
gathering, evaluations, and the report of findings.  

  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.10 Garbage shall mean solid wastes from the preparation, cooking 

and dispensing of food, and from the handling, storage, processing and 
sale of produce. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.11 Industrial wastes shall mean the liquid wastes, solids, or semi-

solids from industrial processes as distinct from sanitary sewage. 
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.12 MDEQ shall mean the Michigan Department of Environmental 

Quality. 
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03)  
  
 19.01.13 Natural outlet shall mean any outlet into a watercourse, pond, 

ditch, lake, or other body of water, either surface or ground water. 
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.14 On-site Sewage Disposal System or OSDS shall include all 

components or devices including, but not limited to all septic tanks, pipes, 
pumps, vents and absorption systems used to treat and/or dispose of all 
wastewater from a structure that is not serviced by the City of Troy 
sewage disposal system. 

  

 2



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 

19.01.15 Person shall mean any individual, firm, company, association, 
society, corporation or group. 

 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
   
 19.01.16 pH shall mean the logarithm of the reciprocal of the weight of 

hydrogen ions in grams per liter of solution. 
  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
   
 19.01.17 Properly shredded garbage shall mean the wastes from the 

cooking, preparation and dispensing of food that has been cut or shredded 
to such a degree that all particles will be carried freely under flow 
conditions normally prevailing in public sewers, with no particle greater 
than one-half (1/2) inch in any dimension. 

  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.18 Public sanitary sewer system shall be construed to mean a 

sanitary sewer or a combined sanitary and storm sewer used or intended 
for use by the public for collection and transportation of sanitary sewage 
for treatment or disposal. 

 
 19.01.19 Public sewer shall mean a sewer in which all owners of abutting 

property have equal rights, and is controlled by public authority. 
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
  
 19.01.20 Sanitary sewer shall mean a sewer which carries sewage, and to 

which storm and surface waters are not intentionally admitted. 
  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.21 Satisfactory Operation shall mean that there is minimal likelihood 

of degradation of groundwater and surface water, or risk to public health 
caused by improper construction, location or functioning of an OSDS. 

  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.22 Sewage shall mean any combination of water-carried wastes from 

residences, business and commercial buildings, institutions, and industrial 
establishments, together with such ground, surface and storm waters as 
may be present. 

  
 (Rev. 01-13-03)  
 

 3



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 19.01.23 Sewage disposal system shall be construed to mean the City of 

Troy sewage disposal system. 
  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.24 Sewage Treatment Plant shall mean any arrangement of devices 

and structures used for treating sewage. 
  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.25 Sewage works shall mean all facilities for collecting, pumping, 

treating and disposing of sewage. 
  
 (Rev. 01-13-03)   
 
 19.01.26 Sewer shall mean any pipe, tile, tubes, or conduit for carrying 

sewage. 
   
 (Rev. 01-13-03)  
 
 19.01.27 Shall is mandatory.  May is permissive. 
  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.28 Storm sewer or storm drain shall mean a sewer which carries 

storm and surface waters and drainage but which excludes sewage and 
polluted industrial wastes. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.29 Structure in which sanitary sewage originates or structure shall 

be construed to mean a building in which toilet, kitchen, laundry, bathing 
or other facilities which generate water-carried sanitary sewage, are used 
or are available for use for household, commercial, industrial or other 
purposes. 

  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.30 Suspended solids shall mean the solids that either float on the 

surface of, or are suspended in water, sewage, or other liquids and which 
are removable by laboratory filtering. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.31 System shall be deemed to refer to the said sewage disposal 

system. 
 

 4



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.32 Watercourse shall mean a channel in which a flow of water occurs, 

either continuously or intermittently. 
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS REQUIRED 
 
19.02 Public sanitary sewer systems are essential to the health, safety and welfare of 
the people of the State and the City of Troy. Septic tank disposal systems are subject to 
failure due to soil conditions or other reasons. Failure or potential failure of septic tank 
disposal systems poses a threat to the public health, safety and welfare; presents a 
potential for ill health, transmission of disease, mortality and potential economic blight 
and constitutes a threat to the quality of surface and subsurface waters of the State and 
the City of Troy. 
 
The connection to available public sanitary sewer systems at the earliest, reasonable 
date is a matter for the protection of the public health, safety and welfare and necessary 
in the public interest which is declared as a matter of legislative determination. 
 
(Rev. 02-26-73) 
 
19.02.04 Structures in which sanitary sewage originates located in the City of Troy in 
the area served by the system for which there is an available public sanitary sewer of 
the system shall not be used or occupied, after the effective date hereof, unless said 
structures are connected to the sewage disposal system: Provided, that structures 
within the City of Troy in which sanitary sewage is originating on the effective date 
hereof or in which sanitary sewage originates before availability of the system or any 
part thereof to service said structures shall be connected to said system within eighteen 
(18) months after publication of a notice by the City of Troy in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City of Troy of the availability of the system. 
 
19.02.05 
A. When the structure in which sanitary sewage originates has not been connected to 
an available sanitary sewer system before use and occupancy or within the eighteen 
(18) month period provided in this Chapter, the City of Troy shall require the connection 
to be made forthwith after notice, which may be by first class mail or posting on the 
property, to the owner of the property on which the structure is located. The notice shall 
give the approximate location of the public sanitary sewer of the system, which is 
available for connection of the structure involved and shall advise the owner of the 
requirements and of the enforcement provisions of this Chapter. 
 
B. Any property from which sanitary sewage emanates which is not connected to an 
available public sewer within 90 days after the date of mailing of the written demand is 
hereby declared to be a threat to the health, safety, and welfare of the people and a 
public nuisance and the City may forthwith enter upon or in the property and install, 

 5



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
construct and make such connections to abate the nuisance and to serve the property 
as are necessary or desirable, in the sole discretion of the City. The owner or occupant 
of any property who fails or refuses to connect the property to an available public sewer 
upon written demand shall forfeit a sum not exceeding $100.00 and shall be liable to the 
City for the costs incurred in making the connection to the sewer, which sum, including 
contingencies, shall be recoverable, jointly and severally from the owner or occupant, in 
an action at law or may be assessed against such property and shall be collected and 
treated in the same manner as taxes. 
 
C. If the City attempts to enter onto property for the purpose of ascertaining if it is the 
property from which sanitary sewage emanates, or to install, construct, and make 
connection of the property to the sewer, and is refused such entry, the City shall make 
complaint in writing to the Judge stating the facts of the case so far as may be known to 
the complainant. The Judge may issue a warrant directed to the Police Chief 
commanding him to take sufficient aid, and being accompanied by the Building 
Inspector of the City, between the hours of sunrise and sunset, to enter upon or in the 
property to the extent and for the duration required to enforce and carry out the 
provisions of this act. 
 
(Rev. 06-07-93) 
 
19.02.06 Where any structure in which sanitary sewage originates is not connected to 
an available public sanitary sewer system within 90 days after the date of mailing or 
posting of the written notice, the provisions of this Chapter shall be enforceable through 
the bringing of appropriate action for injunction, mandamus, or otherwise, in any court 
having jurisdiction. Any violation of this Chapter is deemed to be a nuisance per se. 
Properties upon which the structure is more than 200 feet distance from the public 
sewer will be exempt from the provisions of this section unless deemed to be a serious 
threat to the health, safety and welfare of the people by the Building Department 
Inspector. Single family homes existing in areas zoned other than residential may be 
temporarily exempt from the provisions of this section provided that on-site sewage 
systems meet the approval of the Building Department Inspector and continue to 
function in a manner which does not threaten the health, welfare, and safety of the 
community as determined through periodic inspections by the Building Department 
Inspector. 
(Rev. 01-13-03)

ON-SITE SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEMS 
 
19.03.01 On-site Sewage Disposal Systems.  Where a public sanitary sewer or 

combined sewer is not available under the provisions of this Chapter, the 
building sewer shall be connected with a private on-site sewage disposal 
system complying with the regulations and orders of the MDEQ and the 
Oakland County Health Department, and the provisions of Chapter 79 of 
this code (Building Regulations). 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 

 6



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
19.03.02 Discontinuance of System.  At such time as a public sewer becomes 

available to a property served by a private sewage disposal system, as 
provided in this Chapter, a direct connection shall be made to the public 
sewer in compliance with the provisions of this Chapter, and any septic 
tank, privy, privy vault, cesspool or similar private sewage disposal 
facilities shall be abandoned and filled with suitable material. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
19.03.03 Maintenance of System.  The owner shall operate and maintain the OSDS 

facilities in a sanitary manner at all times at no expense to the City.  
Maintenance of the OSDS shall include: 
1. Having a fixed interval inspection and evaluation performed by 

City staff every four (4) years, which shall consist of: 
(A.) Pumping of the septic tank at the time of inspection by a 

state licensed septage hauler  
(B.) Information gathering on the maintenance, including 

frequency of pumping of the septic tank 
(C.) Visual and olfactory observations and inspections of the 

condition of the septic tank, absorption system, pumps, 
filters, and other important features of the OSDS 

(D.) Preparation of a report  
 

2. Having the septic tank pumped on an as needed basis to 
ensure a satisfactory operation of the system. 

 
3. Repairs.  The cost of all repairs, maintenance and replacements 

of existing On-site Sewage Disposal Systems shall be borne by 
the property owner.  The owner shall make an application to 
perform such work to the Building Department Inspector and the 
Oakland County Health Department. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.03.04 Inspections.  The City of Troy will notify the property owner when the 

building sewer and OSDS are required to have an inspection.  The 
Building Department Inspector shall then inspect said OSDS and 
associated appurtenances to determine if the system is operating 
satisfactorily or is failing. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
  
19.03.05 Satisfactory operation will be designated to systems with no evidence of 

an OSDS failure.  Fixed interval inspections will be required every four (4) 
years thereafter until the structure is connected to the City of Troy’s public 
sanitary sewer system. 

 

 7



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.03.06 If the OSDS and associated appurtenances do not meet the requirements 

for a functioning septic system, then the system will be considered a 
failing system.  The owner of the property will be required to have the 
system repaired.  The property owner will be responsible for obtaining all 
necessary repair permits from the Oakland County Health Department.  
Once the repairs have been completed, the property owner will be 
required to have the OSDS inspected again by the Building Department 
Inspector to ensure that the system is working properly. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.03.07 Inspection Fee.  All OSDS inspections performed by the City of Troy’s 

Building Department Inspector shall be made only with written 
authorization and inspection reports issued by the City and with payments 
of fees as shall be established from time to time by the City Council.  The 
fees and charges shall be related to actual costs incurred directly or 
indirectly to implement the On-site Sewage Disposal System Inspection 
Program. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.03.08 Additional Requirements.  No statement contained in this chapter shall be 

construed to interfere with the provisions of the State of Michigan 
Plumbing Code or with any additional requirements that may be imposed 
by the MDEQ or the Oakland County Health Department with respect to 
on-site sewage disposal systems. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 

 
BUILDING SEWERS AND CONNECTIONS 

 
19.04.01 Permit Required.  No unauthorized person shall uncover, make any 

connections with or open into, use, alter or disturb any public sewer or any 
appurtenance thereof without first obtaining a written permit from the 
Building Inspector of the City. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64)            
 
19.04.02 Permit Fee.  All connections with the sanitary or combined sewers of the 

City shall be made only on written authorization and permits issued by the 
City on such forms and on payments of such fees as shall be established 
from time to time by the City Council. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 

 

 8



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
19.04.03 Connection Permit.  Before either a direct or indirect connection is made 

into any interceptor sewer system of Oakland County, a connection permit 
shall be obtained by the owner or contractor from the Oakland County 
Department of Public Works. This permit shall be obtained prior to any 
work being done on the connection to the sewer.  Such permit shall be 
obtained in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Oakland 
County Department of Public Works. 

 
 (Rev. 09-08-68) 
 
19.04.04 Installation Costs.  All costs and expenses incident to the installation and 

connection of the building sewer shall be borne by the owner of said 
property.  The owner shall indemnify the City from all loss or damage that 
may directly or indirectly be occasioned by the installation of the building 
sewer. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 
 
19.04.05 Plans and Inspection of Plumbing Construction.  All applicants for sewer 

connection permits shall first allow the City Plumbing Inspection to inspect 
the premises to be connected.  The inspector shall determine whether 
present plumbing facilities are free from all safety hazards.  The property 
owner prior to connection shall make all changes and improvements in the 
system required by the Plumbing Inspector to the City sewer. 

 
 (Rev. 08-30-65) 
 
19.04.05 Inspection.  The applicant for a building sewer permit shall notify the 

Building Inspector when the building sewer is ready for inspection and 
connection to the public sewer.  The Building Inspector shall then inspect 
the said building and plumbing construction therein and if such 
construction meets the previous requirements as approved in the 
construction permit, a sewer connection permit shall be issued, subject to 
the applicable provisions of other sections of this chapter. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 
 
19.04.06 Repairs.  The cost of all repairs, maintenance and replacements of 

existing building sewers and their connection to public sewers shall be 
borne by the property owner.  Such owner shall make application to 
perform such work to the Building Inspector. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64)   
 
19.04.07 House Connections.  House connections from the lateral sewer in street or 

easement to within five feet from the house shall be in accordance with 
specifications established by the City of Troy Engineering Department.  All 

 9



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 

joints shall be tight and when tested for infiltration shall not exceed the 
infiltration requirements of this Chapter. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
19.04.08 Temporary Covering During New Construction.  In an open excavated 

basement, it shall be the duty and responsibility of all owners, tenants, 
applicants for building permits and/or other agents and employees to 
cause the sanitary sewer pipe inside the building to be plugged.  Also, it 
shall be the duty of such persons to prevent any removal, breaking, 
cracking, loosening, hole drilling, or other damage to said plug, when 
removal, breaking, cracking, loosening, hole drilling, or other damage to 
such plug results in or causes any storm water, surface water, ground 
water, sub-surface drainage, dirt or debris to discharge or run into the 
sanitary sewer system.  At such time as the plumbing system of such 
building or improvement is carried to the first floor, the basement backfilled 
and the roof placed on the building, and approved by the Building 
Department for the City, the plug may be removed and the building 
plumbing system connected thereto. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
PROHIBITED USES 
 
19.05.01 Unpolluted Water.  No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged 

any storm water, surface water, ground water, roof runoff, subsurface 
drainage, cooling water or unpolluted industrial process waters into any 
sanitary sewer.  Yard drains, patio drains, catch basins, downspouts, 
weep tiles, perimeter drains or any other structures used for the collection 
and conveyance of storm water shall not be permitted to discharge either 
directly or indirectly, into any sanitary sewer except as provided in this 
Chapter.  Storm water and all other unpolluted drainage shall be 
discharged into such sewers as are specifically designated as combined 
sewers or storm sewers or to a natural outlet approved by the City 
Engineer and/or the MDEQ.  Industrial cooling water or unpolluted process 
waters may be discharged, upon approval of the Chief Building Inspector 
into a storm sewer, combined sewer or natural outlet. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.05.02 Except as hereinafter provided, no person shall discharge any industrial or 

commercial type wastes into the Troy sewer system, which is deleterious 
to the public health and safety of the people of the City of Troy.  Any waste 
will be considered deleterious that may cause damaging effects as stated 
under General Conditions and/or does not conform to the limitations 
stated under Specific Conditions.  

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 

 10



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 
  (1) General Conditions: 
 
                                (A) Chemical reaction, either directly or indirectly, with the 

materials of construction to impair the strength or durability 
of sewer structures. 

 
             (B) Mechanical action that will destroy or damage the sewer 

structures. 
 
   (C) Restriction of the hydraulic capacity of sewer structures. 
 
   (D) Restriction of the normal inspection or maintenance of the 

sewer structures. 
 
   (E) Placing of unusual demands on the sewage treatment 

equipment or process. 
 
   (F) Limitation of the effectiveness of the sewage treatment 

process. 
 
   (G) Danger to public health and safety. 
 
   (H) Obnoxious conditions inimical to the public interest. 
 
                                 (I) Any conditions not listed above that are prohibited by the 

DWSD or are prohibited by the MDEQ and/or Federal Clean 
Water Act. 

 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 (2) Specific Conditions: 
 
   (A) Acidity or alkalinity must be neutralized to a pH of 7.0 as a 

daily average on a volumetric basis, with a maximum 
temporary variation of pH 5.0 to 10.0. 

 
  (B) Must not contain more than 10 P.P.M. of the following gases: 

Hydrogen sulfur dioxide, oxides of nitrogen, or any of the 
halogens. 

 
  (C)  Must not contain any explosive substance. 
 
  (D) Must not contain any flammable substance with a flash point 

lower than 187 degrees F. 
 
  (E) Must have a temperature within the rage of 32 degrees to 

150 degrees F. 

 11



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 
  (F) Must not contain grease or oil or other substance that will 

solidify or become viscous at temperatures between 32 
degrees and 150 degrees F. 

 
  (G) Must not contain insoluble substance in excess of 10,000 

P.P.M. or exceeding a daily average of 500 P.P.M. 
 
  (H) Must not contain total solids (soluble and insoluble 

substance) in excess of 20,000 P.P.M., or exceeding a daily 
average of 2,000 P.P.M. 

 
  (I) Must not contain soluble substance in concentrations that 

would increase the viscosity to greater than 1.1 specific 
viscosity. 

 
  (J) Must not contain insoluble substance having a specific 

gravity greater than 2.65. 
 
  (K) Must not contain insoluble substance that will fail to pass a 

No. 8 standard sieve, or having any dimension greater than 
1/2 inch. 

 
  (L) Must not contain gases or vapors, either free or occluded, in 

concentrations toxic or dangerous to humans or animals. 
 
  (M) Must not have a chlorine demand greater than 15 P.P.M. 
 
  (N) Must not contain more than 100 P.P.M. of an antiseptic 

substance. 
 
  (O) Must not contain phenols in excess of .005 P.P.M.  
 
  (P) Must not contain any toxic or irritating substance, which will 

create conditions hazardous to public health and safety. 
 
  (Q) Must not contain in excess of 100 P.P.M. or exceed a daily 

average of 25 P.P.M. of any grease or oil or any oily 
substance. 

   
  (R) Must meet all requirements for discharging into the DWSD 

public sanitary sewer system. 
 
All of the preceding standards and regulations are to apply at the point where industrial 
or commercial type wastes are discharged into a public sewer and all chemical and/or  
mechanical corrective treatment must be accomplished to practical completion before 
this point is reached. 

 12



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 
19.02.01 19.05.03 Waste Deposits.  It shall be unlawful for any person to place or 

deposit or permit to be deposited in an unsanitary manner upon any public 
or private property within the City of Troy, or in any area under the 
jurisdiction of the said City of Troy, any human or animal excrement, 
garbage, or other objectionable waste. 

 
(Rev. 04-01-64) 
 
19.02.02 19.05.04  Water Pollution.  It shall be unlawful to discharge into any natural 

watercourse or any storm sewer, within the City of Troy or in any area 
under the jurisdiction of the said City, any sanitary sewage, industrial 
waste, or other polluted waters, except where suitable treatment has been 
provided in accordance with the standards established by the MDEQ and 
the provisions of the Federal Clean Water Act. 

 
(Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.02.03  19.05.05 Privies and Septic Tanks.  Except as hereinafter provided it shall be 

unlawful to construct or maintain any privy, privy vault, septic tank, 
cesspool or other facility intended or based for the disposal of sewage. 

 
(Rev. 04-01-64)  
 
INTERCEPTORS 
 
19.06.01 Grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be provided when in the opinion of 

the Building Inspector and/or the MDEQ they are necessary for the proper 
handling of liquid wastes containing grease in excessive amounts or any 
inflammable wastes, sand, or other harmful ingredients, except that such 
interceptors shall not be required for private living quarters or dwelling 
units.  All interceptors shall be of a type and capacity approved by the 
Building Inspector and/or the MDEQ and shall be located so as to be 
readily accessible for cleaning and inspection.  Grease and oil interceptors 
shall be constructed of impervious materials capable of withstanding 
abrupt and extreme changes in temperature.  They shall be substantially 
constructed, water-tight, and equipped with easily removable covers which 
when bolted in place shall be gas-tight and water-tight. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 
 
19.06.02 Interceptor Maintenance.  Where installed, all grease, oil and sand 
interceptors shall be maintained by the owner, at his expense, in continuously efficient 
operation at all times. 

 
(Rev. 04-01-64) 

 13



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 

PRELIMINARY TREATMENT FACILITIES 
 
19.07.01 Preliminary Treatment Facilities.  The admission into the public sewers of 
any waters or wastes having (1) a five (5) day BOD greater than 300 parts per million by 
weight, or (2) containing more than 350 parts per million by weight of suspended solids, 
or (3) containing any quantity or substance having the characteristics described in 
Section 19.05.02 or (4) having a daily average flow greater than two (2%) percent of the 
average daily sewage flow of the City of Troy, shall be subject to the review and 
approval of the City Council and/or the MDEQ or the DWSD.  Where necessary in the 
opinion of the City Council and/or the MDEQ or the DWSD, the owner shall provide, at 
his expense, such preliminary treatment as may be necessary to (1) reduce the BOD to 
300 parts per million and the suspended solids to 350 parts per million by weight, or (2) 
reduce objectionable characteristics or constituents to within the maximum limits 
provided for in Section 19.05.02, or (3) control the quantities and rates of discharge of 
such waters or wastes.  Plans, specifications and any other pertinent information 
relating to the proposed preliminary treatment facilities shall be submitted for approval 
of the City Council and/or of the MDEQ or the DWSD and no construction of such 
facilities shall be commenced until said approvals are obtained in writing. 

 
(Rev.01-13-03) 

 
19.07.02 Maintenance of Preliminary Facilities.  Where preliminary treatment 
facilities are provided for any waters or wastes, they shall be maintained in satisfactory 
and effective operation, by the owner at his expense. 
 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 
 
19.07.03 Control Manholes.  When required by the City Council and/or the MDEQ 

or the DWSD, the owner of any property served by a building sewer 
carrying industrial wastes shall install a suitable control manhole in the 
building sewer to facilitate observation, sampling and measurement of 
wastes.  Such manhole, when required, shall be accessibly and safely 
located, and shall be constructed in accordance with plans approved by 
the City Council.  The manhole shall be installed by the owner at his 
expense and shall be maintained by him so as to be safe and accessible 
at all times.     

  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.07.04 Measurements and Tests.  All measurements, tests, and analyses of the 

characteristics of waters and wastes to which reference is made shall be 
determined in accordance with "Standard Methods for the Examination of Water 
and Sewage" and shall be determined at the control manhole or upon suitable 
samples being taken at said control manhole.  In the event that no special 
manhole has been required, the control manhole shall be considered to be the 
nearest down-stream manhole in the public sewer to the point at which the 
building sewer is connected. 

 (Rev. 09-25-78) 

 14



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 
19.07.08 Agreements.  No statement contained in this chapter shall be construed 

as preventing any special agreement or arrangement between the City 
and any industrial concern whereby an industrial waste of unusual 
strength or character may be accepted by the said City for treatment, 
subject to the payment by the industrial concern of the estimated cost of 
such treatment. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 
PROTECTION FROM DAMAGE 
 
19.08 No unauthorized person shall break, damage, destroy, uncover, deface or 

tamper with any structure, appurtenance or equipment, which is a part of the 
municipal sewerage system.  No person, firm or corporation shall place earth, 
debris, landscaping or other materials in a manner that will obstruct, obscure or 
prevent normal access to or operation of any manhole, siphon chamber, pumping 
station, meter chamber or other sewerage system appurtenance.  The 
Superintendent may order the removal of said materials.  The expenses incurred 
in the removal shall be a debt to the City from the responsible person, firm or 
corporation, and shall be collected as any other debt to the City. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
SURFACE AND GROUND WATER DISPOSAL 
 
19.09.01 Yard drains, patio drains, catch basins, downspouts, sump pumps or any 

structures used for the collection and conveyance of storm water shall not 
be permitted to discharge into any sanitary sewer.  Any such structure 
which conveys storm water either directly or indirectly to any sanitary 
sewer shall be disconnected or altered so as to remove the possibility of 
such conveyance. 

 
19.09.02 No weep tile connection to the sanitary sewer system or below grade patio 

drain made after the original adoption of this Section, February 19, 1968, 
shall be considered legal and such connections made after that date shall 
be promptly disconnected. 

 
19.09.03 In the case of buildings with weep tiles or below grade patio drains which 

were permitted to be connected to the sanitary sewer prior to said date, 
the surface around the building shall be sloped so as to provide positive 
drainage of all roof and surface areas away from the building.  Where 
weep tiles are connected to the sanitary sewer, downspouts shall be so 
constructed or altered that they do not discharge into any flower or shrub 
bed adjacent to a building wall, nor upon the ground within five (5) feet of 
the building wall.  When the building is located less than five (5) feet from 
the property line or when there are other practical difficulties, the 
downspouts shall be discharged in a manner approved by the Chief 

 15



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 

Building Inspector. 
 
19.09.04 Downspout piping shall in all cases be permanently affixed to the building 

wall and shall be anchored at the discharge end. 
 
 (Rev. 06-21-99) 
 
19.09.05  Requirements for Bulkhead.  On all new lateral lines, a watertight 

bulkhead shall be installed to prohibit water, sand or other material from 
entering the existing sewer  system.  Such bulkhead shall be left in place 
until removal is authorized by the City Engineer. 

 
 (Rev. 09-09-68) 
 
19.09.06  Ground Water Infiltration.  A test for water infiltration into any newly 

constructed sewer system shall be performed by the owner or contractor 
in accordance with the procedures  established by the City of Troy 
Engineering Department.  When the owner or contractor has determined 
that the system meets the following requirements for maximum infiltration, 
he shall arrange for the results of such test to be verified by the 
Engineering Department. 

 
19.09.07 Ground water infiltration at any time shall not exceed 250 U.S. gallons per 

inch of pipe diameter per mile of sewer per 24 hours for the overall 
system, nor shall infiltration exceed 500 U.S. gallons per inch of diameter 
per mile of pipe per 24 hours for any individual run between manholes.  It 
shall be the responsibility of the owner or contractor to whom the permit 
was issued to make whatever corrections as may be necessary to the 
system to meet the infiltration requirement prior to using the sanitary 
sewer. 

 
 (Rev. 09-09-68) 

 
ENFORCEMENT - PENALTIES 

 
19.10.01 Inspectors.  The Building Department Inspector of the City of Troy and 

other duly authorized officials or employees of the City and agents of the 
MDEQ, Oakland County Health Department, or the DWSD bearing proper 
credentials and identification shall be permitted to enter upon all properties 
for the purpose of inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, and 
testing, in accordance with the provisions of this chapter at any time 
during reasonable or usual business hours.  Any person guilty of refusing 
or obstructing such entry shall be guilty of a violation of this code. 

 
19.10.02 Notice to Cease Violation.  Any person found to be violating any 

provisions of this chapter except Section 19.04.08, 19.05.02, 
19.05.01,19.08, and 19.10.03 shall be served by the City of Troy with 

 16



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 

written notice stating the nature of such violation and providing a 
reasonable time limit for the satisfactory correction thereof.  The offender 
shall, within the period of the time stated in such notice, take such 
corrective action as may be necessary. 

 
 (Rev. 06-19-72) 

 
19.10.03 Continued Violation.  Any person who shall continue any violation beyond 

the time limit provided shall upon conviction thereof, be fined not less than 
Twenty-Five ($25.00) nor more than Five Hundred  ($500.00) Dollars, or 
by imprisonment for not more than ninety (90) days, or by both fine and 
imprisonment in the discretion of the court.  Each day or fraction of a day 
in which such violation shall continue shall be deemed a separate offense.  
Any officer, agent, or employee guilty of aiding or abetting such violation, 
or, being responsible therefore, refuses or neglects to take corrective 
action, shall be guilty as a principal. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
19.10.04 Civil Liability.  Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter 

shall be liable to the City of Troy for any expense, loss or damage 
occasioned to the City of Troy by reason of such violation, and recovery 
therefore may be had in an appropriate action in any court of competent 
jurisdiction. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 
 
19.10.05 Abatement in Equity.  Any continued violation, after due notice as provided 

in Section 2.91, shall be deemed a public nuisance, per se, and may be 
abated by suit in equity by the City of Troy in any court of competent 
jurisdiction.  This remedy shall be in addition to those heretofore provided. 

 
 (Rev. 09-09-69) 
 
19.10.06 Severability.  If any portion of this Chapter is for any reason held invalid or 

unenforceable, such portion shall be deemed to be a separate and 
independent provision from the remainder of this Chapter, and shall have 
no effect on the validity or enforceability of the remainder of this Chapter. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 

 

 17



 

To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
Date:  July 26, 2005 
 
Re:  Charter Revision Committee Recommendations 

The Charter Revision Committee met on Monday, July 25, 2005. Attached is a draft copy of the 
minutes of the meeting, a red lined copy of the proposed Charter amendments, and a copy of 
the proposed amendments, as they would appear if adopted by the voters. The amendments 
are recommended for submittal to the Troy voters at the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election. 
 
Questions recommended by the Charter Revision Committee: 

10. Section 4.2.5 – Study Sessions - Proposed Text Amendment 
 
11. Section 4.3.5 – Business at Study Sessions - Proposed Text Amendment 
 
12. Section 5.13 – Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinance to Electors - 

Proposed Text Amendment 
 
13. Section 5.13.5 – Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to Electors - 

Proposed Text Amendment 
 
14. Section 12.3 – Restriction on Powers to Lease Property - Proposed Text Amendment 

 
In addition to the adoption of the above mentioned sections, the Charter Revision Committee 
requested that Council direct staff to prepare the ballot language to include explanation for those 
sections that are proposed for amendment due to implementation of the Election Consolidation 
under State Statute. 
 
City Administration recommends the following grouping of the proposed 15 ballot questions and 
requests that Council indicate the order of proposed groupings of sections for placement on the 
ballot: 
 

Memorandum 

bittnera
Text Box
F-07



 
RECOMMENDED MOTION A  
APPROVAL OF THE PLACEMENT OF BALLOT QUESTION PROPOSALS: 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES as to form the following proposed Charter 
Amendments for the November 8, 2005 City General Election: 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #10 (86 words) 

Shall Section 4.2.5,Study Meetings, be created to provide for Study meetings of 
Council with the meetings to be called by the Clerk on the written request of the 
Mayor, or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written notice 
to each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place of 
residence; but a study meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of the 
Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing? 
 
Yes 
No 
 

RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #11 (27 words) 
Shall Section 4.3.5, Business at Study Meetings, be created to limit the business 
transacted at any Study meeting of the Council to no action taken? 
 
Yes 
No 
 

RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #12 (70 words) 
Shall Section 5.13, Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinance to Electors, be 
amended to implement election consolidation revisions to Michigan Election Law, by 
providing for the scheduling of the election in accordance with State Election Law and 
striking “within sixty days from such date of presentation for the submission of the 
initiative proposal” with the submittal to be made by an affirmative vote of the Council 
members elect? 
 
Yes 
No 
 

RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #13 (35 words) 
Shall Section 5.13.5, Submission of Council Initiated non-binding, legislative Advisory 
Ballot Questions to Electors, be created to provide a mechanism for the City Council 
to place advisory ballot questions on the Regular City Election Ballot, by an affirmative 
majority vote of members elect? 
 
Yes 
No 
 



RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #14 (41 words) 
Shall Section 12.3, Restriction on Powers to Lease Property, be amended to include 
long-term use agreements as an additional type of ownership that is subject to the 
City’s same restriction on powers to lease property procedure for renting or leasing of 
public property? 
 
Yes 
No 
 

Yes: 
No: 
 
AND 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION B  
APPROVAL OF THE BALLOT QUESTION ORDER: 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES the following ballot question order of the 
proposed Charter Amendment proposals on the November 8, 2005 City General Election: 
____________________________________________________________________________. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CHARTER -  Red Line Copy: 
 
10. Section 4.2.5 – Study Sessions - Proposed Text Amendment 

Section 4.2.5 - Study Meetings:  
Study meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the Mayor, or any two 
members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written notice to each member of the Council, 
served personally or left at his usual place of residence; but a study meeting may be held on 
shorter notice if all members of the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing. 
 
11. Section 4.3.5 – Business at Study Sessions - Proposed Text Amendment 
 

Section 4.3.5 - Business at Study Meetings: 
No business shall be transacted at any Study meeting of the Council. 
 
12. Section 5.13 – Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinance to Electors - 

Proposed Text Amendment 
 

Section 5.13 - Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinances to Electors: 
Should the Council, by an affirmative vote of the members elect, decide to submit the proposal 
to the electors, it shall be submitted at the next election held in the cCity for any other purpose, 
or, in the discretion of the Council, at a special election called for that specific purpose in 
accordance with State Election Law.  In the case of an initiatory petition, if no election is to be 
held in the city for any other purpose within one hundred fifty days from the time the petition is 
presented to the Council and the Council does not enact the ordinance, then the Council shall 
call a special election, in accordance with State Election Law.  within sixty days from such date 
of presentation for the submission of the initiative proposal.  The result of all elections held 
under the provisions of this section shall be determined by a majority vote of the electors voting 
thereon, except in cases where otherwise required by sStatute or the Constitution?. 
 
13. Section 5.13.5 – Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to 

Electors - Proposed Text Amendment 
 

Section 5.13.5 – Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to Electors:  
Should the Council, by an affirmative vote of the members elect, decide to submit a Non-binding, 
legislative advisory ballot question to the electors, it shall be submitted at the next Regular City 
Election. The results of all elections held under the provisions of this section shall be determined by 
a majority vote of the electors voting thereon except in cases where otherwise required by Statute 
or the Constitution. 
 
14. Section 12.3 – Restriction on Powers to Lease Property - Proposed Text Amendment 

Section 12.3 - Restriction on Powers to Lease Property: 
Any agreement or contract for the renting or leasing or long-term use of public property to any 
person for a period longer than three years shall be subject to the same referendum procedure as 



is provided in the case of ordinances passed by the Council but any petition for such referendum 
must be filed within thirty days after publication of the proceedings of the meeting of the Council at 
which such agreement or contract is authorized. 
 
The transfer or assignment of any agreement or contract for such renting or leasing or long-term 
use of public property may be made only upon approval of the Council but approval of such 
transfer shall not be subject to referendum. 
 
Rentals, and leases, long-term use agreements, and renewals thereof shall be for a fair 
consideration as determined by the Council. 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CHARTER - IF ADOPTED: 

10. Section 4.2.5 - Study Meetings:  
Study meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the Mayor, or any two 
members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written notice to each member of the Council, 
served personally or left at his usual place of residence; but a study meeting may be held on 
shorter notice if all members of the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing. 

11. Section 4.3.5 - Business at Study Meetings: 
No business shall be transacted at any Study meeting of the Council. 

12. Section 5.13 - Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinances to Electors: 
Should the Council, by an affirmative vote of the members elect, decide to submit the proposal 
to the electors, it shall be submitted at the next election held in the City for any other purpose, 
or, in the discretion of the Council, at a special election called for that specific purpose in 
accordance with State Election Law.  In the case of an initiatory petition, if no election is to be 
held in the city for any other purpose within one hundred fifty days from the time the petition is 
presented to the Council and the Council does not enact the ordinance, then the Council shall 
call a special election, in accordance with State Election Law.   The result of all elections held 
under the provisions of this section shall be determined by a majority vote of the electors voting 
thereon, except in cases where otherwise required by Statute or the Constitution? 

13. Section 5.13.5 – Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to 
Electors:  

Should the Council, by an affirmative vote of the members elect, decide to submit a non-binding, 
legislative advisory ballot question to the electors, it shall be submitted at the next Regular City 
Election. The results of all elections held under the provisions of this section shall be determined by 
a majority vote of the electors voting thereon except in cases where otherwise required by Statute 
or the Constitution. 

14. Section 12.3 - Restriction on Powers to Lease Property: 
Any agreement or contract for the renting or leasing or long-term use of public property to any 
person for a period longer than three years shall be subject to the same referendum procedure as 
is provided in the case of ordinances passed by the Council but any petition for such referendum 
must be filed within thirty days after publication of the proceedings of the meeting of the Council at 
which such agreement or contract is authorized. 
 
The transfer or assignment of any agreement or contract for such renting or leasing or long-term 
use of public property may be made only upon approval of the Council but approval of such 
transfer shall not be subject to referendum. 
 
Rentals, leases, long-term use agreements, and renewals thereof shall be for a fair consideration 
as determined by the Council. 



GROUPING I – ELECTION CONSOLIDATION MANDATED AMENDMENTS 
 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #___ (24 words) 

Shall Section 3.4 of the Troy Charter be amended by moving and incorporating 
Section 7.5 of the Troy Charter in its entirety? 
 
Yes 
No 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #___ (78 words) 

Shall Section 3.4 of the Troy Charter be amended to implement election consolidation 
revisions to Michigan Election Law, by revising the term of Troy City Council Members 
and the Mayor from the current three (3) year terms that expire at 8:00 PM of the third 
year of the term to provide for four (4) year terms that expire at 7:30 PM of the first 
Monday following the Regular Election of the fourth year of their term? 
 
Yes 
No 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #___ (20 words) 

Shall Section 7.5.5 of the Troy Charter be renumbered as 3.4.1 and titled as Elective 
Officers Term Limitations? 
 
Yes 
No 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #___ (46 words) 

Shall Section 7.5.5 be amended to revise the definition of a term from the current 
language that “any portion of a term served shall constitute one full term” to “Any service 
greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a term.”? 
 
Yes 
No 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #___ (78 words) 

Shall Section 3.4.2 be created to implement election consolidation revisions to Michigan 
Election Law, by providing for the re-establishment of the staggering of City Council terms 
by providing for three (3) City Council Members to be elected in one election cycle and 
the remaining three (3) Council Members and the Mayor to be elected in a subsequent 
election cycle, which will be accomplished through an election of a one-time two (2) year 
City Council Member term? 
 
Yes 
No 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #___ (94 words) 

Shall Section 7.3 of the Troy City Charter be amended to implement election 
consolidation revisions to Michigan Election Law, by changing the election date from the 
“first Monday in April of each year” to the “first Tuesday after the first Monday of every 
odd-year November” and eliminating “if some other date in the months of March, April or 



May is fixed by law for the holding of the state biennial election, then the regular city 
election shall be held on the date so fixed”, since these provisions conflict with Michigan 
Election Law? 
 
Yes 
No 
 

RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #___ (99 words) 
Shall Section 7.6 of the Troy City Charter be revised to implement election consolidation 
revisions to Michigan Election Law, by providing “Special City Elections shall be called as 
provided in Michigan Election Law” and eliminating “Special city elections shall be held 
when called by resolution of the Council at least 40 days in advance of such election, or 
when required by this charter or statute. Any resolution calling a special election shall set 
forth the purpose of such election. No more special city elections shall be called in any 
one year than the number permitted by statute.” 
 
Yes 
No 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #___ (84 words) 

Shall Section 7.9 of the Troy City Charter be revised to eliminate a conflict with Michigan 
Election Law, by eliminating “No person shall sign his name to a greater number of 
petitions for any office than there are persons to be elected to said office at the following 
City election. If the signature of any persons appears on more petitions than permitted by 
this section, such signatures shall not be counted on any one of the petitions so signed 
for that office.”? 
 
Yes 
No 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #___ (91 words) 

Shall Section 7.10 of the Troy City Charter be revised to eliminate a conflict with Michigan 
Election Law by striking “The Council shall approve a form of nominating petition with 
spaces thereon for address and date of signing for each signer, an affidavit form for the 
circulator to sign affirming that he and the petitioners are registered electors and a 
summary of the qualifications required of candidates and the regulations governing the 
petition” and providing that “Nominating petitions shall be in a form as provided by 
Michigan Election Law”? 
 
Yes 
No 

 
GROUPING II – STUDY MEETING AMENDMENTS 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #___ (86 words) 

Shall Section 4.2.5,Study Meetings, be created to provide for Study meetings of Council 
with the meetings to be called by the Clerk on the written request of the Mayor, or any 
two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written notice to each member 
of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place of residence; but a study 



meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of the Council are present or have 
waived notice thereof in writing? 
 
Yes 
No 
 

RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #___ (27 words) 
Shall Section 4.3.5, Business at Study Meetings, be created to limit the business 
transacted at any Study meeting of the Council to no action taken? 
 
Yes 
No 
 

GROUPING III – ADVISORY QUESTIONS AMENDMENT 
 

RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #___ (46 words) 
Shall Section 5.13.5, Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to 
Electors, be created to provide a mechanism for the City Council to place non- binding 
legislative advisory ballot questions on the Regular City Election Ballot, by an affirmative 
majority vote of members elect? 
 
Yes 
No 

 
GROUPING IV – LONG-TERM USE AGREEMENTS AMENDMENT 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #___ (41 words) 

Shall Section 12.3, Restriction on Powers to Lease Property, be amended to include 
long-term use agreements as an additional type of ownership that is subject to the City’s 
same restriction on powers to lease property procedure for renting or leasing of public 
property? 
 
Yes 
No 

 
As always, we are available to answer any questions or address concerns relating to this 
proposal. 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft   July 25, 2005 
 

-1- 

A meeting of the Troy Charter Revision Committee was held Monday, June 25, 2005, at 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Chairman Bliss called the Meeting to order at 3:00 
PM. 

 
Roll Call:  PRESENT: Daniel H. Bliss, Jerry E. Bloom, Robert Noce, Cynthia A. 

Wilsher 
 ABSENT: Lillian Barno, Shirley Kanoza, Mark R. Solomon 

ALSO PRESENT: City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Clerk Tonni 
Bartholomew, and Deputy Clerk Barbara Holmes 

 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Members Barno, Kanoza and Solomon 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-018 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Bloom 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Barno, Kanoza and Solomon absence at the meeting of the 
Charter Revision Committee meeting of July 25, 2005 be EXCUSED.  
 
Yes: Bliss, Bloom, Noce, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Monday, June 20, 2005 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-019 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Bloom 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Minutes of Monday, June 20, 2005 are 
hereby APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: Bloom, Noce, Wilsher, Bliss 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS: 
 
a) Vote on Proposal #10 (86 words) 

Section 4.2.5 – Study Sessions 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-020 
Moved by Bloom 
Seconded by Noce 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft   July 25, 2005 
 

-2- 

RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #10 to read as follows: 
 

Shall Section 4.2.5,Study Meetings, be created to provide for Study meetings of 
Council with the meetings to be called by the Clerk on the written request of the 
Mayor, or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written 
notice to each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place of 
residence; but a study meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of the 
Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing? 
 

Yes: Bloom, Noce, Wilsher, Bliss 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) Vote on Proposal #11 (27 words) 

Section 4.3.5 – Business at Study Sessions 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-021 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Bloom 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #11 to read as follows: 
 

Shall Section 4.3.5, Business at Study Meetings, be created to limit the business 
transacted at any Study meeting of the Council to no action taken? 

 
Yes: Noce, Wilsher, Bliss, Bloom 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
c) Vote on Proposal #12 (70 words) 

Section 5.13 – Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinance to 
Electors 

 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-022 
Moved by Noce 
Seconded by Bliss 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #12 to read as follows: 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft   July 25, 2005 
 

-3- 

Shall Section 5.13, Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinance to Electors, 
be amended to implement election consolidation revisions to Michigan Election Law, 
by providing for the scheduling of the election in accordance with State Election Law 
and striking “within sixty days from such date of presentation for the submission of 
the initiative proposal” with the submittal to be made by an affirmative vote of the 
Council members elect? 
 

Yes: Wilsher, Bliss, Bloom, Noce 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
d) Vote on Proposal #13 (35 words) 

Section 5.13.5 – Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to 
Electors 

 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-023 
Moved by Bloom 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #13 to read as follows: 
 

Shall Section 5.13.5, Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to 
Electors, be created to provide a mechanism for the City Council to place 
nonbinding, legislative advisory ballot questions on the Regular City Election Ballot, 
by an affirmative majority vote of members elect? 
 

Yes: Bliss, Bloom, Noce, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
e) Vote on Proposal #14 (41 words) 

Section 12.3 – Restriction on Powers to Lease Property 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-024 
Moved by Bloom 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #14 to read as follows: 
 

Shall Section 12.3, Restriction on Powers to Lease Property, be amended to include 
long term use agreements as an additional type of ownership that is subject to the 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft   July 25, 2005 
 

-4- 

City’s same restriction on powers to lease property procedure for renting or leasing 
of public property? 
 

Yes: Bloom, Noce, Wilsher, Bliss 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Make Recommendation to City Council 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-025 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Noce 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS that Troy City 
Council authorize City Staff to prepare ballot language for the November 8, 2005 Election 
to include explanation of Charter Amendments for those sections that are proposed for 
amendment due to the implementation of Election Consolidation under State Statute. 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: None Present 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 3:27 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Daniel H. Bliss, Chair  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



 
 
DATE:   July 20, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Parking Variance, 701 – 705 Minnesota 
 
 
 
 
We have received a permit application from Raj Patel, the owner of the existing multi-
tenant industrial building at 701 – 705 Minnesota to construct a number of mezzanines 
within the existing building.  When we include the area of these mezzanines in the area 
of the building we come up with a gross floor area for this building of 18,680 square 
feet.  A total of 42 parking spaces would be required for the building based upon the 
requirements of Section 40.21.81 of the Zoning Ordinance.  The existing development 
has only 36 parking spaces available. 
 
In light of this 6 parking space deficiency the plans for the construction of the 
mezzanines has been denied.  In response to our denial, the petitioners have filed an 
appeal asking for a variance on the parking requirement.  In accordance with Section 
44.01.00 a public hearing on the request has been scheduled for your meeting of 
August 15, 2005. 
 
We have included copies of the appeal request as well as the supporting documentation 
for your information. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

bittnera
Text Box
G-01a



 



 



 



 



 
 



Date: July 21, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (AUGUST 

15, 2005) – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212) – 
Articles IV, XXV, XXVI and XXVII, Freestanding Restaurants, Banks and 
Daycare Facilities in the R-C, O-M and O-S-C Districts. 

 
The intent of this amendment is to permit restaurants, daycare facilities and banks 
and financial institutions in the R-C, O-M and O-S-C Districts, subject to special use 
approval.  The uses could sit on separate parcels created from the office property 
and would generally be located closer to the street than the existing office buildings.  
This will have the effect of strengthening the relationship between the street and the 
buildings on the site, and also improving marketability for existing office properties.  
 
Presently daycare facilities and banks and financial institutions are not permitted in 
the O-M, O-S-C and R-C districts.  Restaurants are permitted as accessory uses in 
the RC, O-M and O-S-C district, provided the restaurant is “designed so as to provide 
a logical extension of the floor plan of the principal structure”.  This requirement has 
contributed to the creation of large off-street parking areas surrounding large 
office/restaurant buildings.  Generally these buildings are set back a considerable 
distance from the street with little relationship to the street.   
 
New definitions for “fast food restaurant”, “financial institution” and “full service 
restaurant” were provided.  Note that fast food restaurants will not be permitted uses in 
the O-M, O-S-C and R-C districts. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on ZOTA 212 at the June 14, 2005 
Regular meeting, and recommended approval of the proposed text amendment.  City 
Management recommends approval of ZOTA 212. 
 
A Public Hearing will be held on this item at the August 15, 2005 City Council Meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. ZOTA 212, dated 6/21/05 
2. Minutes from June 14, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 212 Freestanding Restaurants in RC\Announce CC Public Hearing Memo 08 01 05.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
G-01b



1 

PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
(ZOTA 212) 

6/21/05 
Text Amendment for Freestanding Restaurants, Banks, Bank Branches and 

Financial Institutions, and Nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers  
in the R-C, OM and O-S-C Zoning Districts 

 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Amendment to Chapter 39 
 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by the re-numbering of section 
04.20.59 to 04.20.60, and by the addition of new sections 04.20.57 to 04.20.60 to read 
as follows: 
 
 
04.00.00 ARTICLE IV DEFINITIONS 
 
04.20.00 DEFINITIONS   
 
04.20.55 EXCAVATION: any breaking of ground, except common household 

gardening and ground care. 
 
04.20.569 FAMILY:  One or two persons or parents, with their direct lineal descendents 

and adopted children (and including the domestic employees thereof) 
together with not more than two persons not so related, living together in the 
whole or part of a dwelling comprising a single housekeeping unit.  Every 
additional group of two or less persons living on such housekeeping unit 
shall be considered a separate family for the purposes of this Chapter. 

 
04.20.5760 FAMILY DAY CARE HOME:  A private residence in which one (1) to six (6) 

children under the age of eighteen (18) are received for care and 
supervision from other than a parent or legal guardian for periods of less 
than twenty-four (24) hours a day, in addition to children related to an adult 
member of the family by blood, marriage or adoption.  Family Day Care 
Home includes a home that gives care to such unrelated children for more 
than a total of thirty (30) days during a calendar year. 

 
04.20.58 FAST FOOD RESTAURANT: An establishment that provides food and 

beverages to patrons that is primarily designed for over-the-counter sale 
of ready-to-eat foods and/or beverages from a limited, standardized menu, 



2 

and which does not have waiter/waitress service at dining tables; and 
where the food is typically paid for prior to eating. Such facilities may also 
sell food and beverages through a drive-up or drive-through service 
window.  

 
04.20.59 FINANCIAL INSTITUTION: A savings and loan, credit union, mortgage 

office, or similar institution, including automated teller machines.   
 
04.20.60 FULL SERVICE RESTAURANT: An establishment that provides food and 

beverages to patrons who order and are served while seated (i.e. 
waiter/waitress service) and typically pay after eating, and that may also 
provide this type of service in combination with alcoholic beverages 
prepared, served and consumed on the premises, takeout services, 
limited outdoor seating/dining, or live non-theatrical entertainment. 

 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by the addition of text to section 
25.10.00 and the addition of new section 25.30.05, 25.30.06 and 25.30.07 to read as 
follows: 
 
 
25.00.00 ARTICLE XXV    O-M MID-RISE OFFICE DISTRICT 
 
25.10.00 INTENT:  
  The O-M, Office Mid-Rise, District is intended to accommodate office 

buildings and restricted related retail and service establishments on large 
land parcels in proximity to areas of major commercial or civic development.  
Civic development shall mean Civic Center building. Such Districts are 
intended to provide transition between these areas and major thoroughfares, 
and areas of less intense development. Because of the large land area 
involved, it is felt that greater flexibility as to building height and related uses 
is warranted, as compared to the O-1 (Office Building) District. Because of 
this flexibility, great care must be taken as to planning of such areas and the 
development which is to occur within them.  Site plan approval of each 
development is thus a necessity in order to assure that such Districts are 
fully compatible with adjacent areas. The O-M District is intended to 
encourage the development of uses and services that will support and 
enhance the marketability of office buildings in the O-M District, and to 
preserve the economic vitality of the area through the development of 
uses and services for the benefit of tenants and local residents.   

 
 
25.30.05 Free-standing, full service restaurants situated on “pad-sites” or individual 

out-parcels subject to the following conditions:  
 

A. Fast foot restaurants and restaurants with drive-up windows or service 
facilities shall be prohibited. 



3 

 
B. Minimum gross floor area of the building shall be 3500 square feet. 
 
C. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 

provided that the newly created lots shall comply with the density, area 
and bulk requirements for the zone. 

 
D. Tables and seating for outdoor dining are permitted provided that the 

maximum seating area does not exceed 25% of the gross floor area of 
the building and provided that such outdoor areas are situated on a 
patio surface composed of concrete, pavers, or other similar materials. 
Such outdoor dining areas shall be partially screened by the use of 
planters, hedges, walls, fences, landscaping materials or any 
combination thereof to a minimum height of 36 inches, the design of 
such screening to be approved by the Planning Commission. 

 
E. No portion of any outdoor seating area shall be located closer than 300 

feet from any residential district. Live or recorded music is prohibited in 
outdoor seating areas. 

 
F. Restaurants and food service establishments selling or serving 

alcoholic beverages shall further be subject to the requirements of the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

 
G. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the restaurant and the office building.  
 
 
25.30.06 Banks, bank branches and financial institutions, subject to the following:  
 

A. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 
provided that the newly created lots shall comply with the density, area 
and bulk requirements for the zone. 

 
B. Ingress and egress shall be provided so as not to conflict with adjacent 

uses or adversely affect traffic flow on adjacent thoroughfares 
 

C. Drive-up windows or service facilities shall include the provision of 
back-up or waiting space, physically separated from off-street parking 
areas and drives, at the rate of four (4) car spaces for each service 
window or facility, in addition to the space at the service window or 
facility. Drives providing such waiting spaces shall have a minimum 
clear width of thirteen (13) feet. 

 
D. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the bank and the office building.  



4 

25.30.07 Nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers (not including 
dormitories), subject to the following:  

 
A. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 

provided that the newly created lots shall comply with all zone 
requirements for lot area, building setbacks, and parking 

 
B. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the facility and the office building.  
 
C. The facility shall be licensed with the Family Independence Agency or 

the appropriate licensing agency, should the licensing duties be provided 
by another organization. 

 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by the addition of text to section 
26.10.00 and the addition of new section 26.30.05, 26.30.06 and 26.30.07 to read as 
follows: 
 
 
26.00.00 ARTICLE XXVI O-S-C OFFICE-SERVICE-COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 
 
26.10.00 INTENT: 
  The O-S-C (Office-Service-Commercial) District is designed and intended to 

accommodate large office buildings and restricted retail and service 
establishments which serve large numbers of people.  A major purpose of 
this District is to provide limited areas for buildings of greater height and 
more intensive land use activity in an otherwise low-density community. 
Because of the greater building height, intensity of land use, and associated 
high volumes of vehicular and pedestrian traffic, this District is not 
compatible in conjunction with low-density residential areas. It is therefore 
intended that this District be located only in proximity to areas of major 
commercial or civic development, and to major thoroughfares or freeways. 
The O-S-C District is intended to encourage the development of uses and 
services that will support and enhance the marketability of office buildings 
in the O-S-C District, and to preserve the economic vitality of the area 
through the development of uses and services for the benefit of tenants 
and local residents.  Further, because of the intensity of use and the 
potential diversification of land uses in such a District, great care must be 
taken as to the planning of such areas and the development which is to 
occur within them. Site plan approval of each development is thus an 
absolute necessity to assure a compatible arrangement of the varied land 
uses which are permitted to be established. 

 
 
 
 



5 

26.30.00  USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 
26.30.05 Free-standing, full service restaurants situated on “pad-sites” or individual 

out-parcels subject to the following conditions:  
 

A. Fast foot restaurants and restaurants with drive-up windows or service 
facilities shall be prohibited. 

 
B. Minimum gross floor area of the building shall be 3500 square feet 

 
C. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 

provided that the newly created lots shall comply with the density, area 
and bulk requirements for the zone. 

  
D. Tables and seating for outdoor dining are permitted provided that the 

maximum seating area does not exceed 25% of the gross floor area of 
the building and provided that such outdoor areas are situated on a 
patio surface composed of concrete, pavers, or other similar materials. 
Such outdoor dining areas shall be partially screened by the use of 
planters, hedges, walls, fences, landscaping materials or any 
combination thereof to a minimum height of 36 inches, the design of 
such screening to be approved by the Planning Commission. 

 
E. No portion of any outdoor seating area shall be located closer than 300 

feet from any residential district. Live or recorded music is prohibited in 
outdoor seating areas. 

 
F. Restaurants and food service establishments selling or serving 

alcoholic beverages shall further be subject to the requirements of the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

 
G. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the restaurant and the office building.  
 
 
26.30.06  Banks, bank branches and financial institutions, subject to the following:  
 

A. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 
provided that the newly created lots shall comply with the density, area 
and bulk requirements for the zone. 

 
B. Ingress and egress shall be provided so as not to conflict with adjacent 

uses or adversely affect traffic flow on adjacent thoroughfares 
 

C. Drive-up windows or service facilities shall include the provision of 
back-up or waiting space, physically separated from off-street parking 



6 

areas and drives, at the rate of four (4) car spaces for each service 
window or facility, in addition to the space at the service window or 
facility. Drives providing such waiting spaces shall have a minimum 
clear width of thirteen (13) feet. 

 
D. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the bank and the office building.  
 

 
26.30.07 Nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers (not including 

dormitories), subject to the following: 
 

A. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 
provided that the newly created lots shall comply with all zone 
requirements for lot area, building setbacks, and parking 

 
B. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the facility and the office building.  
 
C. The facility shall be licensed with the Family Independence Agency or 

the appropriate licensing agency, should the licensing duties be provided 
by another organization. 

 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by the addition of text to section 
27.10.00 and the addition of new section 27.30.04, 27.30.04 and 27.30.05 to read as 
follows: 
 
 
27.00.00 ARTICLE XXVII R-C RESEARCH CENTER DISTRICT 
 
27.10.00 INTENT: 
  The R-C (Research Center) District is designed to provide for industrial-

research and office uses in planned developments. Such districts are to be 
located and developed so as to complement the significant light industrial 
character of the community, while at the same time providing for the 
necessary related non-manufacturing uses such as corporate office and 
research facilities. The R-C District is intended to encourage the 
development of uses and services that will support and enhance the 
marketability of office buildings in the R-C District, and to preserve the 
economic vitality of the area through the development of uses and 
services for the benefit of tenants and local residents.  Further, the 
Research Center District is intended to provide for those major industrial-
research, and office, and training uses which require proximity to major non-
residential areas, rather than for smaller local-serving uses such as medical 
offices, real estate offices, etc., which could reasonably be located in local 
commercial and service areas elsewhere in the community. 



7 

27.10.00 INTENT 
 

To encourage the development of uses and services that will support and 
enhance the marketability of office buildings in the R-C District. 
 
To preserve the economic vitality of the area through the development of 
uses and services for the benefit of tenants and local residents. 

 
27.30.00  USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 
27.30.03 Free-standing, full service restaurants situated on “pad-sites” or individual 

out-parcels subject to the following conditions:  
 

A. Fast foot restaurants and restaurants with drive-up windows or service 
facilities shall be prohibited. 

 
B. Minimum gross floor area of the building shall be 3500 square feet. 
 
C. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 

provided that the newly created lots shall comply with the density, area 
and bulk requirements for the zone. 

  
D. Tables and seating for outdoor dining are permitted provided that the 

maximum seating area does not exceed 25% of the gross floor area of 
the building and provided that such outdoor areas are situated on a 
patio surface composed of concrete, pavers, or other similar materials. 
Such outdoor dining areas shall be partially screened by the use of 
planters, hedges, walls, fences, landscaping materials or any 
combination thereof to a minimum height of 36 inches, the design of 
such screening to be approved by the Planning Commission. 

 
E. No portion of any outdoor seating area shall be located closer than 300 

feet from any residential district.  Live or recorded music is prohibited 
in outdoor seating areas. 

 
F. Restaurants and food service establishments selling or serving 

alcoholic beverages shall further be subject to the requirements of the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

 
G. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the restaurant and the office building.  
 
 
 
 
 



8 

27.30.04 Banks, bank branches and financial institutions, subject to the following: 
  

A. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 
provided that the newly created lots shall comply with the density, area 
and bulk requirements for the zone. 

 
B. Ingress and egress shall be provided so as not to conflict with adjacent 

uses or adversely affect traffic flow on adjacent thoroughfares 
 

C. Drive-up windows or service facilities shall include the provision of 
back-up or waiting space, physically separated from off-street parking 
areas and drives, at the rate of four (4) car spaces for each service 
window or facility, in addition to the space at the service window or 
facility. Drives providing such waiting spaces shall have a minimum 
clear width of thirteen (13) feet. 

 
D. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the bank and the office building.  
 

 
27.30.05 Nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers (not including 

dormitories), subject to the following: 
 

A. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 
provided that the newly created lots shall comply with all zone 
requirements for lot area, building setbacks, and parking 

 
B. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the facility and the office building.  
 

C. The facility shall be licensed with the Family Independence Agency or 
the appropriate licensing agency, should the licensing duties be provided 
by another organization. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 

Section 2.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 
at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on 
the ____ day of ________________, 2005. 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 212 Freestanding Restaurants in RC\Draft 6 21 05.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 19 - 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212) – 
Articles XXV, XXVI, and XXVII – Freestanding Restaurants, Banks and Daycare 
Facilities in the O-M (Mid-Rise Office), O-S-C (Office-Service-Commercial) and R-C 
(Research Center) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment.  He reviewed the latest three revisions that were incorporated in the 
proposed text.  Mr. Savidant reported that City Management concurs with the 
proposed text amendment.   
 
Items briefly discussed were the size of the play area with respect to State and City 
requirements, and the minimum height of a fence for outdoor dining with respect to 
requirements of the Michigan Liquor Control Commission.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-104 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles IV, XXV, XXVI and XXVII, pertaining to Freestanding 
Restaurants, Banks and Daycare Facilities in the O-M, O-S-C and R-C Zoning 
Districts, and related additional definitions, be amended as printed on the Proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That any reference to the requirement of the City 
ordinance for square footage of a play area be altered to match the requirements by 
State law. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said daycare facilities do not belong in parking lots and she 
expressed concern for the safety of children.  She said the accessory uses would 
reduce the value of the buildings, affect leasing opportunities and generate litter.  
 



 1

DATE:  July 20, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (AUGUST 

15, 2005) – REZONING APPLICATION – West side of Rochester Road, 
North of Creston, between Long Lake and Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to 
R-1T (Z 705) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan and the proposed 
zoning district is consistent with abutting uses and zoning districts.  The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request at the June 14, 2005 
Regular Meeting.  City Management recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Delores Khatami.  The applicant is Fadi Nassar.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the west side of Rochester Road and north side of Creston, 
between Long Lake and Trinway, in section 10. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 29,040 square feet in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
A single family home presently sits on the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
R-1T One Family Attached District. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to construct a 5-unit condominium development on the property. 
 
 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 

bittnera
Text Box
G-01c



 2

North: Vacant. 
South: Office and retail. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: B-2 Community Business. 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed R-1T Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 All principal uses permitted and as regulated in the nearest R-1A through R-1E One 

Family Residential Districts. 
 
 Two family dwellings developed in accordance with the provisions of the 

Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 
 One family attached dwellings as defined in sub-Section 04.20.44 developed in 

accordance with the provisions of the Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 

  Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the above principal uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
 Churches and other facilities normally incidental thereto. 
   
 Schools. 
 
 Child care centers. 
 
 Utility and public service buildings and uses. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Creston Avenue and Rochester Road, a major thoroughfare. The 
units will front on Creston and will face the back of a restaurant and an office building, 
including dumpsters.  This may affect marketability.    
 
 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 



 3

The applicant will be required to provide on-site storm water detention.  
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there is a drain located on the property.  It will need 
to be determined during the site plan review process whether there are any wetlands on 
the property.   
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the Rochester Road frontage in this area as 
Medium Density Residential.  The Medium Density Residential classification correlates 
with the R-1T Zoning District in the Plan.  The exact depth of the Medium Density 
Residential classification cannot be determined from the Future Land Use Plan because 
it is conceptual in nature.  Creston appears to be the demarcation line between 
Community Service Area and Medium Density Residential.  The subject parcel falls 
within the area designated as Medium Density Residential.  The parcel is relatively 
small in area, however the applicant has provided a site plan that indicates it can be 
developed as an attached condominium development.  The rezoning application is 
consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
 
Article 12.40.01 states that the R-1T (One-family Attached Residential) District may be 
applied to property when one or more of the following conditions prevail: 
 
 (A) When the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the 

Master Land Use Plan, and therefore involves areas indicated as medium density 
or high density residential. 

 
 (B) When the application of such a classification would be an integral part of a 

planned residential development approach, such as a planned neighborhood 
development (34.50.00), wherein the overall density is consistent with the intent of 
the Master Land Use Plan. 

 
The application meets the standard of (A) above and therefore meets the Location 
Standards of the R-1T District. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Applicant Statement of Request. 
3. Proposed Troy Condominium Development (conceptual site plan) 
4. Minutes from the June 14, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
 
PREPARED BY RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 705) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-705 Robin's Nest Sec 10\Robin's Nest Rezoning Report 06 14 05.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO R-1T



E LONG LAKE

TRINWAY

CRESTON

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

ASHLEY

A
B

IN
G

TO
N

MAYBERRY

B
E

V

BABBIT

±0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED ROBIN'S NEST CONDOMINIUM
FROM R-1C TO R-1T
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER & CRESTON
SEC.  10  (Z-705)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO R-1T







z 705 robins nest condo.dgn  6/8/2005 3:09:41 PM







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 705) – Proposed Robin’s Nest 
Condominium, North side of Creston, West side of Rochester, Section 10 – From R-
1C to R-1T 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
The petitioner, Fadi Nassar of 930 Smith Avenue, Birmingham, was present.  Mr. 
Nassar said the proposed high-end development would complement the area and 
act as a nice buffer.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-102 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the north side of 
Creston and west side of Rochester, within Section 10, being approximately 0.67 
acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



1 of 7 

July 25, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item: Bid Waiver - Authorization To Purchase an Enterprise Content Management 

System 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management is requesting approval to purchase an Enterprise-wide Content Management (ECM) 
system from Liberty Information Management Solutions and Ricoh Business Systems, as well as other 
approved contracts.  The contract would allow the City to purchase the necessary software, installation, 
training and maintenance at an overall reduced price.  In return the City of Troy would act as a reference 
site for the LibertyNet product.  All the components needed for a complete solution would be purchased 
from the vendors as outlined in Appendix A for an estimated total cost of $542,000 with annual ongoing 
maintenance of approximately $59,000. 
 
Background 
 
It was identified in 1995 by the Plante Moran Computer Implementation & Utilization Strategic Plan and 
then again in 2000 by the City’s Document Management Committee, that the City is in need of an 
Enterprise Content Management solution.  See specific details in Appendix B.  The Committee’s search 
for a system again in 2005 has resulted in an offer from LibertyIMS and Ricoh Business Solutions (the 
local vendor) for the City of Troy to become a reference site for their LibertyNet software product.  
LibertyIMS is located on the west coast and is trying to expand into the eastern part of the country.  
Appendix C contains a letter from Liberty/Ricoh outlining why the City of Troy would be an attractive 
reference site.  The incentive they are offering is to provide the majority of their software licenses at no 
cost.   In addition, they are willing to initially implement the software in two pilot departments for which we 
do not pay implementation fees until acceptance.  As a result, there is virtually no risk to the City.  Should 
the City take advantage of this offer it would save approximately $223,000 in software licensing and 
$24,000 in annual maintenance.  In addition to saving money, this arrangement also creates an 
environment in which the vendor is extremely motivated to do a good job to ensure the pilot is a success, 
and continues to do a good job to ensure the city will provide positive references for them over time.   
There is no better environment for a successful software implementation. 
 
Summary 
 
The implementation of an enterprise Content Management system will not only help alleviate space 
issues and reduce labor involved in document retrieval, the city will also have the opportunity to perform 
some business process redesign.  We will be able to identify records that can be captured and retained 
electronically, records that no longer serve a purpose and can be eliminated, identify opportunities for 
automating business processes (workflow), opportunities for re-defining record keeping procedures, and 
information sharing opportunities between departments or other government entities.  Lastly, it will 
provide opportunities for improved customer service.  Examples include quicker document retrieval and 
reproduction as well as access to documents via the city website. 
 
Budget  
 
Funds are budgeted in the Information Services Capital Fund, 401258.  However, since this will be a 
multi-year project, funds will continue to be budgeted in successive years until project completion.  Total 
funding for all years is estimated to be $542,000.  Annual maintenance fees will move to the operating 
fund 258 after the first year. 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
G-02a



2 of 7 

Appendix A 
Detailed Pricing 

 
Ricoh Business Systems / Liberty Information Management Systems  

 
Description  (200 concurrent users) Cost
  Third Party Software  $11,078
  Initial implementation and training for 2 departments 35,000
  Additional implementation 15,000
  Administrator Training 8,000
  First year maintenance 51,612

Total $120,690
 
  Annual Ongoing Software Maintenance $51,612
 
Hardware 
  Bell & Howell Flatbed Truper Model production scanner $7,745
 
  Annual Ongoing Hardware Maintenance 1,110

 
REMC Contract 
Hewlett Packard 

 
Description Cost 
(2) DL380 Xeon 3.6GHz dual processor with 4GB memory 
(inc 3 years maintenance) 

$11,688 

Tape Backup Library (inc 1 year maintenance) 29,498 
Tape Backup Software including training 32,000 
Storage Area Network (SAN) 2TB (inc 3 years maintenance) 32,568 

Total $105,754 
  
Annual Ongoing Maintenance  $6,277 

 
State Contract 

EDS 
 

Description Unit Cost Quantity Total
SQL Server 2000 Standard Edition 
Processor License 

3,234 2 $6,468

Microsoft Windows 2000 
Advanced Server Edition  

486 2 972

Total   $7,440
 

Graphic Sciences 
 

Description Average Cost Estimated Quantity Total 
Back file conversion .30 1,000,000 $300,000 



3 of 7 

Appendix B 
 

Detailed Background 
 
History  
 
The Information Technology Department has been investigating document management 
systems for some time.  The need for such a system was evident in June 1995 when Plante & 
Moran completed a Computer Implementation & Utilization Strategic Plan for the City of Troy.  
In their report they identified the following: 
 

Numerous departments file and retain a variety of documents, photographs, and 
forms.  Legally, maintaining hard copies of certain documents is mandated by the 
State and Federal governments.  However, for other documents, an 
imaging/document management system should be implemented to enhance 
document filing/storage and retrieval to alleviate space constraints and improve 
staff efficiency. 

 
This observation still holds true, and even documents required to be kept in a human readable 
form (one of which is hard copy), can also be imaged to benefit from the retrieval and space 
advantages.   Any paper documents that are imaged can be stored off-site to alleviate space 
constraints and then the image would allow for immediate access.  In addition, relying solely on 
paper has some drawbacks: no disaster recovery mechanism, there is always a risk of misfiles 
and lost documents, only allows for single user access, they can be voluminous, and they are 
not easily duplicated and distributed.  
 
Original Request for Proposal 
 
In 2000 a Document Management Committee was formed to establish the requirements for a 
system and develop a request for proposal (RFP) document.  At that time the City invited 
members of the Tri-County Cooperative to participate in the RFP process.  Farmington Hills and 
Birmingham were both direct participants.  Many other communities also attended the various 
demonstrations.  In the end the City did not choose a system because there was no 
combination of software and vendor that met all our needs.   
 
During this RFP process staff did, however, compile data collected from each department 
detailing the documents they store and how often they need to be accessed.  In total the 
departments detailed approximately 12.5 million documents, of which 8.1 million had to be 
available to be accessed on a daily basis, 300,000 weekly and 208,000 monthly.  The balance 
was accessed less often.  It is clear that a large percentage of documents (65%) need to be 
readily accessible.  As a result a great amount of area is being utilized to store documents in 
close proximity, and a great amount of effort is being expended to file and access these 
documents.  An interesting note is that in order to make documents more accessible some 
documents are copied multiple times and stored in multiple departments.   This exacerbates the 
space requirements and labor spent to duplicate and file these documents.   
 
 



4 of 7 

 
Elements of a Document Management System 
 
A document management system, or more commonly referred to as an Enterprise Content 
Management (ECM) system, provides for a method to manage documents in electronic format.  
Converting documents to digital images allows for several advantages:  
 

1. Provides for a disaster recovery mechanism.  Should something happen to paper 
copies; the electronic copy would still be available.  In addition, electronic copies can 
be easily backed up. 

2. Electronic copies allow for high-density storage or in other words can be stored in a 
very small amount of space. 

3. Allows multiple user access including access via the web. 
4. Provides centralized storage control. 
5. Can be rapidly retrieved and makes complex searches simple tasks. 
6. Easily distributed.  Can easily attach to email or become part of a workflow. 
7. If allowed electronic documents can be easily updated or annotated.  In addition 

changes can be tracked. 
8. Easily duplicated.  Electronic documents can easily be printed, copied to other 

electronic media and even converted to microfilm. 
9. Allows for modifiable views such as with and without redaction and annotations, and 

at various zooms.  
10. Provides the ability to control and audit access and security rights. 
11. Improves the ability to find documents by providing multiple indexing options. 

 
 
Current Search 
 
Since the original request for proposal (RFP) went out for document management, City staff has 
periodically investigated software that is available on existing contracts.  Most notably FileNet 
on the State of Michigan MiDEAL Program (formerly known as the Extended Purchasing 
Program) or an Oakland County contract, and Laserfiche available via the City of Farmington 
Hills under the MITN Cooperative (formerly known as the Tri-County Cooperative). 
 
Filenet 

Although Filenet was found to be a very robust product it was also very expensive.  
Quotes for the software, implementation, training and maintenance/support for 200 users 
for the first year ranged from $560,000 to $931,000.  Annual ongoing maintenance was 
approximately $80,000.   
 

Laserfiche 
Most recently the Document Management Committee reconvened in January 2005 to 
investigate the bid award by Farmington Hills to DSS Corporation for Laserfiche 
software.   The cost for software, implementation, training, and maintenance/support for 
the first year, for 200 users is approximately $344,000.  Annual ongoing maintenance 
would be approximately $76,000.   

 
 



5 of 7 

Liberty IMS Offer 
 
While considering Laserfiche software the committee also participated in a demonstration of a 
competitive product called LibertyNet.  The committee gave positive reviews for LibertyNet.  
Liberty Information Management Solutions out of Costa Mesa, CA and Ricoh Business 
Systems, the local reseller, recognizing our interest and the advantages of having the City of 
Troy as a customer, offered the City an opportunity to become a reference site for their software 
in this area.  They have a presence on the west coast, but are just now beginning to build a 
customer base on the east coast.  Appendix C contains a letter outlining why the City of Troy is 
an attractive client for LibertyNet.  As an incentive, they offered to provide the initial software 
licenses for up to 200 concurrent users at no cost with the exception of some third party 
software that is part of their system, but they do not own rights to (Native viewers, OCR 
software and PDF plus).  In addition, they are willing to implement their software in two 
departments to prove its capability without any initial charges from them.  There would be initial 
costs to purchase the necessary hardware to set up the system, but no software or 
implementation costs.  At the end of that “pilot”, if we were satisfied with the results we would 
agree to pay the implementation fees for those two departments and the third party software 
costs.  We would then continue to roll the software out to the rest of the City, paying for any 
additional implementation assistance and training costs as we go.  Our obligation at that point 
would be to pay maintenance fees on an annual basis and be available as a reference for their 
software.  LibertyNet would also put together a case study featuring the City of Troy’s 
implementation. 
 
The potential savings as a result of this offer could not be ignored.  It was advanced to and 
supported by the Document Management Committee.  In fact some members voiced their 
preference for LibertyNet over Laserfiche including the IT department that views it as a superior 
product in terms of an enterprise solution.   
 
Due Diligence – LibertyNet 
 
There were still some questions about moving forward with LibertyNet, so as part of our due 
diligence we completed the following: 
 

1) Confirmed with LibertyNet that they comply with the State of Michigan Optical Imaging 
Rules. 

 
2) Contacted various LibertyNet local government references, and the overwhelming 

response was that LibertyNet was a very responsive company with a very good product. 
Cities contacted include City of Lakeland, FL; Volusia County, FL; City of Inglewood, CA; 
City of Olympia, WA; and City of Los Angeles, CA. 

 
3) Worked with LibertyIMS and their local partner Ricoh Business Systems to develop a 

mutually acceptable proposal.  The cost for software, implementation services, training, 
and maintenance for the first year is approximately $121,000 with annual ongoing 
maintenance of approximately $52,000.  Ricoh has offered substantial savings if prepaid 
($45,000 per year for three years, or $40,000 per year for five years).  This option will be 
investigated further to determine if it is advantageous and in the city’s best interest.  The 
total cost includes 200 concurrent user licenses, and additional modules such as 
workflow, version control and auditing, web server, e-forms and database integration. 
The result is an estimated savings of $223,000 initially and $24,000 on annual 
maintenance over Laserfiche.   

 



6 of 7 

In addition to the software costs, hardware and back file conversion are also required as 
part of a complete Enterprise Content Management System.  These costs would be incurred 
regardless of the software vendor.   
 

• Hardware, hardware related software, and installation will be an additional 
$121,000 plus approximately $7,400 annual maintenance.   

• Back file conversion is the process of scanning and indexing existing paper 
documents, currently stored in file cabinets, so they may be stored in electronic 
format.  As departments are implemented their need for back file conversion will 
be carefully assessed.   It would be cost prohibitive to convert all documents, 
therefore, as part of the implementation process each department will be 
meticulously reviewed to determine which documents to convert, and whether to 
handle them internally or send out to a conversion vendor.  A rough estimate is 
1,000,000 documents for an approximate cost of $300,000.   



7 of 7 

Appendix C 
 

Liberty Information Management Systems Correspondence 
 
 



bittnera
Text Box
J-01a







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:34 p.m. on June 14, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Gary Chamberlain 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Chair Strat said he would limit public comment and discussion due to the length of the 
agenda.   
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Ed Sarkis of 70 McKinley, Troy, was present.  Mr. Sarkis spoke with reference to the 
Special Use Approval (SU 325) granted to St. Augustine Lutheran Preschool located 
on the southwest corner of Livernois and McKinley.  He said the light projecting onto 
McKinley is not properly shielded and asked that the City take enforcement action.  
 
Chair Strat thanked Mr. Sarkis for bringing the matter to the attention of the Planning 
Commission.  He said the Planning Department would look into the matter and take 
appropriate action. 
 
 

TABLED AND POSTPONED ITEMS 
 
3. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 1) – Proposed 

Amendment to Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck Condominium P.U.D., East side 
of Rochester and South of South Blvd., Section 2 – PUD 1 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the two proposed amendments to the PUD requested by the 
petitioner.  He reported that the petitioner has committed to the screening of the 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01b



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

rooftop mechanical equipment.  Mr. Miller said the freestanding sign on Rochester 
Road has been discussed but there has been no resolution to the matter.  Mr. Miller 
reported that the EVA (Emergency Vehicle Access) connection between Woodside 
Bible Church and Northwyck Condominiums has not been constructed and City 
Management is concerned that the contractually obligated improvement has been 
ignored.  It is City Management’s recommendation to table the item to the July 12, 
2005 Regular Meeting, as requested by the petitioner.   
 
Mr. Miller explained the petitioner does not want to remove or replace the freestanding 
sign on Rochester Road, but would prefer to amend the PUD agreement to allow the 
sign.  A permit was not granted for the erection of the sign.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if the Planning Commission has the right to direct the City to cease 
the issuance of a certificate of occupancy should the petitioner be in non-compliance 
of the PUD agreement. 
 
Ms. Lancaster said the development agreement signed by all parties after the PUD 
approval by the City Council stipulates a remedy for non-compliance of the 
agreement.  Ms. Lancaster said she would check into the matter and report back to 
the Planning Commission.   
 
Note: The petitioner was not present. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
Chair Strat announced the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-095 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Proposed Amendment to Woodside Bible Church / 
Northwyck Condominium P.U.D., East side of Rochester and South of South Blvd., 
Section 2 – PUD 1, is postponed for 30 days to the July 12, 2005 Planning 
Commission Regular Meeting. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, That the petitioner be made aware they have to answer 
questions about the continued construction of the sign and respond to the EVA 
(Emergency Vehicle Access) construction.  It would be appropriate that the 
response be in writing.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Schultz said it might be in the best interest of the City that the Planning 
Department contact both parties involved in the PUD; i.e., Woodside Bible Church 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

and Northwyck Condominiums.  He said he would not be in favor of any forthcoming 
PUD amendments until the EVA is installed.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Littman said it appears the petitioner is putting off the matter and doing what 
they want to do as opposed to what the ordinance requires.   
 
 

4. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) – 
Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed two versions of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to accessory building definitions and provisions.  The version recommended 
by the Planning Commission (Version A) limits the size of an accessory building to 
not exceed 75% of the ground floor footprint of the living area of the dwelling, 
incorporates a grandfather clause for existing accessory buildings that have been 
granted valid building permits, and limits the height of a garage door to 8 feet.  City 
Management supports the Planning Commission recommendation with the 
exception of the 8-foot maximum garage door height limit (Version B).   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-096 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory 
Buildings Definitions and Provisions, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment, Version A, as recommended by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Waller, Wright 
No: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Vleck said the structure identified as the problem was a garage that was double 
the square footage of the living area.  He believes an ordinance that would limit the 
size of the accessory structure to be not greater than the total living area would be 
sufficient.  Mr. Vleck is also opposed to the 8-foot garage door height limit.   
 
Chair Strat said his opinion is that neither the City Management recommendation 
nor the Planning Commission recommendation satisfies or addresses the massing 
of the actual garage, and a so-called monster garage still could be built under either 
scenario in terms of the massing and size of the door.   
 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s 
Home Health Care, Northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – From 
R-1B to B-1 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning.  Mr. Miller said appropriate planning and zoning uses in the location 
should be determined and an amendment to the Future Land Use Plan would be 
recommended, should the rezoning request go forward.  Mr. Miller reported that it is 
the recommendation of City Management to deny the rezoning application because 
it does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked for information on nearby properties with respect to Consent 
Judgments.   
 
Mr. Miller said a Consent Judgment on the property one block north (commonly known 
as the Rabbani property) allows office use on the subject property.  He reported that, 
in general, the area has had a number of land uses, and noted more recently 
residential development; i.e., PUD 1 Northwyck Condominiums, Sandalwood North 
and South condominiums, and a proposed PUD for a mixed-use development on the 
northeast corner of Rochester Road and South Boulevard.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said the Rabbani Consent Judgment is the only one in the area of 
which she is aware.  She said both zoning plans and future land use plans are 
important factors in litigation cases.  Ms. Lancaster said the Judge in the Rabbani 
case was concerned about the number of non-conforming uses in the area at that 
time.   
 
John Gaber of 380 N. Old Woodward, Birmingham, attorney, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Gaber said the proposed use is consistent with the 
character of the neighborhood.  He reviewed the site characteristics with respect to 
residential development.  Mr. Gaber said the lease for the existing Binson’s located 
on Rochester and Square Lake Roads expires in a few months and they would like 
to relocate in the near future.  He asked that the rezoning request not be held up in 
the process should the Planning Commission opt to amend the Future Land Use 
Plan.  Mr. Gaber said there was an opinion and a judgment by the Court, prior to the 
Rabbani Consent Judgment, finding that the uses and zoning in the area had 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

changed significantly, and that the site would not be compatible for what it was 
zoned and master planned.  Mr. Gaber said the McKenna report provided to the 
members support the changing uses and zoning.  Mr. Gaber requested a favorable 
recommendation to the City Council.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck believes the requested B-1 zoning classification is appropriate for the 
location, and a revision in the zoning classification would be considered in the future 
when the City undertakes its study of the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Khan said a main road is not suitable for residential use.  He agreed with Mr. 
Vleck’s comments.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-097 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to B-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, within Section 3, being approximately 0.89 acres in size, 
be granted, for the following reasons:  
 
1. That the property is too narrow to put residential use. 
2. B-1 is the best use for this property.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Vleck, Waller 
No: Chamberlain, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION DENIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-098 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to B-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, within Section 3, being approximately 0.89 acres in size, 
be denied, for the following reasons:  
 
1. The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

2. Making a recommendation that is contrary to the Future Land Use Plan 
would weaken the validity of the Plan and make it more difficult to defend 
future zoning decisions.   

3. Rezoning this parcel to B-1 would result in the enlargement of an undesirable 
commercial “spot zone” along an area along the Rochester Road corridor 
that is planned for medium density use.   

4. Approval of the rezoning request could open the door for further commercial 
rezoning applications along the Rochester Road corridor. 

 
Yes: Chamberlain, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Khan, Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts believes the zoning should be commercial.  She said denial of the 
request would result in a court matter.   
 
Mr. Khan said residential zoning is improper on a main road.  He agreed the matter 
would end up in court.   
 
Messrs. Waller and Vleck agreed with the comments of Ms. Drake-Batts and Mr. 
Khan.   
 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 4) – Proposed The 
Monarch Private Residences, 209 units, 11,166 S.F. retail space and structured 
parking, North side of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure, Section 20 – 
O-1 (Low Rise Office), P-1 (Vehicular Parking) and R-1B (One Family Residential) 
Districts 
 
Mr. Miller reported that City Management recommends approval of the proposed 
PUD with four conditions.   

 
(1) The public benefit be reviewed and increased to an appropriate level. 
(2) The auto courts and circulation drive north of the auto courts in the Villas 

be designated as fire lanes and no parking permitted. 
(3) A connecting sidewalk provided from McClure to the northern tower 

entrance. 
(4) A screen wall provided along the northern property line.  

 
Mr. Miller said he believes it is a superlative project that would provide impetus and 
direction for the Big Beaver Road corridor.   
 
Richard Carlisle, Planning Consultant, highlighted key elements why the proposed 
development meets the PUD criteria and the intent of the Master Plan.  He said the 
project would offer many benefits to the Big Beaver Road corridor and enhance the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

overall economic sustainability of the corridor.  Mr. Carlisle specifically addressed 
the public benefit.  A contribution of $200,000 (roughly $1,000 per unit) has been 
offered by the petitioner to be appropriated to a Big Beaver Road improvement 
fund.  Mr. Carlisle said the contribution would not be proportional to the benefit that 
is being received by the applicant.  He recommended a more equitable contribution 
and suggested a graduated range from $1,000 to $2,000 per unit, based on the 
quality and selling price of the unit.   
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:15 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:20 p.m. 

___________ 
 
Thomas Kafkes of Joseph Freed and Associates, 220 North Smith Street, Palatine, 
Illinois, provided a visual and descriptive narrative presentation of the proposed 
project.  He introduced members of the development, design and marketing teams 
and reviewed design highlights and benefits to the City of Troy that would support 
the project.  Mr. Kafkes respectfully requested that the Planning Commission 
forward a favorable recommendation to the City Council.   
 
Mr. Kafkes specifically addressed the following issues.   
 
• The relocation of air-conditioning units in the Villas to screen potential noise. 
• The traffic impact – comparison of office development -vs- PUD.  
• The pavement widening along Alpine and McClure to accommodate parallel 

parking. 
• The containment of trash within a private courtyard accessible off of Alpine.  

Trash from residents in The Villas would be contained in respective garages and 
placed on curbside for pickup.   

• The vegetation screen wall to the north at 100% opacity, and the flexibility of the 
petitioner to construct a brick wall as well as limited vegetation should the City 
desire.   

• The use of cutting-edge technology to become LEED certified.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Tom Krent of 3184 Alpine, Troy, was present.  Mr. Krent addressed concern for the 
increase of traffic that would result from the proposed development.  Mr. Krent 
distributed information to the members addressing specific concerns on traffic and 
CD’s depicting the length of time cars would have to wait to exit Alpine onto Big 
Beaver Road during peak rush hours.  He said the quality of life for existing 
residents would be affected by the proposed development.   
 
Mike Baxter of 3141 McClure, Troy, was present.  Mr. Baxter is one of the property 
owners immediately to the north of the proposed development.  Mr. Baxter said 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

there are outstanding concerns that have not been addressed; i.e., setbacks, layout 
of the auto courts.  He stated a preference for a stone wall at the northern edge of 
the development.  Mr. Baxter urged the members to give attention to comments in 
the Planning Department and Planning Consultant reports relating to stronger policy 
guidance for the Master Plan, outdated requirements for existing multiple family 
developments, and the compatibility of the proposed development with the Future 
Land Use Plan.  Mr. Baxter expressed concern with the future use of the land.  He 
said developers who are interested in developing the area for future town homes 
have already approached neighbors.  Mr. Baxter said the contribution of $200,000 
to the City for public benefit would set precedence and appears to be a kickback.   
 
Debbie Liposky of 3492 Balfour, Troy, was present.  She is a resident of the 
Somerset North subdivision.  Ms. Liposky is opposed to the proposed development.  
She said in their search of a perfect home, they checked on the surroundings.  They 
were told that the City would not build any more tower buildings similar to the Top of 
Troy; the airport at Maple and Coolidge would restrict building heights; in essence, 
the surroundings would remain the same.  Ms. Liposky asked how many stories 
would be considered high-rise if a mid-rise building is 23 stories.  She referenced 
that the word on the streets is too many hands have been greased on this project 
and it is a done deal.  It is her understanding that the taxes generated from the 
proposed development would go to the Downtown Development Authority, and she 
questioned the validity of that as opposed to using the tax dollars to repair Coolidge 
Road or any other side streets that would incur higher traffic volumes from the 
proposed development.  Ms. Liposky addressed the affect the proposed 
development would have on future development in the area.  She cited cities such 
as Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills and Rochester Hills do not have high-rise 
residential developments.  Ms. Liposky encouraged the members to look at its 
vision of the city of tomorrow and determine if they would like to build a Birmingham 
or a Southfield.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts and Mr. Wright asked the audience to refrain from comments that 
suggest members have been paid off, or hands have been greased.   
 
Zakariya Abuzaid of 3128 Alpine, Troy, was present.  Mr. Abuzaid is one of the 
property owners directly to the north of the proposed development.  Mr. Abuzaid 
said his previous concerns with respect to the floodplain and snow removal have 
not been addressed.  He would like to have a 30-foot fence that would obscure the 
proposed development.   
 
Wade Fleming of 3820 Victoria Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Fleming spoke in 
support of the proposed development.  He said the project would benefit the Big 
Beaver Road corridor and the City’s tax base.  He asked that the City seriously 
address and remedy the traffic concerns voiced by the residents.   
 
Ted Wilson of 5038 Kellen, Bloomfield Township, was present.  Mr. Wilson spoke 
on behalf of the Troy Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors and the Economic 
Development Committee in support of the proposed development.  He addressed 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

the original proposal that offered alternative traffic flow patterns (i.e., cul de sacs) for 
the neighborhood to the north and a corporate America view for residents near the 
Big Beaver Road corridor.   
 
Barbara Dawson of 1834 Boulan, Troy, was present.  Ms. Dawson is opposed to the 
potential increase in traffic and expressed concern with the safety of school children 
and pedestrians.  She said their subdivision roads have no curbs or stop signs, and 
the long straight roads encourage speeders.  She noted that Boulan is used as a 
cut-through to avoid the light at Big Beaver and Crooks.  Ms. Dawson suggested 
barriers be placed on Alpine/Muer and McClure/Banmoor in an effort to prevent cut-
through traffic.  She distributed written comments to the members.   
 
Keith Howard of 3229 McClure, Troy, was present.  Mr. Howard said he bought his 
property after checking the City’s Zoning Ordinance with respect to what he wanted 
to do with his property.  He said the Zoning Ordinance permits only 3-story buildings 
in the area.  Mr. Howard expressed concern with the future of the neighborhood.  
He said prior to his move to McClure, he was compelled to relocate due to an 
improvement generated by the City. 
 
Michael Otti of 3225 McClure, Troy, was present.  Mr. Otti is a 30-year resident and 
likes the area.  He asked what the future plan is for the subdivision.  Mr. Otti said he 
had seen advertisements for the proposed development several weeks ago, and 
questioned how they could advertise the sale of units before the project gets City 
approval.   
 
Kim Duford of 3141 Alpine, Troy, was present.  Ms. Duford noted that she has 
spoken before the Commission several times with respect to her concerns.  Ms. 
Duford addressed the comments of Mr. Wilson, and noted residents were not given 
an opportunity to vote on the cul de sac layout proposed originally for the 
development.  Ms. Duford said it would have been beneficial to circulate a survey to 
get suggestions from the residents.  She noted that there are elderly neighbors who 
are unable to attend public meetings.  Ms. Duford addressed public benefit 
(suggested sidewalks throughout the subdivision), setbacks, parallel parking, 
transitional screening, and noise.  She expressed concern for the safety of the 
young children for whom she cares.  Ms. Duford asked the petitioner to offer a 
public benefit to the neighborhood because they have supported the City prior to the 
proposed development.   
 
Paul Piscopo of 3129 Alpine, Troy, was present.  Mr. Piscopo spoke in support of 
the proposed development.  He said the development would be a benefit to the City 
and its tax base.  Mr. Piscopo feels there have been misrepresentations on behalf 
of the petitioner, and referenced the petitioner’s contribution toward the monster 
garage lawsuit.  Mr. Piscopo voiced a concern with the potential increase in traffic 
as a result from the proposed development.   
 
Shirley Jordan of 3268 Alpine, Troy, was present.  Ms. Jordan addressed the tax 
base, increase in traffic and traffic flow, turnaround for trash pickup, access to 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

schools, additional residential expenses and the Master Land Use Plan.  She 
suggested looking into rezoning the whole area of land, and addressed the 
attractiveness of the City for commercial use.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that all City departments reviewed the proposed development.  
He said the Fire Department reported no concerns with the layout.   
 
Chair Strat said the Road Commission of Oakland County reported that a traffic 
signal is not warranted on Big Beaver Road, based on its traffic study.  He said the 
Road Commission should listen to the comments of the residents in how difficult it is 
to exit onto Big Beaver.  Chair Strat said cul de sacs create dead-end situations and 
can cause problems with emergency access.   
 
Chair Strat asked the petitioner if he was involved with developments in other areas 
where the values of the homes adjacent to the development were either greater or 
had diminished in value.   
 
Mr. Kafkes, in the development business over 25 years, said the impact to property 
values has been positive for residential developments similar to The Monarch that 
were situated immediately adjacent to another residential neighborhood.  He said 
the only time in his career there was a negative affect on adjacent property values 
was when an industrial development was constructed adjacent to a residential area.   
 
A brief discussion took place with respect to an appropriate public benefit 
contribution. 
 
Mr. Kafkes said he could not make a commitment at tonight’s meeting but would be 
willing to agree to a recommendation of approval conditioned upon final resolution 
of public benefit, to be discussed and determined at the City Council level.   
 
Mr. Carlisle said the members would be assured that the public benefit contribution 
would be no less than what was initially offered.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said the proposal could go forward to the City Council with a 
condition related to the public benefit contribution because City Council is the 
authoritative body for final approval.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-099 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed a Preliminary Plan for a 
Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.60.01, as requested by Big 
Beaver Alpine LLC for the Monarch Planned Unit Development (PUD 4), located on 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

the north side of Big Beaver Road east of Alpine and west of McClure, located in 
Section 20, within the O-1, P-1 and R-1B zoning districts, being 5.85 acres in size. 
 
RESOLVED, the proposed PUD meets the location requirements set forth in Article 
35.30.00, A and B.2.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to Article 35.30.00.C, the applicant 
demonstrated quality objectives such as those referred to in Section 35.30.00.B-2.  
This includes a high quality of architectural design and materials, the provision of a 
higher quality of landscape materials, the provision of extensive pedestrian facilities 
and amenities. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to Article 35.30.00.C.2, the applicant being 
a mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted, including retail, high 
rise residential, town home residential and live-work units. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to Article 35.30.00.C.3, the applicant 
provides a public improvement, or other facility used by the public, which could not 
otherwise be required, that would further the public health, safety, and welfare, or 
protect existing or future uses from the impacts of the proposed uses.  The 
applicant will be making a number of improvements within the Big Beaver, Alpine, 
and McClure rights-of-way.  Furthermore, the applicant is in the process of 
determining the feasibility of which of the following three contributions will be made 
to the City: the donation of the two parcels north of the project; the donation of one 
residential parcel plus a cash contribution; or, a cash contribution only.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to Article 35.30.00.C.6, the applicant 
provides a complementary variety of housing types that is in harmony with the 
adjacent uses.  This variety includes three housing types: high-rise residential, 
including luxury condominiums (some penthouses), town homes and live-work 
units.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to Article 35.30.00.C. 7, the PUD promotes 
the intent of the Future Land Use Plan, which generally calls for more intense uses 
on major thoroughfares with less intense uses serving as transition areas between 
the more intense uses and single-family residential development.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Preliminary Planned Unit Development 
consist of a project manual, dated May 23, 2005, and a supplemental letter dated 
June 10, 2005, which contain narratives, reduced plans, and full size plans, 
including the following: 
 
Reduced plans and illustrations: 
 Sheet L-1.1  Conceptual Landscape Plan (color) 
 Sheet L-1.3  The Villas Landscape Elevations (color) 
 Sheet C1.1  Topographic Survey 
 Sheet C2.1  Tree Survey 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

 Sheet C3.1  Site Plan 
 Sheet C4.1  Utility Plan 
 Sheet C5.1  Grading Plan 
 Sheet C6.1  Snow Removal Plan 
 Sheet L-1.1  Conceptual Landscape Plan 
 Sheet L-2  Tree Demolition Plan 
 Sheet A2.0  Ground Level Floor Plan 
 Sheet A-2.1  Building Plans Level 2 
 Sheet A-2.2  Building Plans Level 3 
 Sheet A-2.3  Building Plans Level 4 
 Sheet A-2.4  Building Plans Level 5 
 Sheet A-2.5  Building Plans Level 5.5 
 Sheet A-2.6  Building Plans Level 6 
 Sheet A-2.7  Building Plans Level 8 
 Sheet A-2.8  Building Plans Level 19 
 Sheet A-2.9  Building Plans Level 20 
 Sheet A-3.0  Exterior Elevations 
 Sheet A-3.1  Elevations  
 Sheet A4.0  Unit Plans Levels 3-5, Levels 8-18 
 Sheet A10.1  Somerset Bridge Conceptual 3D Study 
 Sheet A10.1a Big Beaver Road Conceptual 3D Study 
 Sheet A10.1b Alpine Street Conceptual 3D Study 
 Sheet A10.2  Height Studies 
 Sheet A-1  First Floor (Townhouse Units) 
 Sheet A-2  Second Floor (Townhouse Units) 
 Sheet A-3  Elevations 
 Sheet A10.4  Sales Center & Signage Plan 
 Sheet A10.5  Signage Site Plan 
 Sheet A10.6  Signage Elevation 
 (No number)  Exterior Materials (Tower Building) (color) 
 (No number)  (No title - Villa Unit Exterior Materials) (color) 
 Sheet L-1.2  Conceptual Lighting Plan 
 (No number)  View From Somerset Bridge (color) 
 (No number)  View From Big Beaver (color) 
 (No number)  View From Alpine Street (color) 
 (No number)  Big Beaver (South) Elevation (color) 
 (No number)  North Elevation (color) 
 (No number)  Alpine Street (West) Elevation (color) 
 (No number)  Photo Montage Views from McClure Street (color) 
 (No number)  Photo Montage Views from Alpine Street (color) 
 (No number)  Shadow Studies June 21st (color) 
 (No number)  Shadow Studies December 21st (color) 
 
 Full Size Plans: 
 Sheet C1.1 Topographic and Boundary Survey 
 Sheet C2.1 Tree Survey 
 Sheet C3.1 Site Plan 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

 Sheet C4.1 Utility Plan 
 Sheet C5.1 Grading Plan 
 Sheet C6.1 Snow Removal Plan 
 Sheet L-1.1 Conceptual Landscape Plan 
 Sheet L-2 Tree Demolition Plan 
 Sheet A-1 First Floor (Townhouse Units) 
 Sheet A-2 Second Floor (Townhouse Units) 
 Sheet A-3 Elevations 
  
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends that The 
Monarch Preliminary Planned Unit Development be approved subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. Troy Planning Consultant recommendation for the public benefit contribution 

formula is appropriate. 
2. The auto courts and the circulation drive north of the auto courts shall be 

designated as fire lanes.  No parking shall be permitted within the fire lanes at 
any time. 

3. Provide a connecting sidewalk from McClure to the northern tower entrance, on 
the south side of the drive that is north of the DADA parcel. 

4. There will not be a screen wall along the northern property line; it will be 
vegetation. 

 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he is supportive of the overall development.  He noted the areas of 
concern relate directly to the town house portion of the development.  Mr. Vleck’s 
concerns are:  (1) density is too great of an impact on the property to the north; (2) 
parallel parking abuts the existing property on McClure and Alpine; and (3) setbacks 
are not in line with the existing residential homes in the area. 
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:40 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:50 p.m. 

___________ 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 703) – 600 Stephenson Hwy, 
North of Fourteen Mile Road, East side of Stephenson Hwy, Section 35 – From R-C 
to O-1 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
There was a brief discussion with respect to parking requirements.  Mr. Savidant 
said there appears to be enough parking available for the medical use.  He 
explained that a submission of a site plan through the Planning Commission would 
not be required because it is simply an office use replacing another office use.  Mr. 
Savidant said that at the time of application to the Building Department, the Building 
Department, with input from the Planning Department, would make a determination 
on the required amount of parking spaces.  Mr. Savidant said the Planning 
Commission would be the authoritative body should there be a request to reduce 
the number of parking spaces.   
 
The petitioner, J. B. Davies of Allison Associates of 180 High Oak Road, Bloomfield 
Hills, was present.  Mr. Davies said the family business of 30 years would make an 
application to Special Tree, a company who provides rehabilitation for those with 
closed head injuries.  He said the majority of space would be for its headquarters 
and administration office; a minority of the space would be for medical.  Mr. Davies 
believes the use would conform to the parking requirements.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-100 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the east side of 
Stephenson Highway, north of Fourteen Mile Road, within Section 35, being 
approximately 1.74 acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, 
South side of Vanderpool, West of Rochester, Section 22 – From R-1E to B-2 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
Mr. Miller explained that both actions, the Offer to Purchase the remnant parcel and 
the rezoning request, would be considered at the same City Council meeting.  
Should one action not be approved, the other action would not take place.   
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed that the Planning Commission could make their 
recommendation approval contingent upon the applicant’s acquisition of the 
remnant parcel from the City. 
 
Burt Kassab of 7125 Orchard Lake, West Bloomfield, was present to represent the 
petitioner.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Laura Balyeat of 965 Vanderpool, Troy, was present.  Ms. Balyeat said the 
proposed rezoning is an intrusion and an encroachment of commercial use into the 
residential area.  She said the property values of the residential homes would 
decrease.  Ms. Balyeat questioned the need for another breakfast/coffee use at this 
location when there are vacant buildings throughout the City.  Ms. Balyeat said that 
should the City go forward with the proposed rezoning, she would like the City’s 
consideration to provide a tasteful brick wall as a transitional buffer and appropriate 
shielding of the parking lot lights.   
 
John Billinger of 943 Vanderpool, Troy, was present.  Mr. Billinger voiced opposition 
to the proposed rezoning.  He said the City is literally taking down a house and 
moving commercial further into the subdivision.  Mr. Billinger expressed concern 
with respect to noise, trash and dumpster locations.  Mr. Billinger said his front yard 
view would be a brick wall should the proposed rezoning go forward.  Mr. Billinger 
addressed current vacancies along Rochester Road that could accommodate the 
commercial use.  
 
Richard Wiles of 975 Vanderpool, Troy, was present.  Mr. Wiles said he is not 
opposed to the proposed rezoning.  His concerns are the uneven property lines for 
commercial use in the area, and the potential of being enclosed by walls should the 
future commercial use construct a brick wall.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Chair Strat encouraged the residents to address their concerns at the time of City 
Council review of the proposed rezoning, and again at the time of site plan review 
by the Planning Commission should the rezoning go forward.   
 
Ms. Lancaster clarified her earlier statement that the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation could be contingent upon the remnant parcel sale.  She pointed 
out that a rezoning request does not require conditions and putting a condition on 
the approval would put a condition on the City to sell the property.  Ms. Lancaster 
suggested consideration of a recommendation that the property not be rezoned 
without the City remnant parcel sale, should the members make a recommendation 
of approval.   
 
Mr. Miller clarified that property owners would not be notified at the time of the site 
plan review process should the rezoning go forward.  He said interested residents 
could contact the Planning Department for status of the site plan application.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-101 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1E to B-2 rezoning request, located on the south side of 
Vanderpool, west of Rochester Road, within Section 22, being approximately 0.5 
acres in size, be granted, with the condition that this recommendation will cease if 
the City is not able to work out a purchase agreement between the applicant for the 
Dunkin Donut property and the City and that the only way to move forward is if the 
applicant owns both parcels.  
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts is not in favor of commercial use going into a residential 
neighborhood because of the affect it would have on the value of the residential 
homes.  Ms. Drake-Batts encouraged the residents to send their concerns in writing 
to the City Council members.  
 
Mr. Vleck agreed with the comments of Ms. Drake-Batts.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 705) – Proposed Robin’s Nest 
Condominium, North side of Creston, West side of Rochester, Section 10 – From R-
1C to R-1T 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
The petitioner, Fadi Nassar of 930 Smith Avenue, Birmingham, was present.  Mr. 
Nassar said the proposed high-end development would complement the area and 
act as a nice buffer.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-102 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the north side of 
Creston and west side of Rochester, within Section 10, being approximately 0.67 
acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

10. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 915) – Proposed Carlton Villas Condominium, South side 
of Ottawa, West side of Rochester Road, Section 3, Zoned R-1T (One Family 
Attached) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Carlton Villas Condominium.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted.  
 
Bill Mosher of Apex Engineering, 47745 Van Dyke, Shelby Township, was present 
to represent the petitioner.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 18 - 
 

Mr. Vleck asked why the existing resident on the corner is staying. 
 
Mr. Mosher said they would like to keep the residential compatibility with the 
existing neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed that the residence on the corner is a legal non-conforming 
structure. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-103 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Carlton Villas Condominium, located on the south side of Ottawa and west side of 
Rochester Road, located in Section 3, containing 15 units on approximately 3 acres, 
within the R-1T zoning district, is hereby granted.  
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212) – 
Articles XXV, XXVI, and XXVII – Freestanding Restaurants, Banks and Daycare 
Facilities in the O-M (Mid-Rise Office), O-S-C (Office-Service-Commercial) and R-C 
(Research Center) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment.  He reviewed the latest three revisions that were incorporated in the 
proposed text.  Mr. Savidant reported that City Management concurs with the 
proposed text amendment.   
 
Items briefly discussed were the size of the play area with respect to State and City 
requirements, and the minimum height of a fence for outdoor dining with respect to 
requirements of the Michigan Liquor Control Commission.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 19 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-06-104 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles IV, XXV, XXVI and XXVII, pertaining to Freestanding 
Restaurants, Banks and Daycare Facilities in the O-M, O-S-C and R-C Zoning 
Districts, and related additional definitions, be amended as printed on the Proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That any reference to the requirement of the City 
ordinance for square footage of a play area be altered to match the requirements by 
State law. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said daycare facilities do not belong in parking lots and she 
expressed concern for the safety of children.  She said the accessory uses would 
reduce the value of the buildings, affect leasing opportunities and generate litter.  
 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Chris Komasara of 5287 Windmill, Troy, was present.  Mr. Komasara addressed the 
proposed The Monarch project.  He confirmed that the project comprises of 207 
units.  Further, he asked the City’s consideration in the construction of roads with 
respect to new developments and suggested the petitioner consider a daycare 
facility within the development.   

 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Ms. Lancaster said it was good to see everyone.   
 
Mr. Miller announced that the June 15, 2005 Downtown Development Authority meeting 
was cancelled.   
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:38 p.m. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 20 - 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\06-14-05 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final    June 20, 2005 
 

-1- 

A meeting of the Troy Charter Revision Committee was held Monday, June 20, 2005, at 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Chairman Bliss called the Meeting to order at 1:00 
PM. 

 
Roll Call:  PRESENT: Lillian Barno, Daniel H. Bliss, Jerry E. Bloom, Shirley 

Kanoza, Robert Noce, Mark R. Solomon, Cynthia A. 
Wilsher 

ALSO PRESENT: City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm, Assistant City 
Manager/Finance and Administration John M. 
Lamerato, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew, and Deputy 
Clerk Barbara Holmes 

 
 
Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair 
 
Vote on Resolution to Appoint Chair 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-001 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
RESOLVED, That Daniel H. Bliss hereby be REAPPOINTED as Chair to the Charter 
Revision Committee. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution to Appoint Vice-Chair 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-002 
Moved by Bliss 
Seconded by Barno 
 
RESOLVED, That Shirley Kanoza hereby be APPOINTED as Vice-Chair to the Charter 
Revision Committee. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Approval of Minutes: Wednesday, November 5, 2003 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-003 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Minutes of Wednesday, November 5, 
2003 are hereby APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01c



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final    June 20, 2005 
 

-2- 

Proposed Charter Amendments: 
 
Section 3.4 – Elective Officers and Terms of Office – Proposed Title Change and 
Text Amendment to Facilitate Implementation of State Law Election Consolidation 
 
Member Solomon supports two-year terms of office for the offices of mayor and council 
member based on his belief that elected officials are more responsive when elected for 
shorter terms. 
 
Member Kanoza supports three-year terms because she believes it takes at least two 
years for a council member to become acclimated to the position.  
 
Vote on Resolution to Modify Recommended Charter Revision #2   
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-004 
Moved by Solomon 
Seconded by Bloom 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal 
#2 be MODIFIED by STRIKING “four (4) year terms” and INSERTING “two (2) year terms”.  
 
Yes: Solomon 
No: Barno, Bliss, Bloom, Kanoza, Noce, Wilsher 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
1) Vote on Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #1 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-005 
Moved by Solomon 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #1 to read as follows,  “Shall 
Section 3.4 of the Troy Charter be amended by moving and incorporating Section 7.5 of 
the Troy Charter in its entirety?” 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final    June 20, 2005 
 

-3- 

2) Vote on Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #2 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-006 
Moved by Solomon 
Seconded by Barno 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #2 to read as follows, “Shall 
Section 3.4 of the Troy Charter be amended to implement election consolidation revisions 
to Michigan Election Law, by revising the term of Troy City Council Members and the 
Mayor from the current three (3) year terms that expire at 8:00 PM of the third year of the 
term to provide for four (4) year terms that expire at 7:30 PM of the first Monday following 
the Regular Election of the fourth year of their term?” 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Section 7.5.5 - Proposed Section Re-Numbering and Naming 3.4.1 – Elective Officers 
Term Limitations and Text Amendment 
 
3) Vote on Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #3 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-007 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Solomon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #3 to read as follows, “Shall 
Section 7.5.5 of the Troy Charter be renumbered as 3.4.1 and titled as Elective Officers 
Term Limitations?” 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
4) Vote on Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #4 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-008 
Moved by Solomon 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #4 to read as follows, “Shall 
Section 7.5.5 be amended to revise the definition of a term from the current language that 
‘any portion of a term served shall constitute one full term’ to ‘Any service greater than two 
(2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a term.’?“ 
 
Yes: All-7 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final    June 20, 2005 
 

-4- 

Section 3.4.2 – Staggering Terms of Office - Proposed New Section to Facilitate 
Implementation of State Law Election Consolidation 
 
5) Vote on Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #5 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-009 
Moved by Solomon 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #5 to read as follows, “Shall 
Section 3.4.2 be created to implement election consolidation revisions to Michigan Election 
Law, by providing for the re-establishment of the staggering of City Council terms by 
providing for three (3) City Council Members to be elected in one election cycle and the 
remaining three (3) Council Members and the Mayor to be elected in a subsequent election 
cycle, which will be accomplished through an election of a one-time two (2) year City 
Council Member term?“ 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
Section 7.3 - Election Date – Existing Section in Conflict with State Law - Proposed 
Text Amendment 
 
6) Vote on Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #6 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-010 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #6 to read as follows, “Shall 
Section 7.3 of the Troy City Charter be amended to implement election consolidation 
revisions to Michigan Election Law, by changing the election date from the “first Monday in 
April of each year” to the “first Tuesday after the first Monday of every odd-year November” 
and eliminating “if some other date in the months of March, April or May is fixed by law for 
the holding of the state biennial election, then the regular city election shall be held on the 
date so fixed”, since these provisions conflict with Michigan Election Law?“ 
 
Yes: All-7 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final    June 20, 2005 
 

-5- 

Section 7.6 - Special Election – Existing Section in Conflict with State Law -
Proposed Text Amendment 
 
7) Vote on Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #7 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-011 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #7 to read as follows, “Shall 
Section 7.6 of the Troy City Charter be revised to implement election consolidation 
revisions to Michigan Election Law, by providing “Special City Elections shall be called as 
provided in Michigan Election Law” and eliminating “Special city elections shall be held 
when called by resolution of the Council at least 40 days in advance of such election, or 
when required by this charter or statute. Any resolution calling a special election shall set 
forth the purpose of such election. No more special city elections shall be called in anyone 
year than the number permitted by statute.”  
 
Yes: All-7 
 
Section 7.9 – Nominations – Existing Section in Conflict with State Law -Proposed 
Text Amendment 
 
8) Vote on Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #8 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-012 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Bloom 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #8 to read as follows, “Shall 
Section 7.9 of the Troy City Charter be revised to eliminate a conflict with Michigan Election 
Law, by eliminating “No person shall sign his name to a greater number of petitions for any 
office than there are persons to be elected to said office at the following City election. If the 
signature of any persons appears on more petitions than permitted by this section, such 
signatures shall not be counted on any one of the petitions so signed for that office.”?  
 
Yes: All-7 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final    June 20, 2005 
 

-6- 

Section 7.10 – Form of Petitions – Existing Section in Conflict with State Law - 
Proposed Text Amendment 
 
9) Vote on Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #9 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-013 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #9 to read as follows, “Shall 
Section 7.10 of the Troy City Charter be revised to eliminate a conflict with Michigan 
Election Law by striking, “The Council shall approve a form of nominating petition with 
spaces thereon for address and date of signing for each signer, an affidavit form for the 
circulator to sign affirming that he and the petitioners are registered electors and a 
summary of the qualifications required of candidates and the regulations governing the 
petition” and providing that “Nominating petitions shall be in a form as provided by Michigan 
Election Law”? 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
Member Bloom suggested inserting the words “by eliminating the following language” to 
clarify the intent of the recommended language. 
 
City Attorney Bluhm replied that type of language is not included because of the 100-word 
limitation. 
  
City Clerk Bartholomew recommended that the text also be italicized to distinguish it 
further. 
 
Discussion Regarding Recommended Charter Revision Proposals #10, #11 and #12 
 
City Clerk Bartholomew advised that Charter Revision Proposals 10, 11 and 12 are a result 
of a directive given to the City Attorney. City Clerk Bartholomew further advised that City 
Council has not reviewed the language and although this review is not a part of the initial 
charge given to the Charter Revision Committee, it is before the committee today due to 
time constraints. 
 
City Attorney Bluhm asked the Charter Revision Committee to provide input on the 
proposals so that their recommendation could be forwarded to City Council. 
 
10) Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #10 
 
Shall Section 5.6(b) of the Troy City Charter, which requires an affirmative vote of a 
majority of the members elect of the Council for the effective thereof, be revised to add 
subsection “(8) Authorizing local financial contributions in State of Michigan I-75 Road 
Projects when local financial contributions are in excess of $1,000,000.00”? 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final    June 20, 2005 
 

-7- 

Member Solomon noted that the proposed language should be corrected by inserting 
“ness” in the word “effective”. 
 
Member Solomon does not agree that this type of specific language should be included in 
the City Charter because he believes this type of issue should be voted on by the City 
Council. 
 
City Attorney Bluhm read the directive given to her by City Council from her memo to the 
Mayor and Members of Troy City Council Dated May 18, 2005 regarding the I-75 Ballot 
Question, “the City Attorney is to research and draft ballot language for the Long 
Lake/Crooks Road/I-75 Interchange Improvement project that will allow voters to provide 
input on this project for the next scheduled city regular election.” City Attorney Bluhm 
explained that the language is crafted in furtherance of the assignment given to her. 
 
Members Wilsher and Kanoza agreed that the language is too specific to be included in the 
Charter. 
 
Member Bloom questioned how this language would be of a benefit because he believes 
this issue already addressed in Item 5. 
 
City Attorney Bluhm agreed that Item 5 arguably covers it. 
 
Chair Bliss asked whether City Council is looking for a general recommendation from the 
Charter Revision Committee in regard to Charter Revision Proposals 10, 11 and 12. 
  
City Attorney Bluhm responded that she would forward the Charter Revision Committees 
general thoughts as to what they believe to be appropriate or other recommendations as to 
how to address these issues. City Attorney Bluhm continued by stating that the committee 
may want to consider Charter Revision Proposal 12 separately because it differs 
somewhat from Charter Revision Proposals 10 and 11. 
 
Chair Bliss advised that the Charter Revision Committee does not support Charter 
Revision Proposal 10. 
 
Member Solomon added that although the Charter Revision Committee does support 
Charter Revision Proposals 10 and 11, the Charter Revision Committee is not expressing 
an opinion of the underlying issue. 
 
11) Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #11 
 
Shall Section 5.11.1 – Council Initiatory Referendary Petitions for I-75 Road Projects, of the 
Troy City Charter be added to provide a mechanism for referendum on City of Troy’s 
financial participation in State of Michigan I-75 Road Projects when local financial 
contributions are in excess of $1,000,000.00? 
 
Chair Bliss advised that the Charter Revision Committee does not support Charter 
Revision Proposal 11 for the same reasons as Charter Revision Proposal 10. 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final    June 20, 2005 
 

-8- 

Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #12 
 
Shall Section 7.9.5 – Council Initiated Ballot Questions, of the Troy City Charter be added 
to provide a mechanism for the City Council to place advisory ballot questions on the 
Regular City Election Ballot, by an affirmative majority vote of the members elect? 
 
City Attorney Bluhm advised that the Charter Revision Proposal #12 provides for City 
Council to have the authority to place legislative advisory questions on ballots in future 
elections. City Attorney Bluhm explained that if approved by the voters in November, this 
ability would become effective for the next subsequent election. It is City Attorney Bluhm’s 
opinion that such authority is not permissible without express authority in the City Charter.  
 
Member Solomon understands that an advisory ballot question is not binding and that City 
Council may still take whatever action they deem to be appropriate. 
 
City Attorney Bluhm agreed that advisory ballot questions are not binding and that is why 
there is no authority to expend city funds to do that. City Attorney Bluhm noted there is 
another element to this, which ties into her memo. She explained they have separated the 
legislative functions from the administrative and executive functions and noted that ballot 
proposals should be limited to legislative matters only, not administrative or executive 
matters. City Attorney Bluhm advised this concern was mentioned in her memo to City 
Council. 
 
Member Bloom asked whether Charter Revision Proposal #12 would allow the I-75 
question to appear on the ballot as a legislative advisory ballot question. 
 
City Clerk Bartholomew advised that the I-75 question is an administrative question and not 
a legislative question. 
 
City Attorney Bluhm explained that the proposed Charter revision language provides for 
questions that would be appropriate for voters to vote on such as ordinances. 
 
Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #12 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Bloom 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #12 to read as follows, “Shall 
Section 7.9.5 – Council Initiated Ballot Questions, of the Troy City Charter be added to 
provide a mechanism for the City Council to place advisory ballot questions on the Regular 
City Election Ballot, by an affirmative majority vote of the members elect? 
 
Member Solomon stated that it is difficult to object to something that is a way for City 
Council to find out what the public thinks. However, on the other hand he asked what do 
we need Council for? 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final    June 20, 2005 
 

-9- 

Chair Bliss does not personally believe that advisory questions should appear on a ballot 
because there are other effective ways to poll the public on particular issues. He explained 
that there are many ways for the public to voice their opinions to elected officials such as 
going to City Council meetings, write letters, talk to Council Members directly or Council 
Members could poll the public directly. Further, there could be dozen of advisory questions 
appearing on a single ballot for the public to vote on. He believes that it is the responsibility 
of City Council to make decisions when appropriate. 
 
Member Solomon interjected that advisory questions could also cause delays in the 
decision making process. 
 
Chair Bliss agreed and continued by stating that it could add additional costs because 
there is a cost for everything. 
 
Member Wilsher believes that most people who are concerned about a particular issue 
will make their concerns known. She added that none of the people she knows in Troy 
were contacted whenever any survey has been conducted by the city. 
 
City Attorney Bluhm reminded the Charter Revision Committee members that there is a 
mechanism already in place in the City Charter to bring forward a new ordinance that  
would be binding. 
 
Member Bloom sympathizes with City Council. He does not know if there is any governing 
body that is wise enough to make a decision about issues such as the I-75 interchange 
because the public seems to be closely divided. He continued by stating that to a certain 
extent it would be nice to determine what the public wants using a scientific measure such 
as elections. He further stated that this proposed language would only apply to a legislative 
proposition and that the Committee agrees that because the I-75 issue is an administrative 
issue, that it would not be appropriate to place it on a ballot anyway. 
 
Member Wilsher suggested inserting “legislative” to clarify the intent of the proposed 
language. 
 
City Attorney Bluhm agreed that inserting the word “legislative” would be appropriate to 
clarify that a advisory ballot question could not be used for administrative or executive 
issues. 
 
Member Bloom stated he would support the resolution because he believes City Council is 
the appropriate governing body to determine whether or not this particular question should 
appear on the ballot. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #12 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-014 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final    June 20, 2005 
 

-10- 

RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby AMENDS the Resolution to 
Support Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #12 language by INSERTING 
“nonbinding legislative” BEFORE “advisory”. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
12) Vote on Resolution to Support Recommended Charter Revision Proposal 

#12 as Amended 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-015 
Moved by Bloom 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #12 to read as follows, “Shall 
Section 7.9.5 – Council Initiated Ballot Questions, of the Troy City Charter be added to 
provide a mechanism for the City Council to place nonbinding legislative advisory ballot 
questions on the Regular City Election Ballot, by an affirmative majority vote of the 
members elect? 
 
Yes: Bloom, Noce 
No: Barno, Bliss, Kanoza, Solomon, Wilsher 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Audience Participation: No audience present. 
 
13) Vote on Resolution to Recommend a Charter Revision Provision for City 

Council to Hold Study Sessions 
  
Resolution #CR-2005-06-016 
Moved by Solomon 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS that the City 
Charter have a provision permitting City Council to hold “Study Sessions” whereby no City 
Council action is taken; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby 
RECOMMENDS that if City Council supports the Charter Revision Committee 
recommendation that City Council DIRECT the City Attorney to DRAFT the appropriate 
ballot language.   
 
Yes: Bloom, Kanoza, Noce, Solomon, Wilsher, Barno 
No: Bliss 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final    June 20, 2005 
 

-11- 

14) Vote on Resolution to Adjourn 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-06-017 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee meeting of Monday, June 20, 2005 
hereby be adjourned.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 
Attached to and made a part of the original Minutes of this meeting is a memorandum 
dated May 18, 2005 to the Mayor and Members of Troy City Council from Lori Grigg 
Bluhm, City Attorney regarding, “I-75 Ballot Question”.  
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 2:40 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Daniel H. Bliss, Chair  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

The Chairman, Christopher Fejes, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, June 21, 2005 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 

 Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Matthew Kovacs 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Kovacs from this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. KOVACS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF MAY 17, 2005 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of May 17, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Gies, Hutson, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Fejes 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4  
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve Item #3 and Item #4 in accordance with the suggested resolutions 
printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 

 1

bittnera
Text Box
J-01d



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  ZION CHRISTIAN CHURCH, 3668 LIVERNOIS, 
for relief of the 4’-6” high screening wall required along the south side of off-street 
parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board for a 4’-6” high screening wall required along the south property line adjacent to 
their off-street parking.  This relief has been granted on a yearly basis since 1985.  The 
property to the south is owned by the City of Troy at this time and is undeveloped.  This 
item last appeared before this Board in June 2002 and was granted a three (3) year 
renewal.  Conditions remain the same, and we have no objections or complaints on file.  
The property immediately to the south of this parcel has been purchased by the City of 
Troy, with the potential of becoming a park. 
 
MOVED, to grant Zion Christian Church, 3668 Livernois a three (3) year renewal of 
relief for the 4’-6” high screening wall required along the south property line adjacent to 
the off-street parking. 
 

• The City’s purchase of the adjacent property for park development only further 
justifies the need for the variance. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Conditions remain the same, and there are no complaints on file. 
• Variance does not have an adverse effect on surrounding property. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH, 4328 
LIVERNOIS, for relief of the 4’-6” high screening wall required along the south, east and 
north sides of off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board of the 4’-6” high wall required along the southeast and north sides of the property 
adjacent to the off-street parking.  The original request was granted based on the fact 
that the adjacent property was either undeveloped or screened by dense woods.  This 
relief has been granted on a yearly basis since 1988.  This item last appeared before 
this Board in June 2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  
Conditions remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant First Presbyterian Church of Troy, 4328 Livernois a three (3) year 
renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high wall required along the southeast and north sides of 
the property adjacent to the off-street parking. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect on surrounding property. 
• Conditions remain the same, and there are no complaints on file. 
• The adjacent property is either undeveloped or screened by dense woods. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SANKARAN BALAKRISHNAN, 1602 LIVERNOIS, 
to reconstruct a gasoline station service building that will result in a front yard setback of 
11’-8” from Livernois and setback of only 30’-3” from the residential property to the 
northeast where Section 30.20.07 requires a 40’ front yard setback and a 75’ setback 
from residential zoned property.  In addition, the site plan submitted indicates only 384 
square feet of landscaping where Section 39.70.04 requires at least 1,674 square fee of 
countable landscaping for a site this size. 
 
The petitioner was not present and this item was moved to the end of the agenda, Item 
#9, to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  GARY ABITHEIRA, HIDDEN CREEK SITE 
CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT, for relief of the height requirement to construct a 
new home.  The proposed house has a building height of 27’ when calculated in 
accordance with Section 04.20.23.  Section 30.10.06 limits houses in R-1E Zoning 
Districts to 25’ maximum building height. 
 
The petitioner was not present and this item was moved to the end of the agenda, Item 
#10, to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DENVER ASSOCIATES, LLC, 1010 NAUGHTON, 
for relief of the Ordinance to expand an existing parking lot that will result in front 
setbacks of 14’ to Acacia and 23’-7” of Naughton.  Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 
requires that the 50’ front yard setback required by Section 30.20.09 be free of parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
expand an existing lot.  This property is located within the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning 
District.  Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that the 50’ front yard setback 
required by Section 30.20.09 be free of parking.  The plans submitted indicate that the 
parking lot is being expanded to within 14’ of Acacia and within 23’-7” of Naughton. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that based on the petitioner’s request it was indicated that this space 
would be used as a show room and asked what type of show room it would be.  Mr. 
Stimac said he did not have the answer but thought the petitioner would be able to 
explain it. 
 
Mr. Fareed Mojaradi was present and stated that they are looking into using the extra 
space in the building as a show room for office furniture.  The main building would be 
used as a warehouse where this furniture would be stored and assembled.  The show 
room would be used to display the finished product.   
 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how many parking spaces were available and why the current 
parking was not sufficient and Mr. Mojaradi said that based on market studies, the 
market is changing and this particular client would like to be able to provide more 
parking to make it more convenient for prospective clients.  Mr. Mojaradi said that 
presently there are thirty- (30) parking spaces available.  Mr. Mojaradi said that they 
would like to add fifteen (15) additional parking spaces.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked how many customers they get.  Mr. Mojaradi said he did not know, 
as they have not leased this space out yet.  Mr. Courtney said this sounds more like a 
retail operation.  Mr. Mojaradi said that the potential customer they have talked to 
indicated that this space would be used so people could look at the finished product and 
order same, but would not be purchasing office furniture here and taking it with them. 
This would not be used as a retail space.  
 
Mr. Hutson asked if there were any tenants in the building now and Mr. Mojaradi said 
that the tenants had moved out approximately three months ago.  Mr. Hutson then 
asked how many employees would be in this facility and Mr. Mojaradi said he did not 
know.  Mr. Hutson said the Board was not being given a lot of information regarding the 
need for this variance.  Mr. Mojaradi said he has not been involved in talking to the 
client, but does know the owner of the building wants to dress up this building and 
wants to dress up this building and also be able to provide more parking to any potential 
customers.  Mr. Hutson said that he does not understand why he needs more parking.  
Mr. Mojaradi said that without adequate parking it is very difficult to service customers.  
Mr. Hutson said that he thought Mr. Mojaradi was talking about a retail building.  Mr. 
Mojaradi said that any office building needs plenty of parking.  Mr. Hutson then asked 
why extra parking would be required, if this was a one-man operation. If there is a lot of 
traffic or a lot of employees coming in or out extra parking would be required, but he did 
not feel that need has been demonstrated at this time.   Mr. Mojaradi said that he could 
send the Board documentation of studies indicating the need for adequate parking; 
however, Mr. Hutson said that was not necessary. Mr. Hutson asked if this potential 
client was going to lease the entire building.  Mr. Mojaradi said that it was his 
understanding that they were going to use the whole building. Mr. Hutson said he did 
not see a hardship supporting this request. 
 
Mr. Mojaradi said that the hardship is the fact that the building was built thirty-six (36) 
years ago and the need for parking was not the same then as it is now.  Mr. Mojaradi 
went on to say that renting this space would be beneficial to the City.  The potential 
client they had spoken to was going to use most of the building to store material and 
also to repair any office furniture as necessary. 
 
Ms. Gies asked if a variance would be necessary if this was an interior lot.  Mr. Stimac 
explained that the are encroaching on the front yards of both streets; therefore, both 
streets will require a variance.  If this was an interior lot there would not be a parking 
setback requirement.   

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Wright asked if this statement would hold for Acacia and Mr. Stimac said it would.  
Mr. Wright said that he has always thought of Acacia as more of a service drive and Mr. 
Stimac said it is a street and the Ordinance requires a setback from all public streets. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if the petitioner was coming to this meeting and Mr. Mojaradi said that 
as far as he knew he was planning to attend this meeting. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Denver Associates, LLC, 1010 Naughton for relief of the 
Zoning Ordinance to expand an existing parking lot. 
 

• Petitioner has not demonstrated a hardship. 
• Believes that they will increase the showroom, which would be considered retail. 

 
Mr. Maxwell stated that before he would vote, he would like more information regarding 
this request as to what this building would be used for.  Mr. Mojaradi said that he would 
answer any questions, however, Mr. Maxwell stated that Mr. Mojaradi did not have the 
information the Board needed to make a decision. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that he agreed with Mr. Maxwell and would like more information 
regarding this request. 
 
Mark LaFave, Manager of Denver Associates, arrived at 7:50 P.M.   
 
Ms. Lancaster asked if the Board wished to vote on the motion, or if they wanted to re-
open this hearing to hear from the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Fejes spoke for the Board members and stated that they would hold their vote until 
Mr. LaFave had a chance to address the Board. 
 
Mr. LaFave explained that he had purchased this building in February 2005.  This 
building is 15,000 square feet and is 36 years old.  The marketplace has changed 
dramatically and he believes that amount of parking limits this chance to lease this 
building.  This is a service-oriented economy and he fully expects to lease this building 
and because they would be using it as a higher ratio of office, they would need the 
higher number of parking spaces.  They are asking to add an additional fifteen (15)  
 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
parking spaces – twelve (12) in the front of the building and three (3) in the back of the 
building bringing the total number of parking spaces to forty-five (45).  Mr. LaFave also 
said they plan to modernize the exterior of the building as well as re-landscape the 
entire site. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he did not believe the petitioner’s request was consistent with 
what is allowable in M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning.  Mr. LaFave said that his practical 
difficulty was in the fact that this building had eleven (11) foot ceilings, which was not 
really conducive to industrial uses.  Mr. Courtney then stated it sounds like this building 
is planned to be predominantly office space.  Mr. LaFave said the likely party to lease 
this building will be more like a high-tech type of business that will require a higher 
percentage of office space.  Mr. LaFave said that he does not want to change the use of 
the building.  Mr. LaFave said that he believes his ability to lease this building is limited 
because of the low ceilings and limited parking.  Mr. Courtney said that the petitioner 
could request to have the property re-zoned and Mr. LaFave said that when he had 
come into the Building Department, he was advised that this was the best way for him to 
go. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how much office space is allowed in Industrial Zoning.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that if the use was appropriate, you could use 100% of the building for office 
space. 
 
Mr. Courtney then asked how many employees would be at this site.  Mr. LaFave said 
that he could not answer that as he has not leased out this space yet. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked for an explanation as to how a high-tech business was going to make 
a difference in the parking.  Mr. LaFave said that the specific client that has expressed 
interest in leasing this building specializes in selling office furniture.  Mr. Hutson then 
asked how much traffic would be coming in to this location and stated that he does not 
see the need for a variance.  Mr. LaFave said that there would be salesmen at this 
location, but they would go out and meet with clients regarding this furniture.  Mr. 
Hutson suggested that Mr. LaFave withdraw his application until he had a definite 
contract and then come back to the Board if he found that a variance would still be 
required.   
 
Mr. LaFave said that based on his personal experience he believes this site would 
require additional parking to make it more usable.  Mr. LaFave said that they would 
require 50% of this space to be used as an office and the other 50% to be used as a 
warehouse.    Mr. Hutson said that he felt this was hypothetical and he would not be 
inclined to grant a variance based on this. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that the petitioner had the right to withdraw his request and re-submit if 
necessary, when he had more definite information. 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he would like more definite information as to why the additional 
parking spaces are required although he did not believe that by granting the variance it 
would be detrimental to this area.  Mr. Maxwell also stated that he thinks the 
improvements the petitioner is proposing would add to the value of the area and would 
ultimately help the City of Troy.   
 
Mr. Wright said that with the renovations the petitioner is proposing, he may be better 
off to take down this building and put up a new building.  Mr. LaFave said that he 
purchased this building on speculation and thinks it will be a first class building. 
 
Mr. Fejes stated that he feels this is a large variance request and does not feel there is 
a hardship. 
 
Mr. LaFave asked that this request be withdrawn until he has a specific tenant for this 
building. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to accept Mr. LaFave’s request to withdraw his petition for a variance request. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL CARRIED 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  GEORGE FERRARO OF METCO SERVICES, 
6850 ADAMS, for relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition on an existing 
religious facility.  Paragraph B of Section 10.30.04 requires front, side and rear yards of 
churches to be at least 50’.  Paragraph E of Section 10.30.04 requires that these yards 
be landscaped and kept free of parking when they are adjacent to public streets or 
adjacent to other residentially zoned sites.  The site plan submitted indicates a driveway 
within 33.9’ of Adams and within 26.3’ of the south property line where it abuts single 
family zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
construct an addition on to an existing religious facility.  Paragraph B of Section 
10.30.04 requires that these yards be landscaped and kept free of parking when they 
are adjacent to public streets or adjacent to other residentially zoned property.  The 
plans submitted indicate a parallel driveway within 33.9’ of Adams Road and within 26.3’ 
of the south property line where this site abuts single family zoned property to the south. 
 
Mr. George Ferraro was present and stated that there were also two members of the 
Temple present.  As part of the addition in the lower parking area is also a service 
entrance to the banquet area.  They had also looked at going from the parking facility  

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
basically paralleling the upper level where the parking was and tying back into the 
driveway that goes to South Boulevard.  The down side of this plan is that there is a 
slope there with a lot of trees and the trees would have to be removed. This solution 
would be the least intrusive.   They have also looked at putting in a screen wall and 
additional landscaping so that the addition would have the least effect possible. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that when he had looked at this site it appears that the property to the 
south is very low with a lot of swamp and is vacant.  Mr. Ferraro said that in order to 
build their driveway they would have to put in a retaining wall, as well as additional 
landscaping. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if a retaining wall would still be needed if they came from the north 
side of the property.  Mr. Ferraro said that they would still need some retaining wall 
because the difference in grade is 20’. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked what would happen if the variance was not granted.  Mr. Ferraro said 
that they would put the road in to comply, but they would have to remove a large 
number of trees.  Mr. Ferraro said that even with this variance, they will still have to 
remove a few trees.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Hutson 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to grant George Ferraro of METCO Services, 6850 Adams, relief of the Zoning 
Ordinance to construct an addition on to an existing religious facility that will result with 
a driveway within 33.9’ of Adams Road and within 26.3’ of the south property line where 
this site abuts single family zoned property.   
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not establish a prohibited use with a zoning district. 
• Literal enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance is unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• A large number of existing trees would need to be removed in order to put the 

drive in a conforming location. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #9 (ITEM #5) - VARIANCE REQUEST.  SANKARAN BALAKRISHNAN, 1602 
LIVERNOIS, to reconstruct a gasoline station service building that will result in a front 
yard setback of 11’-8” from Livernois and setback of only 30’-3” from the residential 
property to the northeast where Section 30.20.07 requires a 40’ front yard setback and 
a 75’ setback from residential zoned property.  In addition, the site plan submitted 
indicates only 384 square feet of landscaping where Section 39.70.04 requires at least 
1,674 square fee of countable landscaping for a site this size. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
reconstruct a gasoline station service building.  Section 30.20.07 requires a 40’ front 
yard setback and a 75’ setback from residential zoned property for development in the 
H-S (Highway Service) Zoning District.  The site plans submitted indicate a front yard 
setback of 11’-8” from Livernois to the proposed new building and a setback of only 30’-
3” from the R-1E (Residential One-Family) Zoned property to the northeast. 
 
In addition, Section 39.70.04 requires at least 1,674 square feet of countable 
landscaping for a site this size.  The plans submitted indicate that only 384 square feet 
of countable landscaping will be provided. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how much landscaping was presently on this space.  Mr. Stimac 
said that there is landscaping on the north side of this site, although he does not have 
the total square footage, Mr. Stimac said he does believe that it is more than 384 
square feet.  Mr. Courtney clarified that the petitioner is asking for two (2) additional 
variances.  Mr. Stimac explained that this property was recently re-zoned to H-S 
(Highway Service). 
 
Mr. Fejes asked what zoning classification was previously on this property.  Mr. Stimac 
said that in the previous zoning of B-1, a 75’ setback was not required, however, a gas 
station was not a permitted use with that zoning. 
 
Mr. Wright said that in order for him to rebuild the gas station, the Planning Commission 
felt that this should be a gas station and recommended that the zoning be changed.  
 
Mr. Mike Kozlowski was present and said he is the architect for this project.  Mr. 
Kozlowski said that he believes the practical difficulty is that there is no buildable area 
on the north end of the site available.  The only place they could do it would be on the 
south end of the property, which would result in a very small kiosk.  Mr. Kozlowski also 
said that they feel a 1,600 square foot building was a modest size and would not cause 
this site to be over built.  Furthermore, the residential property in question is owned in 
common by the commercial neighbor that they vacated the alley with.  The alley was 
kept open so that he would have access to the back of the house.  They are going 
through some steps in order to make some improvements to the site, one of which is 
the alley that they are planning to pave to the end of their property line, and also they 
are going to install screen walls where there are not driveways to substitute for the  
 
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
areas that are supposed to have landscaping.  Normally, when they do these stations 
they do try to provide buffering along the roads, but in this situation there is really no  
landscaping along the street, the sidewalks are right on the property lines.  There is an 
increase in the ultimate right of way that is needed for both roads, approximately 8’ 
wider.  If they move to the ultimate right of way, there is no space for additional 
landscaping.  Mr. Kozlowski said that they will be improving this site. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that they are paving part of the alley and asked what else is there.  
Mr. Kozlowski said that the property is paved except for what is behind the building.  Mr. 
Courtney then asked what is presently behind the building and Mr. Kozlowski said this 
area was landscaped.  Mr. Kozlowski also stated that from the north end of the property 
to the north end of the adjacent commercial property they are planning on putting in a 6’ 
high screening wall. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if they had an elevation of the proposed building.  Mr. Kozlowski said 
that he had not brought one in with him.  This building would be basically a flat roof 
building with veneer and with more windows and just generally be an improvement. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Clark Oil owned this station and Mr. Kozlowski stated that it was 
not. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. David Haron was present and stated that he was representing the owner of the 
commercial property to the east of this property, the residential property in back of this 
property and the two commercial buildings to the east of this property.  Mr. Haron said 
that they object to this request for a variance.  This request if granted would effectively 
ratify the former and partially current non-conforming use.  The current owner 
purchased this property quite recently and he knew that this property was not a 
permitted use.  Mr. Haron also said that based on his calculations the petitioner is 
asking for a 72% variance for the front yard, a 60% variance to the residential property 
and 75% - 77% variance for the landscape requirement.  This petitioner is asking this 
Board to ignore the Ordinance.  In each case the variance is necessary because there 
is a building on a corner, however, he does not feel this would be an improvement.   
 
Another area Mr. Haron is concerned about is the 20,000 square foot requirement for a 
gas station, because this site is only 15,000 square feet.  Mr. Haron also said that if the 
site were used for fuel only, the 15,000 square feet available would be adequate.  This 
is an irregularly shaped parcel and the way he measures the site from the future right of 
way, he does not believe 15,000 square feet are available.  If that were the case, 
another variance would be required.  In terms of the use, this is a gas station with a 
convenience store, and the minimum requirement for a gas station with fuel only is 
15,000 square feet.  The convenience store adds another use to this site and would be 
subject to special use approval by the Planning Commission.  

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
In terms of the dumpster location, the petitioner is planning to pave their portion of the 
alley, which is only 9’.  Mr. Haron said that the dumpster drawing indicates a 10’ 
opening, although he is not exactly certain what size the dumpster trucks are, but it 
could require driving over the adjacent property.  The dumpster location is on the 
residential side, which will increase the noise and odor.  The residential property needs 
to be protected and the petitioner is proposing a setback of 30’ where 75’ is required. 
 
Mr. Haron also indicated that he believes if these variances were granted, the petitioner 
would still have to appear before the Planning Commission regarding special use 
approval.  Mr. Haron said that they believe this is a self-imposed hardship and the 
variances should not be granted, and based on the Ordinance the land use should be 
compatible with the surrounding area.  Mr. Haron said that the decrease in the setback 
to the residential property would not be compatible.  
 
In a B-1 Zoning District, the setbacks were less and once the property was re-zoned the 
setbacks increased.  Mr. Haron said that some other type of business could have been 
put on this corner and all of these variances would not have been required.  The 
petitioner is also moving the curb cut, which will create a curb on the adjacent property.  
Mr. Haron also said that they are planning to put up two small walls in the front of the 
property and he does not know if this is appropriate.  Mr. Haron also said that if his 
client wishes to develop anything on her property it will be more difficult because of the 
setback variances. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the speaker had made their objection before the Planning 
Commission when the re-zoning request came up.  Mr. Haron stated that due to a 
change of address, they did not receive notification of this re-zoning and therefore did 
not appear before the Planning Commission.  Mr. Courtney said that Council re-zoned 
specifically for a gas station.  Mr. Haron said that they would have rather raised these 
objections at either the meeting of the Planning Commission or Council, but did not 
receive notification.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked which property Mr. Haron’s client owned.  Mr. Haron stated that his 
client owns the property to the east, 35 E. Maple, the property east of that and the 
property on Chopin north of that.  Mr. Maxwell asked if Mr. Haron would like to see this 
property used for something other than a gas station and Mr. Haron said that he would, 
or if something else was put there he would like to see it conform to the Ordinance.  Mr. 
Maxwell also said that there is a building there right now, and if it was rebuilt, variances 
would still be required.  Mr. Haron said that prior to the re-zoning, the building could not 
have been rebuilt.  Mr. Haron also said that the existing building is non-conforming and 
if it was taken out, he does not believe it could be rebuilt.  Mr. Haron said that he also 
believes that the canopies make this building non-conforming.  Mr. Maxwell said that 
basically Mr. Haron believes this lot is too small and should not be used for a gas 
station.  Mr. Haron said that was a fair statement. 
 

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that the present owner could stay in this location with the building “as 
is” for the next fifty years, and he would rather see a new gas station put up and the 
area improved.  Mr. Haron said that he and his client would rather see this area 
improved also, but they do not believe this gas station would be an improvement. 
 
The owner of 35, 37 E. Maple came up and said that she does not see this request as 
an improvement.  She believes that either he should buy her property or he should sell 
his property to her and the area should be changed to be very aesthetically pleasing.  
She also said that if these variances are granted, it would prohibit her from improving 
her property because of the setback requirements.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that he feels her main objection is that the petitioner did not buy her 
property.  The owner of the property said everyone likes to go to stores that are 
aesthetically pleasing and believes that this corner could be improved.  Mr. Courtney 
said that in other words the petitioner should buy her property and she said or he should 
let her buy his. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that the reality is that if no variances are granted, business is going to 
continue with the building “as is”.   Mr. Hutson also said that he thinks this new 
construction would improve the appearance of this corner.  Mr. Haron said that he 
thinks if the variances were denied, there would be an attempt by the owners to find a 
solution for construction on the property.  Mr. Haron also said that this is a small 
building going in there, and believes this will deprive the other owners of property in this 
area because of the decrease in the setbacks.  If they want to make this area more 
productive, there are a lot of alternatives in this area.  This building would be locked in 
because the variances run with the land.   
 
Mr. Wright said that is one of probably half a dozen gas stations in the City that over the 
years has lost property because the roads have been widened, so in effect the City has 
made these parcels smaller than they are supposed to be.  Mr. Wright said that the 
Planning Commission has determined that they would like to see improvement, and his 
opinion is that this would be an improvement. 
 
Gary Abitheira, 178 Larchwood was present and stated that he lives three streets to the 
north of this site.  Mr. Abitheira thinks this is a good plan, because the petitioner will be 
getting rid of two entrances/exits on this site.  This is a hazardous traffic situation and 
this change will be a great improvement on this site. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file.   
 
 
 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac addressed the Board and said that one of the questions that was raised 
stated that this lot did not meet the size requirements.  According to the site plan the 
property in question is 15,606 square feet in area, subject to survey verification.  
Automobile service facilities have a larger area requirement.  Originally this site was a 
non-conforming use as well as a non-conforming structure.  When this property was re-
zoned by City Council, it was no longer a non-conforming use.  The use then conformed 
to the uses allowed in the re-zoning.  The canopy location is technically conforming 
because it was granted a variance by the Board of Zoning Appeals some years ago.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that he is in favor of this request, as he believes this is a vast 
improvement to the area. 
 
Mr. Kozlowski said that his understanding was that the vacation of the alley was 
contingent on them retaining cross access so that the alley would remain open.  They 
are happy improving the alley its full width if that would make the adjacent property 
owner happy.  Both this property and the adjacent property are subject to the same 
setbacks and given the buildable area of this lot when the 40’ setback is applied, there 
would be a very small envelope for building.  Mr. Kozlowski also said that they would be 
happy to work with the Planning Commission regarding the dumpster enclosure and the 
alley.   
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Sankaran Balakrishnan, 1602 Livernois, relief of the Ordinance to 
reconstruct a gasoline station service building that will result in a front yard setback of 
11’-8” from Livernois and a setback of only 30’-3” from the residential property to the 
northeast where Section 30.20.07 requires a 40’ front yard setback and a 75’ setback 
from residential zoned property; and 384 square feet of landscaping where Section 
39.7004 requires at least 1,674 square feet of countable landscaping for a site of this 
size. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property in question. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he had a bit of problem with this request, however, taking all the 
factors into consideration, including the egress driveways, he would approve of this 
request.  Mr. Maxwell also said that he hopes in the future we get away from putting gas 
stations on corners, and he does approve of some of the changes that are being made. 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #10 (ITEM #6) - VARIANCE REQUEST.  GARY ABITHEIRA, HIDDEN CREEK 
SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT, for relief of the height requirement to construct 
a new home.  The proposed house has a building height of 27’ when calculated in 
accordance with Section 04.20.23.  Section 30.10.06 limits houses in R-1E Zoning 
Districts to 25’ maximum building height. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
construct a new house that will exceed the height requirements of Section 30.10.06.  
The construction plans submitted indicate that the proposed house has a building height 
of 27’ when calculated in accordance with Section 04.20.23.  Section 30.10.06 limits 
houses in R-1E Zoning Districts to 25’ maximum building height. 
 
Mr. Stimac also explained that there are five (5) different zoning classifications.  The 
maximum building height for a building depends on which zoning classification you are 
in.  R-1A and R-1B zoning classifications allows for additional storage that can be 
constructed on a house as well as provisions for some additional height.  These 
provisions do not apply in the R-1C, R-1D or R-1E zoning classifications, primarily 
because we are dealing with smaller lot sizes and there is some concern about the 
spacing between buildings. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked which classification this parcel was in.  Mr. Stimac stated that it was 
in the R-1E classification, which limits buildings to two stories and 25’ in height. 
 
Gary Abitheira was present, stated that the home he is building is almost 4,000 square 
feet, and has a lot of depth to it.  The roofline looks more aesthetically pleasing with the 
higher height.  Mr. Abitheira said that he had gone to the Fire Department and got a 
letter from them stating that this would not create a fire hazard.  Based on the site plan 
the rear yard will be about 400’ from the houses on Hartland and there will be 27’ to the 
houses on either side, and will be setback about 110’ from the houses on the east side.  
Mr. Abitheira said that he had contacted 99% of the surrounding neighbors and did not 
receive any objections from them.  There are a large number of trees in this area and 
his home will be screened from the surrounding property.  Mr. Abitheira also said that 
he did get one objection from a long time resident who was concerned that the 
proposed complex would be done according to the plans submitted.  These plans have 
been submitted to Engineering and have been approved.  Mr. Abitheira also needs final 
site plan approval and will be going before City Council at their meeting of July 11, 
2005. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if Mr. Abitheira was requesting a variance for all the proposed homes 
in this development.  Mr. Abitheira said he only needs a variance on Unit #7.  
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 21, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if this lot was larger than the other proposed lots.  Mr. Abitheira said 
this is his own personal lot and would be about two and ½ acres.  All of the houses in 
the cul de sac are basically the same elevation.  Mr. Maxwell confirmed that he was 
asking for this variance because of the depth of this house and Mr. Abitheira said that 
was correct. 
 
Motion by Maxwell  
Support by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to grant Gary Abitheira, Hidden Creek Site Condominium relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a new house that will exceed the height requirements of Section 
30.10.06, this is 25’.  The proposed house will have a roof height of 27’. 
 

• Size of lot will support a house of this size. 
• Variance request is minimal. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:15 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Christopher Fejes, Chairman 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 15



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 28, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on June 28, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Wayne Wright 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-105 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-106 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 7, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 28, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
There was no report available. 
 
 

5. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following items. 
 
• PUD 4 The Monarch, north side of Big Beaver Road, east of Alpine and west of 

McClure, Section 20 – Public Hearing is scheduled for July 18, 2005 City 
Council Meeting. 

• Hidden Parc Site Condominium, north of Welling, west of John R, Section 14 – 
Preliminary approval by City Council at its June 20, 2005 meeting, with two cul 
de sacs as recommended by Planning Commission. 

• Rezoning Request (Z 701) Buscemi’s Party Shoppe, northeast corner of 
Hartland and Rochester Road, Section 23, R-1E and B-3 to B-1 – Approved by 
City Council at its June 20, 2005 meeting.   

• Rezoning Request (Z 683-B), Al-Zouhayli Office Building, north side of Big 
Beaver between Rochester Road and John R, Section 23, R-1E and E-P to P-1 
and E-P – Approved by City Council at its June 20, 2005 meeting. 

• Requests for Final Site Plan Approval, Hidden Forest Site Condominium and 
Stone Haven Woods East 2 Site Condominium – To be considered at the July 
11, 2005 City Council meeting. 

• ZOTA 215-A, Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions – To be 
considered at the July 11, 2005 City Council meeting.  

• July 12, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda.   
• First Tuesday of the month study meeting not scheduled due to the July 4 

holiday – Next Planning Commission Meeting is the Regular Meeting on July 12, 
2005.  

 
 

___________ 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-107 
Moved by:  Waller 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Agenda Items #6 and #7 be reversed.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 28, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller 
No: Khan, Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Messrs. Khan and Vleck thought it would be beneficial and informative to the public to 
observe the U. S. Green Building Council presentation, Agenda Item #7.   
 

___________ 
 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – Group Daycare Homes 
in the R-1 (One Family Residential) Districts 
 
[Note:  There was a large number of people in attendance to address this item; 47 
people signed in.] 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
group daycare homes.  He provided definitions of group daycare and family 
daycare.  Mr. Miller reported that there are 19 group daycare homes, 45 family 
daycare homes and 48 child daycare homes in the City.  He said municipalities 
have the legal right to regulate land use, and the City is not required to permit group 
daycare homes.  Mr. Miller reported that City Management does not recommend 
adoption of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.  Mr. Miller reviewed 
information relating to regulations of group daycare homes in nearby communities 
and the State of Michigan licensing process.  Mr. Miller reported the Planning 
Department received a substantial amount of public comment that is unanimously in 
favor of group daycare.  He noted that copies of the public comment were 
distributed to the members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.   
 
Mr. Motzny reviewed a memorandum he prepared on the applicability of the State 
Construction Code Act with respect to family and group daycare homes.  The 
memorandum was distributed to members prior to the beginning of tonight’s 
meeting.  Mr. Motzny opined that both family and group daycare homes would be 
subject to the provisions of the Michigan Building Code, based on the provisions of 
Michigan law currently in effect.  He said the City is required to allow family daycare 
facilities with up to six children as a permitted use in all residential districts.     
 
Ms. Drake-Batts read prepared comments.  She said the needs of children, elderly, 
and working parents should be addressed and support should be given to both 
group daycare and home care providers because the City’s Zoning Ordinance is 
out-of-date.  Ms. Drake-Batts said group daycare homes should be permitted by 
Special Use, and the required Public Hearing would provide opportunity for public 
input from neighbors.  She addressed concerns relating to traffic, parking, and in-
home employees; the definition of “home occupation” in relation to home care 
providers for the elderly and disabled; and the value of the Troy school system.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 28, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

[Audience applauded.] 
 
Mr. Schultz said a study session is not a public forum or theatre performance, and 
asked the audience to withhold any applause.  
 
Chair Strat concurred.  Chair Strat said that the seniors and disability residents 
seeking home care are not doing it for profit from their caregivers commencing in 
their homes.   
 
Discussion points were: 
 
• Michigan Building Code in relation to departmental jurisdiction. 
• Make-up of “City Management” and concerns of City Management (i.e., traffic, 

in-home employees).  
• Review of public comment received and distributed by Planning Department. 
• Definition of “home occupation”. 
• House Bill 4398 – Passage of Bill would require cities to allow group daycare 

homes by special land use subject to conditions.  
• Special Use Approval and proposed conditions recommended by Planning 

Department.  
• Conditions placed on daycare facilities by other communities.  [Conditions of the 

City of Livonia were read.] 
• Concerns relating to business operation, noise, traffic, parking, drop-off areas, 

outdoor play area. 
• Time limitations on Special Use Approval; Mr. Motzny reported time limitation 

would be an inappropriate condition to impose on Special Use Approval under 
current laws.  

• Public Hearing input from neighbors in relation to future changes in 
neighborhood residency. 

• State of Michigan application that specifies applicant should check with City 
ordinances. 

• Options:  (1) Set Public Hearing; (2) Table item for further review; (3) Take 
action to abandon proposed amendment.   

 
Comments were solicited from around the table.  
 
Chair Strat announced that public comment on this item would be more appropriate 
at a Public Hearing forum.  Chair Strat noted that a Public Hearing held in the 
Council Chambers would more appropriately accommodate the number of people 
who wish to address the members and would provide proper notification for public 
comment.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 28, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-06-108 
Moved by:  Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That a Public Hearing on proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment (ZOTA 214) relating to group daycare homes in the R-1 District be 
scheduled at the August 9, 2005 Regular Meeting, that notification of the Public 
Hearing be mailed to residents within a 300 foot radius of the 19 existing group 
daycare homes, that City Management provide a memorandum outlining its pros 
and cons on the matter, and that additional Special Use criteria be developed.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:15 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:25 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

6. PRESENTATION BY U.S. GREEN BUILDING COUNCIL, DETROIT REGIONAL 
CHAPTER, ADVOCACY COMMITTEE 
 
Paul H. Goldsmith of Harley Ellis and Detroit Regional Chapter of U. S. Green 
Building Council (USGBC) provided an introduction to sustainable design.  An 
outline of his presentation follows:   
 
A. Building History leading up to “sustainable design”. 
B. Characteristics of “unsustainable building design standards” that have been in 

conflict with the growing “sustainable design” transformation. 
C. 1990’s – the transformation toward a “green building design” industry, the 

common sense alternative to current design practices. 
D. The emergence of the USGBC and LEED as the standard of measure. 
E. The future of green design. 
F. Q. and A. 
 
Presentations on “Sustainable Planning for the Future” and “Bringing It All Together” 
are scheduled at the July 26, 2005 and August 2, 2005 Special/Study Meetings, 
respectively.   
 
The members thanked Mr. Goldsmith for his time and excellent presentation.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 28, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
There was a review and discussion on the July 12, 2005 Regular Meeting agenda items. 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:10 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\06-28-05 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft   July 25, 2005 
 
A meeting of the Troy Charter Revision Committee was held Monday, June 25, 2005, at 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Chairman Bliss called the Meeting to order at 3:00 
PM. 

 
Roll Call:  PRESENT: Daniel H. Bliss, Jerry E. Bloom, Robert Noce, Cynthia A. 

Wilsher 
 ABSENT: Lillian Barno, Shirley Kanoza, Mark R. Solomon 

ALSO PRESENT: City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Clerk Tonni 
Bartholomew, and Deputy Clerk Barbara Holmes 

 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Members Barno, Kanoza and Solomon 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-018 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Bloom 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Barno, Kanoza and Solomon absence at the meeting of the 
Charter Revision Committee meeting of July 25, 2005 be EXCUSED.  
 
Yes: Bliss, Bloom, Noce, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Monday, June 20, 2005 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-019 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Bloom 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Minutes of Monday, June 20, 2005 are 
hereby APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: Bloom, Noce, Wilsher, Bliss 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS: 
 
a) Vote on Proposal #10 (86 words) 

Section 4.2.5 – Study Sessions 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-020 
Moved by Bloom 
Seconded by Noce 

-1- 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01f



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft   July 25, 2005 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #10 to read as follows: 
 

Shall Section 4.2.5,Study Meetings, be created to provide for Study meetings of 
Council with the meetings to be called by the Clerk on the written request of the 
Mayor, or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written 
notice to each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place of 
residence; but a study meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of the 
Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing? 
 

Yes: Bloom, Noce, Wilsher, Bliss 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) Vote on Proposal #11 (27 words) 

Section 4.3.5 – Business at Study Sessions 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-021 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Bloom 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #11 to read as follows: 
 

Shall Section 4.3.5, Business at Study Meetings, be created to limit the business 
transacted at any Study meeting of the Council to no action taken? 

 
Yes: Noce, Wilsher, Bliss, Bloom 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
c) Vote on Proposal #12 (70 words) 

Section 5.13 – Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinance to 
Electors 

 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-022 
Moved by Noce 
Seconded by Bliss 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #12 to read as follows: 
 

-2- 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft   July 25, 2005 
 

Shall Section 5.13, Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinance to Electors, 
be amended to implement election consolidation revisions to Michigan Election Law, 
by providing for the scheduling of the election in accordance with State Election Law 
and striking “within sixty days from such date of presentation for the submission of 
the initiative proposal” with the submittal to be made by an affirmative vote of the 
Council members elect? 
 

Yes: Wilsher, Bliss, Bloom, Noce 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
d) Vote on Proposal #13 (35 words) 

Section 5.13.5 – Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to 
Electors 

 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-023 
Moved by Bloom 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #13 to read as follows: 
 

Shall Section 5.13.5, Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to 
Electors, be created to provide a mechanism for the City Council to place 
nonbinding, legislative advisory ballot questions on the Regular City Election Ballot, 
by an affirmative majority vote of members elect? 
 

Yes: Bliss, Bloom, Noce, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
e) Vote on Proposal #14 (41 words) 

Section 12.3 – Restriction on Powers to Lease Property 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-024 
Moved by Bloom 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #14 to read as follows: 
 

Shall Section 12.3, Restriction on Powers to Lease Property, be amended to include 
long term use agreements as an additional type of ownership that is subject to the 

-3- 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft   July 25, 2005 
 

City’s same restriction on powers to lease property procedure for renting or leasing 
of public property? 
 

Yes: Bloom, Noce, Wilsher, Bliss 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Make Recommendation to City Council 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-025 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Noce 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS that Troy City 
Council authorize City Staff to prepare ballot language for the November 8, 2005 Election 
to include explanation of Charter Amendments for those sections that are proposed for 
amendment due to the implementation of Election Consolidation under State Statute. 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: None Present 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 3:27 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Daniel H. Bliss, Chair  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

-4- 

holmesba
Text Box



bittnera
Text Box
J-02a





bittnera
Text Box
J-02b





































































bittnera
Text Box
J-03a



bittnera
Text Box
J-03b



bittnera
Text Box
J-03c



bittnera
Text Box
J-04a





bittnera
Text Box
J-04b







bittnera
Text Box
J-05






	AGENDA: August 1, 2005
	GOALS:
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Rezoning Application – 600 Stephenson Highway, East Side
	C-2 Rezoning Application – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Car
	C-3 Rezoning Application – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Sid

	POSTPONED ITEMS:  No Postponed Items
	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: No Proclamations Pr
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Two-Year Renewal 
	Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Majo
	Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Cont
	Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Port

	E-5 Request for Acceptance – Permanent Storm Sewer Easement 
	E-6 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Waterma
	E-7 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel, Sidwell #20-22-42
	E-8 Private Agreement for Kilmer Property Splits – Project N
	E-9 Private Agreement for Morton’s Restaurant – Project No. 
	E-10 Payment for Installation of a Portion of McCulloch Drai
	E-11 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Waterm
	E-12 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Thirteen Treadmills for the Tr
	E-13 Request for Approval to Pay Closing Costs – Saoud Jamo 
	E-14 Adoption of the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advi
	F-2 Approval of Radio System Agreement with Oakland County
	F-3 Final Payment for Gibson Lake Cleanout – Cost Participat
	F-4 DOCVIEW, L.L.C. Service Agreement
	F-5 Sole Source – Self-Contained Riding Greens Aerator
	F-6 Proposed Revisions to Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Servic
	F-7 Charter Revision Committee Recommendations

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Parking Variance – 701-705 Minnesota – August 15, 2005
	Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 212) – Articles IV, XX
	Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, North of

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	a\) Bid Waiver – Authorization to Purcha�


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – June 
	Planning Commission/Final – June 14, 2005
	Charter Revision Committee/Final – June 20, 2005
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 21, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 28, 2005
	Charter Revision Committee/Draft – July 25, 2005

	J-2 Department Reports:
	City Attorney’s Office – Hunciag v. City of Troy
	City Attorney’s Office – Williams et. al v. City of Troy

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Chief Craft from Darlene Gist, Manager of Skate Wo
	Letter to Chief Craft from Keith Pretty, J.D., President of 
	Letter to Chief Craft from Wayne Wright, Thanking Officer Le

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	Resolution from the City of Ferndale – Metro Council Declara
	State of Michigan Notice of Hearing for Natural Gas Customer

	J-5  Calendar

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



